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INTRODUCTION

Welcome to our 2020/21 annual report which outlines how the amazing work of the
staff and volunteers of Whittington Health supported over 500,000 people living across
Naorth Central London and beyond to live longer healthier lives.

There are two central themes 1o our annual report. Firstly, this has been an
unprecedented year, framed by the start of wave one of the Covid-19 pandemic at the
start of the financial year in the UK and ending in March 2021 with ongoing effors fo
vaccinate as many local people and staff as possible, and to restart services safely for
patients. We want to pay tribute to all stalf at Whittington Health who responded
magnificently in this most challenging period.  Thelir reaction was simply immense in
continuing to deliver high quality care to patients in the most challenging of
circumstances. The second core theme of last year was the sustained work to improve
organisational culture and behaviours and to tackle health inequalities against a
backdrop of the shock and outrage caused by the death of George Floyd in May 2020
in Minneapolis and the subsequent Black Lives Matter movement,

We want 1o particularly highlight the following significant developments and
achievements this year:

« The support provided to help staff heaith and wellbeing through a range of
extensive practical help, including psychological support and advice and the
completion of Covid-19 risk assessments for statf

= During the pandemic, there was excellent collaborative work and mutual support
shown for the benefit of patients in work with colleagues from other local NHS
providers

* |n guarter three, there was the successful collaborative work to implement
temporary changes for pasdiatric services across North Central London through
the establishment of the south hub

» The delivery of a small surplus at the end of the financial year during a particularly
difficult and uncertain year

As we look forward, we acknowledge the work needed to enable people who have
been waiting for treatment to be seen, treated, and cared for — alongside the recovery
of our staff.

There were changes to our board in 2020/21, with the appointment of four non-
execulive directors, Baroness Julia Neuberger DBE (Trust Chair), Amanda Gibbon,
Baroness Glenys Thomton, and Rob Vincent CBE. In addition, the board welcomed
two associate non-executive directors, Junaid Bajwa and Wanda Goldwag (who was
with us for a few months). We also said goodbye to Deborah Harris-Ugbomah, non-
executive director,

Finally, we would also like to acknowledge the overwhelming response of voluntears
and the charitable donations given to Whittington Health's Coronavirus Relief Fund,
either by local people or organisations during the considerable challenges of the
coronavirus pandemic, 1o help support our staff.

Siobhan Harrington Baroness Julia Neuberger DBE
Chief Executive Chair
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PERFORMANCE REPORT

Overview

Whittington Health is one of London's leading integrated care organisations -
helping local people to live longer, healthier lives.

We provide hospital and community care services to over half a million people living
in lslington and Haringey as well as those living in Bamel, Enfield, Camden and
Hackney. We provide dental services in 10 boroughs. Whittington Health provided
over 100 differant typas of health service (over 40 acule and 60 community services)
in 2020/21. Every day, we aim to provide high quality and safe healthcare to people
either in our hospital, in their homes or in nearby clinics. We are here to support our
patients throughout their healthcare journey — this s what makes us an integrated
care organisation.

Our services and our approach are driven by our vision

We have an excellen! reputation for being innovative, responsive and flexible to
the changing clinical needs of the local population. We are treating more palienis
than ever before and are dedicated o improving services to deliver the best care for
our patients.

Qur vision is: Helping local people live longer, healthier lives

What we do: Lead the way in the provision of excellent integrated community
and hospital services

Our 2019/24 strateqy has four main objectives:
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Within each of these ohjectives we have sef out more specifically what we
rmean and what our ambition is:

Deliver cutstanding safe, compassionate care it partnarship with patients

Parter with paiients to deliver cutcomas ihat matter to them through the co-
dasign of sarvieas and |he abijectives sl oul in tha quality account

Ensure timely and responsive care that is seamless betwaan services
Imizrawe patient axpariance Lhrolugh dellvany af ke patien] axpetisnoes siralsgy
armbitons

Continually leamn through our Qualily Improvement strategy, building a cunous
workforos Ihat strhves 1o use avidence

Empower, support and develop an engaged staff community

Prowide cutsianding inter-profeszional educetion znd inclusive, fair development
OpparUnitiss

Foous on the health end weilbeing ot statt induding impraving the enviconment
Ba the employsr af chaolca racrlilag, relaining aind racognsinag tha best.

Create a kind emvirenmeni of nenesty and transpanency where all staff arz
listened to and fesl engaged

Fromsote groat lcadershiy, accountakility and toam woerking waere bullyving and
harassment is not tolerated

integrato care with partners and pramote health and wellbalng

Fartnar with social. prirmary, mental healkh care and the voluntaty sector around
lagslibies o rmabke ar impast on population healtn outcomes and reducs
insaualitias

Improve the j2ining up of teams across and between communiiy end hospital
ey

By working collaboratively, cocrdinate care in the cammunity o get people hams
faster and keep people out of Rospital

Praviant ill-Realth and empowsr salf-management by making evany aonlact
count, and cngaging with the cammunity and beccming a sounce of healh
adyice and educaiion

Transform and dellver Innavative, financially sustainable services

L

Tranzsform paiient fiows and models of cans {ouipaticnis, same day cmorngoncy
gaTE, Gommunity localties, and children's pathways).

Raduca systam Sast and improve clinical productivity and finanaial [deracy
ovonnwhors,

Trehesform our estates and informaetion technolagy

This stratogy was creatzd with the engagsment of staff, the pubiic and staksholders.
It was embedded throughout the organisation in the following ways:

& 4 & 3

Trust oparaticnal glan

Accountability framowork

Integrated Clinigad Service Ueil (K250 businsss plans
Annual appraisals

ledivldual and team okjrctives

Fags 6 22106



Values

The ICARE values developed through staff engagement and consultation continued
to be fundamental to everything we do at Whittington Health and form the basis of
expected slaff behaviours. They are:

1‘C A RE
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IFife OV A TN COMPASSIONATE  ACCOUNTABLE ERCELLEMT

Our sarvices

This year we relined our service priorities around our population needs; Integrating
care in all settings with emphasis on women, children and the adult frail.

Our priority is to deliver the right care, at the right time, and in the right place for our
patients. We provide an extensive range of services from our main hospital site and
run services from over 30 community locations in Islington and Haringey, and our
dental services are run from sites across 10 boroughs.

As an integrated care organisation, we bring safe and high-quality services closer
to home and speed up communication between community and hospital services,
improving our patients’ experience reducing admissions and speeding up discharge.
Key to our approach is partnering with patients, carers, GPs, social care, mental
health and other healthcare providers.

Our organisation has a highly regarded educational role. We teach undergraduate
medical students (as part of University College London Medical School) and nurses
and therapists throughout the year, alongside providing a range of educational
packages for postgraduate doctors and other healthcare professionals. We also
have a growing research arm which is exceeding Clinical Research Network targets.
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Highlights and achievements

We continue to be proud of our staff and their commitment to delivering safe and
high-quality care every day of the year. Over the past twelve months our community
and hospital teams have once again stood oul and won many national professional
awards and accolades as well as pioneering new projects and continuing to work
closely with the local community. Through the pandemic, the integrated nature of our
services was invaluable, Patients were supported to be at home where they could and
only came to hospital when absolutely necessary. Here are a few of the many
highlights of the year and achievements of our staff;

We have received the Capital Midwife quality mark for successhully embedding
and implemeanting the Capital Midwife Pan-London Preceptorship Programme
Framework. This is the first time the quality mark has been awarded by Capital
Midwife, and midwives now join our colleagues on the general side, as they have
achieved the Capital Nurse Preceptorship Framework guality mark.
Owr first ever Registered Nurse Degree Apprentices have been appointed. We
have one on the full programme and six on the two year top up from either the
nursing associate or assistant practitioner qualification

Michelle Johnson, our chief nurse and director of allied health professionals,
received an MBE in the Queen's New Year's Honours' lisl. Furthermore, from
January 2021, she was also appointed as the chief nurse for Camden and
Islington NHS Foundation Trust

Siobhan Harrington was appointed as co-chair of the NHS London People
Board to help drive priorities for the current and future NHS workforce

An estate strategy and strategic outline case for the development of our acute
and community-based siles was approved by the Whittington Health Board
Cellier, cur post-natal ward, reopened in July 2020 following a complete
refurbishment in collaboration with staff and parents who had their baby with us
We completed work with University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust (UCLH) to create an orthopaedic hub for the south of North Central
London

Wingfactors won first place for a submission of their work at Whittington Health
1o the Airway Management Conference

Simmons House Adolescent Unit (Children and Young People Services ICSU)
was fully accredited by the Royal College of Psychiatrists’ Quality Network of
Inpatient CAMHS units (QNIC) in September 2020

From 1 October 2020, the North Central and East London Child and
Adolescent Mental Health services (CAMHSs) provider collaborative went live.
This initiative helped ensure that the four CAMHs inpatient units across North
Central and North East London worked mere closely together on reducing
variation and improving outcomes for young people

Being annual Health Service shorlisted for the Journal Integrated Care
Partnership of the Year award in recognition of our outstanding contribution to
healthcare by integrating its services with local councils, primary care services
and the voluntary sector to create healthier, more resilient communities

Playing a central and engaged role in development of a Provider Alliance for
MNorth Central London covering acute, community and mental health to improve
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himalth far the population we sallectively serve 2nd to imerove the quality and to
reduce the cost of heaith serviees (far patients, resldarts, and staff)

The Carnden Leaming Cisability Service won the Royal College of
Faychlatrists’ Fsychiatric Team of the year: Intellectual Disability award,
recagnising their autslanckng commitment ta cormmmunity-based supper for
people with lcaming disakiltiss and thelr familles. The samiea iz an Integraled
vanture befween the London Baroigh of Camden, Camdan and [2lington ks
Faundation Trist and Whittington Health

Black History Menth was markad by a callurs day, parlonmanc:s angd ans andg
discugsions ahout inspiraticnal black feres. In the final week of Ootober 2020,
Wittington Health's biack, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) staff notwork
launched the “Ses Me First’ badge. This is 8 Trust initiative underfining ihe
arganisation’s commitment ta fraaling gt BAME stalf with dignity and respect. |t
was shordisted for outstanding achlevement of tha yeaar in the Hatlenal
HAME Awards. The badge was dovoloped by Paul Attwal of the BAME Staff
Metwork. By displaying the S22 Me Firsi Bedge, the wesrer, is showing their
cormmitmant o Whitinglan Health's walues and echesa the sentiment of Dr
tarin Luthct King Jrihat people shotld ‘mof be judged by the rolous of hsir
skin, tut by the contert of thoir characiar

In tha zarme month, the Bosrd of Direciors of YWhittington Healh agreed the
following s:atement 1a affirm ils aommitment o promoting equality, diverssty and
inclusion:

“Tha Trusr iz an ooah. rrn-iudgemental and induaive organisation thar vl nof
Tolarate racism o discrimination. We celebrale the diversity of our stafl gnd
COMmURTE. MYe wilf oat all our staff sguitablly, with oignily and raspeact,
watever 1heir race, gender, religion. age, disabity or soxua! onontation. ™

Whittington Hoalth cntered an Imaging network with ather NHS rosts 0 Mo
Central London following suwccoesful collaboration during recovary fram the first
pandarmis wave,

We implerncntod a Matern [ty Transferimation Precirarmme b improwe
maternify services for local women, We alzs catied cut a salf-assessment
against imporant recommendations issusd by the Ockendeon review of makcmity
sahvicas at Shrewstry and Telford NHS Trust

Through the procuretment of ambulatery hysterascopy aequlpment, we
signficantly improved paitert experience, waiing times and azsisted clective
racovary by alkering a procedure in an outpatient setting under local anaestheiz,
which would ctharwiss have bean done under general anaesthstic in theaires
By wovking closely with cammiszionars, the GP Fadaration and othar Morth
Ceniral L.onder hospitals we helped to cstablish a gyneecology single point of
aceess 50 [hal routine referrals for patients in Haringsy and lelington ans now
gant to e gynascalagy callaborative for tringe, This enshled patients to be seen
Quicker and be given apcinimeants in the cammunily, wharg appropriate
Pathology serviges successfully implemeontzd a Covid-19 fast track sorvica and
was ong al ke firgt MHE 'sbarataries to Implement a pooling strategy fos
polymerags shakn reaction (POR) lesting to increase capeoity, We partnerad
withh Morth West Landon Patholegy as part of the 'Landon 17 nedack Covild-18
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response. We also supported tha national Public Healtl: England SIREMN study
by delivenng staff FCH and antibody tosting

o  Our Pharmagy seryvices’ team was excellent and czn highlight a nurnber of
achievemen:s last year in which hay:

o ostablizhed & phamacy transiomaton programme (Phoanix post-pandsintic

1o capitalise on the lgaming idencfied

o Gupporsd locsl intensive care tezms and the London Mightingale Haspital

duting Sovid- 19 peaks with tha draswlng up of key inlravanats madlelhes

o helped cstablish and delivar 2 kospital vacciratian hub and an estamal largs

scale vactination centrz in fhe community

o were shorlisted for a Health Technology Mews awerd for leading on the

increased use of alesfronic ouipatient preserbing across ell disciplings to
support virtual clinice and tha provision of medicinss a cutpatiants

o set up arrangemenzs for the lecal delivery o medicines with the supsot of

valuntears, peostal and couner services to ensure patients received their
madicings Firadghout lookdownzs and Covid-19 sunges

o introduced an in-sTtu simulaticn pregramime, with obeenation frem airling

pilats with human factors' expertise. This programme was naminaied for a
Healin Service Jouinal aweard
»  The outpatiant latter quallty Impravement project stated 1a improvs the
accessibeity of clinic icttors for paticnts. Thore were succossful outcomes
against the quality ariteria, and the project is now being relled ouf mone widely
actozs Whilllnglon Haallh
v A hlood transfusion awateness campaign launched in October 2020 and tho
emergency and integrafed medicing integrated clinizal servics unit achieved

100, Rar fraining of nursss on Care of Ceder People wards on blood trarstusions
v Baseling exorciscs around mobility wore complated as part of the haspital

deconditicning project, to idertify areas for targeted improvernent in 208122
v [n parnership with pravidars in Narth Central Bendon, wea astablizhed a

gouthern paediatric hub from Scptember 2020 to Apnl 2021, The hub teck

ha-:l saverpl sucoesses. inciuding:

z having snooverdll prediatric emergency department pafornance against
acosss standards of owvar 8449 with ovar AD attandancas par day on averace
The effectivie bringing together of clinical toams from all thneo sites, incleding
77 nurses, 4 ailisd heatth protessionzls. 12 health care assistants, 96 medical
atfl, and 7 teachers alongsids Whittingtor Health's existing t2am's exgzanded
inpatizit capacity frem 18 10 25 bads phis 8 pasdlatde shorl stay unit
beds, with an average bed occupancy of 17.9 en the inpatisnt vard

o The treatmant of an average of 3-4 child and adaloscont mental health

services [CAMHS) inpatients at any one time, with an inoregss in
presentalinns, but no increase inowaiting times

o The affar of a sevan-day discharge senvice zhd improving discharges wiich

helped to keop ward occupancy at a steady stata

2 Lang-temn benetits for chi:dren acrozs Morth Centra Londan, including the

gsteblishmeni and agreemant across all providers for a robust urclogy
pathway and a hubr model for the paedisine mental health leam
v [espie the challenges of she pandernic, staff in the children and young poople’s
zervices integrated clinical service unit continued to improve, Innovete and,

£l
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repaeived external accolades for highn guality scndces providad for tha local
population. In particular, they wsre able to highlight the following:

=
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A staff nurse from acule pasdlaides won the Bayel College of Mursing's bleck,
Asian and minotiiy ethnic (BAME} Rising Stars Aoward

The pasdiatic oncology sharcd cane unit service was naminalsd b a famihy
Al woen the Solving Kids' Cancer fward

Crur childran's aormmunity nuersing services weare finalists in three categories in
the Mursing Times”™ Awardz: childran and yaung people; long temm conditicns;
and tzam of the yoar

ur Paedietric Oncology Shared Cara Uniz et the critevia to become a
leikasmig tral sie

Adult Community Servicea:

We rapldhy redenlovss pur comrnunity stais e suppert ungent end essential
care during the pandamic surgas Lhls year and aur leams suppartad the
crtical care unit, hospital wards, diztrict nursing, rapid reasponze and
community rehabilitaion teams

Char carmmunity teams deliversd all of the Covid-19 vaccines in all care
homes and 10 holsaticurd residents acrss the Landon Beroughs of
Haringcy and |slingten

We successfully and rapidly implemonted vintual apocointmantz acrozs all adul
cammunty seqvees sines the first Covid-19 suge and we ran yony successful
virtual graups for areas such as waighl management and the expernt patient
programmc

Ve werz shorilisted for the Health Service Joumai’s Valua Awards for our
Wirlual Appointmenis project within the mu=sculeskelatal physiotharapy sevico
[ Maroh 20200 we weshs the et st in Noth Central London to estabiisk
and run Covid- 184 moniterang via cur wirtoal ward o kesp paFents safe ot
home

Dring the summer of 2020, the senvice established a Sovid-19 remote
rmanitering servige,

The rapid responsa virtpal ward service (FRVW service) zaw a total of
5,400 new paticnts betwean April 2020 - March 2021 and camplalad 14,1498
pEti=nt vigits

Decamber 2DA0 saw = sharp incresse in reiemals to the s2rvice. Betwaen 1
January 2021 arel 31 March 2021, remmote monitoring enabled the BREWIA to
succaszfully manage a total of 188 patients with Covid-18. The {eam wers
supported by nepumosed staff from many other commuanity sanvicss 0 help
menage the increass in activity; this invelved teaching patiants to usa salf
monitarng equipment which the ARV supplied and telephoning the paticnts
1-Z timas par day (o monitar spmptoms,. Any censems resulted in & face-to-
faco visit by the HRVW sanacs

In gddition, the team managed 5,201 patiants without cowvid But with higher
acuty needs than pre cowid times, as many paticnts wane reluctant to attsnd
hespaital.

We pilolad remote smartcards 1o allow our district nurses and cther
cormmunity &taff to writa thair clinical nates an raal me, improving &nd
streamlininy paticnt carc
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ro Tosuppen cur staff eopiag with such 8 challenging year. we sponsored A
COmmnLEly viergian of 'In Ous Cwn Words® which craatad a thaalvoal
performance and rafloction spaco from intervicws with our own staff, thanks o
the Wake ihe Beat Theatre Company

i e undercok an internal restructure to oresie new Care Groups to allow us
o contina our jounay o nlegrala with pariners gnd improve the
scamlossness of patiant cana

o Wiie worked with partners across the Narth Central London zactor to sct
up neyy senvices to susgort locel residents with post-Covid syndrome

The proggarmma managamant office fsam becamse a Quallty Impravesment

awatd winner for thoir vital rolo deliviing he viual conzultation platkaim,

Altend Anywhere, At the height of the Covid- 18 pandermic, 40% of our auipaticni

Activity wiy deliversd through video consutetions

In enhanced carc, thame was a 44% reduction it the use of agency staff to

0%, through the recruitment by June 2020 of a teem of 14 substantive enhanced

cara haalhogre gasistanis

There was alze 8 notabllo roduction in the nomber of patianis neading to attend

our frachire clinic in-perscn by moving sefetrals to @ virtual fracture clinic.

Irmplementing this vifual frasture clinic meant there was an 80%: redugfion in in-

persan fractuse elinic: appointments, resuliing in 2,200 lEwar In-pansen

attendanceos o yoar

Ir: ur emergency and integrated medicine integrated ¢linical serviee unit,

wia can cite tha fellewing:

o Tho maost necognised achicvemant of 202002021 was tha responzs to tha
Covid-19 pandeniic. The multi-disciplinany team came togothor to provide safc
care for patienta both suffering trom Cavid-19 and thase who were not, It was
an axeapticnal msponzs which sanlrad on leamworking, respact g the
sharcd vision of patient safety

o The pandemic was & driver behing the rapid transgformation of outpatient
seryiges, Thare was an increase in virtual apprintmeants with the introductian
of Attand Ampwhers. Referral pathways were streamlined wiih the rasult
that patiants spen’ le2s time at apecintnants and recaiad their results sagnset

o A key achievemont of 2020 was the recovery of the endoscopy backlog
fullowing the first surge of Cowid- 79, Whittington Heglth ensured all patients
wallineg wera Seen 45 soon as possible following the release of lockdown ans
also affarsd mutual aik to NHS srovidets in the North Cantral London seciaor.
Chur collaboraaee work wish the Royal Froo Londan MHS Foundation Trust
end Universily College Lendon Hospitals MHS Foundation Trust provides a
greet apportunily for Whittington Health to bsgome a leader in
gastresnlarolagy andd endascapy sendees in Marth Central Landon

o Tha implamantation of an advancad training caurse during 2020520249
upskilled a numbot of nugses on cach ward to bo ablc to look aftor level 2
palients, This initiative had a great benesit to patient safety but also the
develasrrent of staff

o The cara of older parsonz wnit cpenad a new damentiz frlendly roam on
Cavell ward which is docorated like 2 garden shed. This arsa allows paticns
to feel af ease whilst they are on the ward and gets thewn cut of bed and into &
e relaxed enviranment, s full of getivifies, which are clinfzally provean to

Fags 12 of 1546



=

[

hEIrF:-I petients with domeantia, to kaewe petiznts relaxed during their siay on the
wa

A new hame infusion service for vulnerable thalassamia patlents was set
up during the firsl wiave of Covid-19 which delivered acecssible canc forthese
whe noodad it the most. The s&rvics meant that pafients did net need o visdt
the hospital site for thair transfusien and could slay in the safsty of their owa
fiofme with & practiticner vwisiting them

Following a pallent's hospital dizcharge or & community diagnosiz of ©owvid-
1%, the respiratony deparimeni set up a referral pathwey to be able to follow
up any patients with lasting effects from Cowid-19, Cver time, this
developed into & sector wide agproach which pramales collabarative werking
acress trrsls for petients within Morth Coniral Lendon

» Jur surgery and cancer Intagrated clinical service unit can highlight the
following successeas:

o

L]

c

Whilz el services were greatly affected by the pandarmic tha alirleal service
unit respended guickly end worked tireleasly to align practices to lecal and
national guidarca arcund patient safety, This meant that staff had o adopt to
nes ways of working and commmunlcating to ensors that patients continued to
recena the carg and treatmont they requived and 3 pozitive patient sxpeiencs
Qur critical care unit extended their capacity during the first surge 1o deal
with the patdamle: peak, This required large numbers of stadf to bo re-
deployed from ather areas and specialitiss o assist with the delivery of paticnt
Gare

Learting [t the first surge was consolidated and providad a more informed
posticn for the secand sume, The practice development team sot up a leval 2
high dependency unit coursa and S-wesl dsvel 3 course for nurses to
increase their skils for caing for crtically unwsl peallents

Stafsuppart farmed an integral par of the recovany and preparation {or Lhe
sacond surge and the gitival cars enit inlroduced drep-in peychelagical
seszions for siaff

AE & 'no wisiter policy was implamstited, allermalive ways of communicating
with patient’s relatives werz rsed. Btaff used available tachnafoogy so hat
lcvad ohes cauld cortinue io gommunicate with the patient virtowally. The
clinical psychalogy taam wers alzo sbls to support palent's femilies via
suppost calls

Fatients in the critical canz unit had a dlavy complated by staff. This provided
ah Insighi 1o the patient and their relatives in nendmedical language az Lo what
happened that dzy, The diaries were paticulady uscful during this tirme and
havo bean wali evaluatad by patlents

Elzctive in-patcnt and day case surgery were suspended durng both
pandzmic surges snd cur recovery amsa Bacame an exension of critical csre.
Eleciive gaesarian-section lists condnued guring the pandeanic

wWe warked in eallsboration with the independent sector so that patienis whe
requircd urgant surgery, patlleulady for cancer, continued to have surgory

Elective in-patient 2urgeny started its racovery programme in July 2020 tollowing the
first surge and then again in April 2021 iollowing the second zirge, This required a
hiuge effon 1 re-design theafre processes and create new patlent pathways o
ansure patient safelyTheatres elso developed a new and safer anaasthetie
checklist syatem with suppert [rom prasject wingmen end in response to Carc Cuality
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Commizston recommendations, The chechklist is in use and being led by the
ahaesthetle taam

As parn of recovery, Bridges ward apened in early Saptembar 2020, Thiz helped o
increase capacily to accommodats tha increasc in paticnts reguiting day case surgony
and to supparn calleagues in endoscopy o socommodate their requesied increase in
rApaity

An alectranie patiant guastlonmalrs was intmducad o alow for the triaga of patisnts
and to reduceo :he necd for faco-io-tace appointnerts. The on-ling pre-gssessmont
form is emaeied to patients to complete and return for review and to detemine if the
patiert pescerd to be Seen oroould be approved for surgeny

Marcers ward changad spacially to became a Covid-18 ward during the firet surge
and likcwize Covle was convenad dusing the sscond surgs with an increased bad
capacity, Both wards did an amazing jok under the leadarship of tieir ward mansgers
to deliver safe and guality sare to these groups of pafients in suck challenging
circumstances. Marears has now Bbesh raconllgurad 1o acecammodsie elactive wiork
following charges acmoss Naith Central Londen

Clinical services cortinued without reductions or rationalisation of treatments in the
second wave. The teamn dealt with patients who are more complex, mare trequently
whh advanced ddizease at disgnosis and a highee Sncidencs of ansiety and or
paycholocical neads associatad with extanded izolation and pandamic fears. Tha
chematherapy suiic was relocated to Eddington ward whan the local wards began to
admit patients with Cavid-19

Tie chematherapy service rapldly implemented a3 patient snd stafl swaihing
protocol. Waekhy meetings within Mortb Central Bondon's chamotharapy teams
supportcd ehancd loarning arcund paticnt safoty and the cady recognition of carc and
service delivery risks and apportunites to access mutual support

Tie eolorectal stratified pathway weas audited aro svalieted positively. Plans ang in
place ta commanca the stratifisd pathway within braast sanices

In March 2020, Whiltington RHoalth was onc of the first frusts o set up urgent dental
hubs, across Math Centeel and Mesh West London, for petients who had no access
1o & deotlst, We saw putiznts frarm all ever Landon (and beyend) and treated & steady
stream or paopla with pain, Trauma, or infectian. Fram Jane 2020, we reh rauting dental
sonvicas, and by Octobar wonz hitting noady 90% of pre-pandemic activity i aur
community s=ttings. Our elsciive genetel anaesthesia liztz also restarted providing
grucisl areess far high pricity children

I the swinter surga, as in tha Trat wavs, dantal stafl wers redeplayed into cfitical cars,
and the communisy dental 2emvices again camied on. Wea warg innowvative:  froem
treating more peoglz under sedation than ever befora, to swabbing pre-operative
patientz &t home, and develeping access for marginalised group such as the
nomeless. Finally, we have worksd glessly with collsugues at Universty Callegs
Lohdan Hespitale NHS Foundation Trust in tha recaovery (o (Urker devalop our clinical
notworks

Operational management tzams worked haed to manzsgo growing watting lists for
treatment, Medical staff were vsed venr well across specidlities, and teams supported
each olher [o deflver surgery across faar defferent losations all with sllghlly dilferant
ways of waorking at each different site. Tha kay 1o sUCcAss Was intadradicon and
communication with other NHS providors across MCL and other arcas to optimize
patient care

We rolled out digital elinigal notes for inpatieni servizes from sdmission in the
emergency dapariment Traugh 1o discharge from e ward. This means our patignls’
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clinical notes can ba focatzd guickly and can be used by the differsnt membears of
staff to aid safe offoctive cam

Stedt can now aecess iheir pationts records with a single log in through Carsflow
Woarkspace. This saves staft time from having to log inio soparats systams far aach
patiant thay zse. Tils sgved time is then redeployed to patien: facing care on the
front linc

Wilh the dezloyment of the innowvatives Patfant Flew solullan o our wards, staff can

ansure ey give consistent excellzrt canc and facilitating safe and swit discharge
back to thair korme
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PERFORMANCE
How we measure performance

Our Board and ils key committees use a pedormance scorecard which has been
developed to include a suite of quality and other indicators at Trust and service level,
This enables the centralised reporting of performance and quality data as well as the
improved triangulation of information. The scorecard is based on the Care Quality
Commission's five domains of quality: safe, effective, caring, responsive and well
led. The salection of indicators is based on NHS England and Improvement's
guidance for national outcome areas and the Trust's local priorties. On a quarterly
basis, progress is also reviewed against our strategic objectives.

2020/21 Performance outcomes and analysis

As part of the response to Covid-19, NHS England and Improvement agreed to pausa
or stop collecting monitoring data for some national indicators. The impact of the
pandemic on many performance indictors has been significant.

The year-end position against a suite of indicators used to measure performance is
outlined in the following tables.

Table one: At a glance performance against national targets in 201%/20 and
2020/21

202021 sl
Actusls (“same Nigures using
Mi1 dota again lor * diffarence
M1 2}

Admiasions 080
harrElectiee Admissions 18,408 15,574 5.
Elecite Admisgitnsg 2257 =1 1] -BE.315%
Cay Casa 21,80 4,39 -39 255
ED sfiendances 107,600 BIATT ERATS
Face (o Face Patient Conlscts 207951 20emEt = Diffarance
Al gur hospital 545,027 447,108 178
I the commuraty T4, 104 385 373 -40.56%
Total 1,284,131 B2 48 35857
Coamamiunity 201930 i % DiMeranca
Cammunity Mumsing Yisils 206 468 22T 1ED I3 AR,
Phiyssa Appolntmend 847TS 2,577 0E R
Haalth mnd Schosl Nurse Visd 4T ars a1, 7T £3.9¥%
Daraal anpoinimen| 41,432 31,340 24 A
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mmm:;"“"““ Ny REnMS ARt 20120 2020 Nites
KP| description Target | Outcoms | Targel | Oulcome
Admisskon to adull facililles of patients aged o a “ 0
urler 16
incidarcs of Clastndium Ciflcile® 18 @ =14 12
Aclual faks &0 406 A 370
Harm Free Care %) =55% B TH% 5% Mt longer reported
Hon-Elecine C-saciion 18ie (%) <18% 22% <18% o lpnges reporied
Medicabon amors causing saraus ham 0 a 0
Incidanca of MASA i ] ] 2
Heavar Evanis® a L 0 1
Salaly Incidenis By, a3 s 17
WTE risk assessment 1% =BRRE - Of 308 »55 T AR
Mined sou szcommodation bresches a i o a Suspended through pandemic
Efective - people's care, treatiment and

achieve good outeomes, pramote a RS
gooel ualily of i snd are bised 5n th best 201920 202021
available evidence
KPI dascription Target | Ouicome | Target | Duloome
Biroastieeding initiabed =905 ¥l 72% =80 01 .50%:
Sanaciiny at delivery i, 4 B i .20
Men-alagiive ra-admissions 'Aﬂhﬁ‘lﬁil-ﬂﬂri <5.0% 5305 <5, 5% B17%
mmmﬂwmmm L 863 100 895 fhec 2018 — Nov 2020
mmwmmm 100 7.4 100 §7.7 Dac 2018 - Nov 2020
Morality rete pee 1000 admissions in-months T B 14.4 11.3
I&PT Maving o Fecoveny e B T w50 6, O Apr 2090 = Mar 2021
e Snan wilhin 2 Paurs of refarmal 8 digirict
rrsing night =E0%: el T »E8{% B B
ﬂmm:::nl!hmmuhﬂnnnd’uﬁu SEE% 86.00% aGER E5 10%
o HIEIE PRESILE wilh-h Sonitwn Seeenent | sres || v | -row | o1sox Mty 2090 - Jan 2021
b :F'“I"i"'l ! mm‘”‘ Hgraitnt 5% | srare | a7sn | serom Apr 2020 - Dee 2020
"= wuight foss achiaved at gischaigs 5% % ~65%: Ta.80% Jur 2020 - Jam 221
Caring - Involving people In ihesr cane and
traating them with compasaion, kindness, i kel 20201
dignity snd respeci
KP| description Tarpat | Outcome | Target | Oulcoms
Erl'm!ﬂ'lnr departmant = FFT % poaitive =60 ai% =50 BE. B0 Do 2020 - Mar 2021
Emergancy depanmsant — FFT responss rale w15% 12% »15%, 110, 40% Doz 2080 - Mar 2021
inpatiants — FFT % positive o 97507 w20 0. %% Dac A0 - Mar 2081
Inpatants = FFT rasponsa rate =25% 21800 >25% 11.20% Dae 2020 - Mar 2029
Marierhity - FFT % posthve =8P 4.7 0% > .60 Dac 3070 - Mar 2021
Maiemily - FFT reaponss rabe =1E% 4% »15% B.00% Dwac 220 - bar 2021
Oubpafanis - FFT % positve E B4 400 >80 5. B0 Dhasz 30210 - Iy 2021
Outpabants - FFT redporses 4400 FELT 4,400 ATH D 2020 - Mar 2021
Cammunity - FFT % postiive =00 9570 =25 B0 s D 20120 - Mar 20021
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Cammisily - FFT responses 18,500 Aa3aA 16800 | 7ea e 2020 - Mar 2021

Trued Componta FFT - % recommand » 5% 80, B =B 2%

Stat FFT - % recommend =10 T AT =70% T4

Complainis responged to wihin 25 working days =B0% H2.00% =B0% B30

RAesponsive - arganising services 5o that they Hh L
are tailored to people’s needs So1aw 202041
Emangency dapatmenl waits — & hours »05% BB A BT A0
Blestian wait hor freasmen {minubes) <B0 ming | Thming | <£0mina 15
Arnfulence handovers wading mom than 30

g SE1 1] 143
Aminance handovers wading moes than G0 &0 o o8
minctes

12 hour tralsey wails in ABE

Cancer — 14 days o linet sean 04 B =A% BB

Conger - 31 days to fist freaiment 2%, =% BTG

Cancer - B2 days from rafemal io trasmant 88 50%

Diagnostic waly (<& wieks) ST 0% ) T2 10%
?‘-;m-immmmm_gﬂ! wghs peiee | oo | esome

Mumbar of pafionis waSng ower
2 a 1324 52 wnirks al the and ol Masch
202

= | § ({553 = | -
£
E
§

Aefarms Io trantmeni Bmo over S2 vwooks

‘Wall led - Inadaranlp, management and

governance of the organisaticn assure ihe
dedivery of high-guality person-centred care, 201829 202021
support leaming and innavation, and promaote

an opan and fair cullure

KPI description Target | Outcome | Target | Dutcams
Stal approisal mda (%) >0 T4.A0% 251% 64, 50%
Mardaory raireng mes (5 =00% 816 =B 7407
Parmanent statfirg WTESs utilised =00, BE O B BB
Sl sickness malo (%) £ A0 L <A B 4 3
m-mmrmgaum wE0P% 54,00 S BB T
Sl urnover ke Sa) =105, 10708 <105 10, 10
Wacancy imle sgalnst esisnlshmsnt %) <10 1.80% <10 11,60%

As shown above, outcomes against several targets ware significantly affected by the
Covid-19 pandemic and resulted in a lower-than-expected performance. In particular,
the following should be noted:

= Activity across all points of delivery saw significant reductions in numbers, with
elective admissions (including day cases) and community services seeing the
biggest fall

« There was an increase in the number of incidences of clostridium difficile,
however, performance remained below target
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« The number of Never Events reduced to 1, compared to the previous year

= While our mortality rate increased as a direct conseguence of the pandemic, it
remained ahead of target

= Covid-19 adversely impacted on all our community services which were stepped
down during the first pandemnic wave following a national instruction from NHS
England. Last year saw Increases in the backlog of patients, reduced clinical
availability and increased inflating waiting times. Community services’ staff were
also redeployed to support the pandemic itself and the vaccination programme.

= Data submission and publication for the friends and family test was restarted for
acute and community providers from December 2020, following the pause during
the response to Covid-19

* |mprovements took place in our emergency department and included a reduction
in the numbers of ambulance handover waits for both 30 minutes and 60 minutes,
However, we continued to deliver perfformance just below the 85% target against
the four-hour access standard

+« There were 20 12-hour trolley wait breaches in 2020/21. Eight of these were
mental health breaches. The 12 non-mental health breaches happened during a
two-week perniod at the peak of the pandemic during January 2021
Performance against the national diagnostic waiting target was not achieved
Two out of three of the cancer performance indicators were achieved, however,
performance against the 82-day target was not compliant.

+« There was an increase in patients waiting over 52 weeks since their referral to
treatmant. This was directly related to the pandemic and the overall reduction of
elective patients being treated. All patients waiting over 52 weeks were of clinical
low priority and were clinically reviewed to ensure no patient came to harm

+ The staff sickness absence rate was higher than the expected target with sickness
with the pandemic being the main contributor of the increase

* We continued to improve on or maintain staff turnover rates and vacancy rates,
but struggled to deliver the required staff appraisal and mandatory training rates’

targets
Monitoring performance

The Trust's performance management framework acknowledges the national context
and addresses local quality and service priorities. Whittington Health has a culture of
continuous improvement using the cycle of performance management and uses a
system of pedformance reporting against agreed measures and quality priorties. The
monthly performance scorecard allows continuous monitoring of specific datasets such
as quality and finance, service specific information and deviation from commissionad
targets. This information is used to monitor compliance with service standards and
contract review and is used to populate national extemal data sels.
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QOutcomes against key scorecard indicators are reported to the weekly executive team
meating, twice a month to the Trust's Management Group, monthly o respective
Integrated Clinical Service Unit (ICSU) Boards, regularly to board commitiees, monthly
to the Trust Board itself and are monitored and reviewed through quarterly performance
reviews with the ICSUs. All reports are discussed at these meetings to identify reasons
for any underperformance, as well as reviewing progress of any remedial action plans
put in place. The Trust continues to review performance to ensure we continug o
monitor the things that matter to the delivery of high-guality care.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Spending on agency and temporary staff

The Trust was set a very challenging agency cap target by NHS Improvement of £8.8m
for 2020/21, the same as it was for 2019/20's outtum. The Trust ended the financial
year £0.5m below the cap. The Covid-19 pandemic meant that normal patterns of
usage could not be relied upon, but there was a marked shift towards the use of bank
staff, which impacted on our agency spend.

The Trust is aware that maintaining and improving our performance in relation to the
use of agency and temporary staff is fundamental to delivering high quality care and
financial sustainability. Following Trust's transfer of its temporary staff management to
Bank Pariners in June 2019, Whittington Health has continued to develop other
measures to monitor and control agency usage.

Financial position

The Trust agread a deficit plan of £3.89m for the period September to March 2020/21.
The Trust reported a breakeven position from April to September 2020/21 in line with
the guidance from NHS Improvement. Arrangements in place throughout the year
meant that additional funding previously available was not so in 2020/21 through the
provider sustainability fund, the financial recovery fund, and the marginal rate
emergency tanff. The Trust delivered a £0.05m surplus for 2020/21 after adjustments
for fixed asset impairments and Covid-related donations of assets and inventory, This
was £3.9m better than plan.

This means that the Trust has either delivered or performed better than plan for six
consecutive years. While the Trust has been able to mest its financial targets for the
year, 2020/21 was nol been a typical year. As longer-term financial arrangements
become more stable, it is intended that this longer-term financial securty will be
maintained,

Going concern and value for money

As with previous years, the 2020/21 annual accounts were prepared on the going
concem basis. This is in line with the Depariment of Health & Social Care's accounting
guidance, which states that the Trust is a going concem if continuation of services
exists. We have detalled above the positive trend in the Trust's finances. This
improvement means that the Trust is now complying with the Department of Health &
Social Care's duty to break even over a three-year period.

Financial performance and statement of financial position

Above, we detailed the Trust's financial position for the year ending 31 March 2021,
which indicated effective arrangements in the use of resources and a positive trend in
financial results. However, as a Trust we continue o face a challenging financial
future. Pay expenditure exceeded our budgeted level by £17.6m last year. The main
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driver for the overspend on pay was additional expenditure incurred due to the
pandemic offset by additional income.

MNon-pay expenditure exceeded budgeted levels by £17.1m. The principal movements
behind this were the utilisation of donated consumables for the Trust's Covid
response, offset by income; impairments relating to revaluation of the Trust estate;
and, additional costs incurred relating to the pandemic offset by income.

Cash

The Trust was in a strong cash position throughout 2020/21 and ended the financial
year with £61.5m in cash. This was £34.1m higher than at the end of 2019/20 and
resulted from the receipt of public dividend capital (PDC) funding through the year and
strong collection rates on debt from both NHS and non-NHS organisations.

During the year, the majority of the Trust's loans were converted to PDC issued by the
Department of Health & Social Care. In addition, the Trust received a number of PDC
amounts conceming capital schemes.

The Trust is not anticipating any significant cash issues in 2021/22 and has forecast
to recycle cash holdings into capital programmes for future years, most notably into
the Trust's estate strategy.

Property, plant and equipment

The Trust's outturn capital expenditure for the year was £21.3m, which matched our
Capital Resource Limit. (The Trust retained £0.1m of Covid-related donated assets as
at the year-end.) Notable schemes within these levels of spend were investments in
the Whittington Education Centre, updates to information technology and hardware,
and assets relating to the Trust's Managed Equipment Service.

Heceivables (debtors)

The Trust's recelvables at the end of the financial year were £18.9m. This was £25.7m
lower than in 2019/20, These decreases were driven by lower levels of NHS
recaivables from clinical commissioning groups as the Trust (and the wider NHS)
moved to block contracts because of the Covid-18 pandemic. There was also strong
performance during the year in the collection of other old and current year debts,

Payables (creditors)

The Trust's payables at the end of the financial year were £52.4m. This was £0.9m
higher than in 2019/20, Overall, creditor performance decreased slightly compared
with the previous year. The Trust paid 80% of the value of invoices within 30 days,
compared with B7% in 2019/20. Non-NHS performance improved slightly to B7.5%
while NHS performance fell to 30.4% due to the additional administration effects of
paying bills cutside of block contracts during the pandemic.
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RISKS

The Trugt has a reoust sisk managemeant policy and pracess as outlined in the annuel
govamancg slalament telow. For the purpozes of this annual reper, the key fske an
our 202021 Board Assurance Framework wara as fallaws:

i Failure to provide cars which iz 'sutstancding” In belng cansls ently safe, carlng,

| respansive, cffecive orwell-led and which provides a positive exgetiance far our
patients and families, dus to emrors, or lack of canc or Jacx of fioscurces, rcauds in
poorer petisnt experience, herm. & Ioss of iIneeme. an adverss impact upon staff
ratanticn and damane Lo amanisational repuiation

Lack of capaalty, dus o second wave of Govid-19, or winter pressures results in
iong dalayz in the amergancy dacanmant, inability ta slass palizns whe reduina
high dependency and intensive cant, and patiant2 not recaring tha cara they noad
across hospitel and commuenity heath services

Fetizrts o & diagnostic and‘or fregtrent paihway (elactive and cormmunity] &t risk
al delarioration dus to insufficient capacity to restart snough elective surgeny and
other ssrvicas [z a rasult of Cavid-18 [nfaclion Prevention & Gontral guidanaes),
resuiting in futherilnass, doath ar the nead far graatsr intansntion at a later
stege.

tack of attertion to other h&ﬂ-; 'E:Ti"r;.i-c'_al_pérf-:-rmance targets, due to other Covid-18
pricrilas, er reduced capahilily, lswds to deterdoration of service quality and patient
Care.

Lack of sufficient staff, due ta second Cavld-19 rasults in Inarzgsad Infaallon rales
and incroascd staff absonce, of the impacts of tha UK s axit fram the EL lead to
increased pressure on staff, a reduction in quality of care and insufficient cagacty
tor desl with demend.

Paychclogical and physical pressures of wark due 1o Cavid-18 impact and lower
rasilience in 21aff, resulting in a deleriorgtion in behaviours, culure, morale and the
psycholodicat weltbeing of staff and impacis advarsaly on staff absanas and tha
recnitrent and yetenton of stadf.

Being unabic to cmoowcr, sugport and devalzp 2taff, dus to poor managermant i
practices, lack of dezling with builying and harassment, poor communication and
engagement, poar deliveny on eguality, diversity and inclusion, or insutticient
resclraas, leads 1o dizengaged stafl gnd higher fumover,

| political prassuras, of previder sampatition, rasuls in same Whilllaglen Haalth
i senvices bocoming fragile or unsustainatle, or decommizsicned and therefong
: threatens the strafegic wiability of the Trost
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Failure to cffoctively maxinnise e opportunity through systom waiking, duc o a
fopus an near term issues. results in not selving the chadlenges of tragile services
ang sub-optirnal clinical patheays,

The progress made on integration with partne'r-s- i [i-'l.'lt back, duz Covid-18
presslres, and g systzm fotuys an aeetz pathways, resulting in benefits praviauosly
gained baimng last.

Tha healh and wallbsing of the poulation s made worse, dia 1o thea lack of
Available imvestont or focus on angoing cam and prevantion work, resulting in
demand after the Cowid-19 cutbreak keing consideralzhy highor than gre-Cowid-13,

Gowncd-18 cost pressures wre not collectsd properly and ar noi funded properly, dus
to pocr irternal systems, lack of funding ar prAcitizatian of otheas trusis’ nesd, and
as 4 result cur undoslying doficit worsons

Failure of koy infrastructure, due to insafficient madornisation of the cstate or
insufzizient mitigation, results in patient kerm or redceed capacity in the hospital

Unequal investment In services, due to iack of clanty over the MHS funding regime
and athar trusts taking pppontunities, or ushed decisians, |sads ta | migmaleh of
gUality of provision far aur papulaton and delay, reducticn, or caneelling of kay
investment projests for the Trust

, Failunz to transfom scrvices to deliver savings plan, duc to poor contrel or

. inzufigiznt flexibility under 2 block contrect, resulis in adverse undedying finanscial
posillon, shcd failura 40 b ontol tokal, that puts pressue on future years
invEstmeant prodrammas and racutational sk

. Tho stopping or dalay of axisting transfornation projects (g.g. othopasdics

" pathology ¢ locelities f materaity  estates), doce to the facus on immedsate izsues
arciend the Covid-1% restart. resulis in savings and improvements to patient cans,

; ol belnr realized

Eoch of thesa rzke had a clear mitigaticn plan and assuiance procsss. The ooard
considared other rsks :hroughout the year as shey aross, including for example the
tisk of loging staff or being unabl=s to recruit @s a result of the UK's deparure from tha
Evropean Lnion,
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DELIVER CONSISTENT, HIGH QUALITY, SAFE
SERVICES

The organisation continued on its joumey through the Better Never Stops initiative and
the newly formulated Quality Improvement faculty to continually improve the quality of
our sarvicas and the expenence of the people who use our senvices,

In the last year the Trust focussed on supporting and preparing staff and services to
deal with the Covid-19 pandemic. There has been an enomous nationwide approach
to this which has presented its own challenges. The executive team has tried to be as
supportive and visible as possible, during what has been a very challenging time for
patients and staff.

The accountable cofficers for quality are the medical director and the chief nurse and
director of allied health professionals; for quality assurance, the lead officer is the chief
nurse and director of allied health professionals.

Registration with the Care Quality Commission

Whittington Heath is registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) without any
conditions. The CQC did not carry out any inspections of the Trust in 2020/21.

The table below provides the rating summary table for the CQC's final report publishad
in March 2020 following its previous inspection in December 2019 of four core services.
The Trust's current CQC overall rating from that assessment is ‘Good' for Whittington
Health, with 'Outstanding’ ratings for our community health services and performance
against the CQC's Safe domain.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020, a number of the actions were put on hold and
some have now been superseded by amended pathways and new ways of working
developed in light of the pandemic. The CQC action plan remains a focus for
improvement through the Trust's Better Never Stops programme.

During 2020/21, the CQC's approach to inspection and monitoring adapted to meet the
challenges of the pandemic, and supported Trusts, Regular meetings were held with
our CQC Relationship manager during 2020/2021 and mainly focused on the following:

+ Staff wellbeing and support (during and post Covid-19)
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+ Restarting elective services
»  Serous incident investigations and CQC enguiries
» Infection prevention control and personal protective equipment

A Covid-19 vaccination monitoring assessment call with the CGC took place on 5 March
2021 in relation to the vaccination hub where Whittington Health NHS Trust is the
provider, This went very well and significant assurance was given by the CQC in relation
to this.

Quality pricrities

Our quality priorities, as set out in the Quality Account, are aligned to the Trust's
commitment to helping local people live longer, healthier lives and build on factors
such as quality performance, clinical or public proposals and our 'Better Never Stops’
ambition, to continually improve and provide even better care,

2020/21 brought unprecedented challenges and ensuring patient safely, while
providing a good patient experience and positive outcomes throughout the pandemic
has been our top pricrity. Whittington Health recognises that to achieve sustainable
improvement, projects needed to be long-term and affectively-monitored so that the
priorities set in 2020 continued as part of a three-year improvement plan:

+ Improving communication (between staff and patients, and across mulli-
disciplinary teams)
Reducing harm from hospital acquired deconditioning
Improving blood transfusion safety culture at the hospital
Improving understanding of human factors and the impact on making healthcare
as safe as possible

Key achievements from 2020/21 included:

« Thea introduction of an in-situ simulation programme, with observation from airline
pilots for human factors expertise. This programme has been shortlisted for a
Health Service Journal award

* An outpatients’ letter Quality Improvement project commenced to improve the
accessibility of clinic letters for patients. There have been successful cutcomeas
against the quality criteria, and the project is now being rolled out more widely
across the Trust

» A blood transfusion awareness campaign was launched in October 2020 and the
emergency and integrated medicine ICSU trained 100% of nursing staff on our
care of older people wards for blood transfusion

« A baseline exercise around mobility was completed as part of the hospital
deconditioning project, to identify areas for targetled improvement in 2021/22
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Freedom to Speak up Guardian

The Trust is pleased to report that the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian (FTSUG) for
Whittingten Health is now firmly established, is well known and respected across the
Trust and maintains a high level of visibility across the hospital and community sites,
and across many professional groups. During the year, the Guardian focused work
on supporting staff and services impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. To maintain
the Trust's requireaments for infection prevention and control precautions (including
social distancing and supporting colleagues working remotely or shielding), new
ways of raising concems were astablished such as phone call appointments and
virfual meetings. The Guardian continues to work closely with the communications
team to review the Trust's media activity and promation to refresh a focus on
speaking up, The Guardian offers constant supervision and support o consolidate
the network of Speak Up Advocates which was successfully established last year.
Currently the network has 33 Advocates, across job roles and services, trained to
actively listen to colleagues raising concems.

In March 2021, the NGO (National Guardian Office) published the results of the
annual survey of the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian network. The report reviews
NHS providers' responses and activity in suppont of speaking up within
organisations. It included a survey of Guardians across the NHS and the response is
an improving one. For example, the Guardians' perceived that overall, the speaking
up culture is improving, with 84% of respondents feeling that the speaking up culture
in their organisation had improved in the last twalve months.

The NGO Freedom to Speak Up Index for 2020 is a key metric for organisations to
monitor their speaking up culture. Following the data that was captured in the 2019
NHS staff survey, the Trust is incredibly pleased to have improved its overall FTSU
Index score by 3% (78.9%) from 2018 (75.9%) making it 1o the top ten most
improved Trusts in England for 2019. A score of 70% is perceived as a healthy
culture and it is pleasing to see tracking above average and improvements year on
year. It is noted in the Index that fostering a positive speaking up culture is a key
leadership responsibility and that organisations with higher FTSU Index scores tend
to be rated as Outstanding or Good by the Care Quality Commission.

In June 2020, the Trust's Board received the case review of past Freedom to Speak
Up cases undertaken by the NGO. There is an action plan in place to take forward
the recommendations highlighted. The areas for development included adopting
national changes to the Trust’s policy on speaking up; ensuring that arrangements
ara in place for thanking and giving feedback to those who did speak up; and
improving the process for managing grievances. Much of this has been completed
and a new grievance policy was introduced earlier this year and fraining delivered for
80 mediators to support managers and staff.

The plan for the next twelve months is to focus on the response of managers and
leaders to staff who speak up and will be focused around a new NGO Freedom lo
Speak Up e-learning package, in association with Health Education England. The
first module — Speak Up — is for all workers. The second module, Listen Up, for
managers, focuses on listening and understanding the barriers to speaking up.
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PATIENT SAFETY
Serious incidents

The Sencus Incident (SI) Executive Approval Group (SIEAG), comprising the Medical
Director, Chief Murse and Director of Allied Health Professionals, Chief Operating
Officer, the Head of Quality Governance and Serious Incident Coordinator, meets
weekly to monitor and review Serious Incident investigation repors as defined within
MHS England’'s Serious Incident Framework (March 2015). In addition, intermnal root
cause analysis investigations and resulting recommendations and actions are
monitored and reviewed by the panel.

All Sis are reported to North East London Commissioning Support Unit via the
Strategic Executive Information System (STEIS) and a lead investigator is assigned
by the clinical director of the relevant Integrated Clinical Service Unit (ICSU). All
serious incidents are uploaded to the National Reporting and Leaming System.

In 2020V21 there were 17 serious incidents reported on STEIS. This is a reduction on
the 32 incidents reported in both 2019/20 and 201819,

A bl-annual Sl report for 2018 - 2020, reviewing themes and trends, was presented to
the Quality Assurance Committee in July 2020. This report highlighted that the number
of Sls has steadily reduced from 1.1% of all incidents in 2015/16 to 0.4% in 2019/20,
reflecting both an increase in incident reporting as part of Whittington's open patient
satety culture, as well as improvements in patient safety. In line with the Mational
Patient Safety Strategy, the focus is on leaming from investigations and implementing
recommendations, with measures such as round table discussions, process mapping
exercises and aggregated themed reviews.

Due to the Covid-12 pandemic, some changes were made to streamline the SIEAG
review process. The SIEAG Panel continued to meet throughout the pandemic, with a
focus on immediate actions to mitigate patient safety risks. Investigation reporis are
now reviewad by a designated Executive Lead with the key learning shared at the
Panel, which has reduced administration without reducing the guality of reports.
MNationally, imeframes for S| reports were removed; however, the Trust continues to
work to completing investigations as soon as is practical.

On completion of the report the patient and/or relevant family member received an
outcome letter highlighting the key findings of the investigation, actions taken to
improve services, what had been leamt and what steps were being put in place. A
‘being open’ meeting is offered in line with duty of candour recommendations. The
report is sharad with tha patient and/or family as requested. This is ideally done at a
face-to-face meeting.

Lessons leamed following each investigation were shared with all staff and ICSUs

involved in the care provided, through various methods including the Big 4" in theatres,
and ‘message of the week' in maternity, obstetrics and other departments.
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Learning from incidents is shared through Trust-wide multimedia including a leaming
zone on the Trust intranel, a regular patient safety newsletter, the Chief Executive's
monthly team briefing and the weekly, electronic all siaff, Noticeboard.

MNever Events

A Mever Event is defined as a senous, largely preventabla, patient safety incident that
should not cceur if the available preventative measures have been implemented.

During 2020/21, the Trust declared cne Never Event (this was reported in March 2020
and declared as a Sl mesting Never Event criteria in April 2020, following review at
SIEAG), a decrease from last year (six Never Events reported in 2019/20).

The Never Event related to an incident in the emergency department during the first
wave of Covid-19, where a patient requiring oxygen was inadvertently connected to
air. The incident occurred because an air flowmeter had been left in-situ. As a
congequence of this incident, the emergency department switched to the use of air
compressors and the air ports have been securely capped, removing the risk. A further
review of the ‘air flowmeter risk assessment’ was carmed out Trustwide, and a number
of additional clinical areas identified as suitable for swilching to the use of air
compressors, with the air ports semi-permanently blocked off. Any areas where air
flowmeaters are still clinically necessary have regular local checks in place to monitor
compliance and a monthly Trustwide oxygen / air flowmeter audit. This incident did not
result in any harm to the patient involved,

Never Events reported by Whittington Health 2015-
2020
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®Wong site surgary

® Wrong implant / prosthesis

# Retained foreign object post-procedurs

® Misplaced naso or orgogastne fubes

® Unintentional connection of a patient requiring cxygen to an air flowmeter

A detailed review of Mever Events from 2019/20 was carried out as pan of the bi-
annual Sl themed report (2018-20) in 2020/21 which highlighted a number of issues
to address, in paricular the recognition of human factors and the need to make
systems robust to mitigate the risk of human error. In addition to practical changes as
a result of the Never Events, which provide physical barriers to human eror (for
example, removal of reconstruction plates from instrument trays and blocking off air
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ports in clinical areas), the Trust has introduced an in-situ simulation programme using
airline pilots as human factors expers (o observe practice. This has increased
awareness and understanding of human factors, and the identification and early
actioning of latent safety threats, preventing future harm.

Maternity incidents

The Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch (HSIB) investigates incidents that meet
the Each Baby Counts criteria or HSIB's defined criteria for the investigation of
matemal deaths. Each Baby Counts is the Royal College of Obstetricians’ &
Gynaecologists’ national quality improvement programme to reduce the number of
babies who die or are left severely disabled as a result of incidents cccurring during
term labour.

From 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, Whittington Health referred five cases to the
HSIB for investigation. Two reports referred in 2018/19 were also published. They
related to an early neonalal death and a matemal death in the emergency depariment.
The findings of both HSIB investigations were that, all appropriate care was provided,
and no safety recommendations were made. However, during an inguest for one of
the patients, the Coroner highlighted the potential for better communication processes
between the London Ambulance Service (LAS) and the Trust and issued a Prevention
of Future Death (PFD) notice. In response the Trust has worked with LAS to introduce
changes including prompting staff to ask whether a patient is pregnant when a priority
call comes through from LAS, expanding existing processes to determine whether
obstetric teams need to be called to the Emergency Department before a patient
arrives, standardising handovers between clinicians and running a simulation
axercise.

Learning from deaths

During the peried 1 April 2020 te 31 March 2021, 565 Whiltington Health patients
died in our inpatient wards. The following number of deaths occurred in each quarter
for 2020/21, as follows:

168 in the first quarter (1 April ta 30 June 2020)

70 in the second quarter (1 July to 30 September 2020)
136 in the third quarter (1 October to 31 December 2020)
181 in the fourth quarter (1January to 31March 2021)

By March 2021, the number of deaths for which there was a moriality case review
Was,

« B3/168 deaths in the first quarter
o  22/70 deaths in the second quarter
» 51/136 in the third quarter
« 481131 in the fourth quarter
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The second Covid-19 surge has meant redeployment of staff to focus on frontline
work, thus making the timely completion of mortality reviews a challenge. Teams are
in the process of reviewing these deaths.

Learning and actions from 2020/21 mortality reviews
Review of practice: Pathways and procedures

Following deaths from Covid-19, the Trust has adapted patient pathways and clinical
guidance. Examples include adjusting target oxygen saturation levels, audits looking
al continuous positive airway pressure (CPAP) machine usage, and the criteria for
intensive care consideration for ventilation.

Learning from the care of patients through the pandemic has been extensive, including
morbidity and morality meetings and reflective practice sessions. This has fed into a
review of guidelines developed during the first surge to ensure best practice is in place
for any future surges.

It was noted that a multi-disciplinary team approach to care, with sarly senior input for
patients with Covid-19, was of great value and aided the junior doctors in earlier
identifying the detericrating patienl.

Several mortality meetings praised the input from the ethics advisory group, when
complex decision making was required.

Infection prevention and control

Cur Infection Prevention and Control (IPC) procedures are led by our IPC Lead
nurse, in collaboration and under the direction of the Chief Nurse and Director of
Allied Health Professionals, who is the Accountable Officer, and Director of Infection
Prevention and Control. The Infection Prevention and Control Team (IPCT) provide
a full service to hospital, dental, mental health and community services across
Whittington Health NHS Trust,

Operationally, there are a team of senior IPC nurses and an information analyst who
support national, reglonal and local reporting on health care-acquired infections
(HCALl), in particular Trust attributable bacteraemia such as Multi Besistant
Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) and Escheria Coli (E.Coli); Clostridium Difficile
infections, HCAI outbreaks; Seasonal respiratory iliness e.9. Influenza and now also
Sars-Cov-2 (Covid-19) across the Trust.

There were several changes in resources made within the IPC team this past year,
recognising the burden of the Covid-19 pandemic on infection prevention
professionals. A newly created post to manage the important requirement for
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Filtering Face Pieces 3 (FFP3) masks fit
testing lead was made to manage the mandatory lit test service across the
organisation for all staff invelved in and in proximity to aerosol generating procedures
(AGP). A senior IPC Educator started in February 2021 alongside a second practice
educator. These posts are responsible for statutory and mandatory training and

Page 31 of 106



aducation. This focus on IPC education supports the Trust's objective to deliver
cansistent, high quality, safe services through surveillance of infection, audit of
practices and provision of a clean and safe working environment, in collabaration
with the Trust Estates and Facilities depariment, by ensuring staff of all disciplines
are taught best IPC patient contact level. The focus is on prevention of infection.

The Mational surgical site infection (SS51) surveillance scheme is mandatory for one
quarter each year on one procedure; this year during October to December 2020
twenty four repair of Neck of Femur operations were reviewed with no reportad

infections.

Having an operational and educational element to IPC, the team worked in unison,
managing incidents and their reporting while also identifying and sharing the leaming
of what went well or could have be improved to prevent infection and / or incident in

the future.

The table below summarises the numbers of incidents of patients acquinng the main
healthcare acquired infections.

Table 1. HCAI Infections 2020/2021

MRSA (Methicillin-
Resistant

There is a zero tolerance on MASA blocd stream infections (BSI).
In 2020-2021 Whittington Health reported two MASA BSl. Both

Staphylococcus have Trus! wide learning outcomes thal are being addressed under
Aureus) the IPC education team

Closfridium Difficile | Tha Public Haalth England (PHE) limil recommeanded for 2020/21
Infections (CDI) for CDI within the Trust was 19, Whittington Health reported 14

cazes of CDI,

E.Call Bacteraamia

There wera 11 Trust-attributed ECali BSI this year compared with
25 last year, The national objective in line with the LIK five year
plan Tackling antimicrobial resistance 2019-2024' Is to halve
healthcare associated Gram-nagative BSls, by March 2024, The
trust is on target o achieve this target.

Influenza This winter there were 11 tolal cases of admitted patients found fo
have Influenza which does not reflect a usual influenza season,

Surgical Site Whittington Health met the mandatory reporting for 551

Infections (S51) survedllance to PHE “at least 1 orthopaedic category for 1 period in
the financial year. October to December 2020 55| data - 24
Repair of Neck of Femur operations — 0 infactions.

Sars-Cov-2 As of 26 March 2021, The Trust had had 1,297 COVID-19 positive

patients admitted to the hospital during the past financial year, The
Trust repors daily on healthcare acquired COVID-13 infections.
During the period 8 November 2020 to 24 January 2021, there was
a steady Incréase in the number of positive cases despite the
focus and aftention on safae infection conirol and prevention
precautions and also linking to the increase in the community
transmission rate of COVID-18 found in the local population. Thea
rate of infections rose untll early to middle January (reporting
weeks ending 10 and 17 January 2021) when the number of
patients in a week peaked at 25 cases, Since then, thera has bean
a rapid decraase weak-on-waak and, at the and of January, no
new cases were being reported,
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Winter flu vaccination

Every yaar fhe Cocupational heakh team lseds a collaboiated and robust staf flo
vaccination pragramime. With Ihe asslstanes of o wide rangs of shampions from
acrose the Trist, inclading infection contrel eolisaguas, tha Trust improwves its uplaks
rate y2ar an year. A8 aways, the Trust's flu campaign s driven by patiant and staff
Gafety.

The uptako of fis vaccine by front line staff far 20200727 vegs B7.3%, up &% an Lhe
previous winter. Tho denominator for front line staff was slightiy highar than in the
pravious year. up to 2,972 from 2,877 The Trust is continually ranked in e top four
of Loneion Trusts, Some of the success may be attributed to the large nurmber of
raving clinics included in [he defivery of the programme, Evening angd night clinics
are particulady pogular.

This year the trust oitered an incentive with staff enfered into & prize raffle with five
top of tha range blowales. All staff whoe reoeived o vaceine, 2ither on siie or
clzewhare, was aligible tn be anterad into tha draw. Thea trust also awandsd owvsr
tarenty E26 shepping gift vouchers to alf champicns whe vaccinatad avar thiry
zolleagures,

The campaidn this yaar supporlad tws lnceal fond banks, one in l=lingten and a s2eond

in Haringzy. The Trost's Chiof Bxecutive prasanted two chegues for £1 286 sach 1o
The Alzsand=r Wylie Towes Foundation and The Selby Tnast in March 2020,
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE

Learning from national patient surveys

The Trust received results for two national patient experience surveys during 2020/21.

Thess were:

« Adult Inpatient Survey 2019 (July 2020)
« National Cancer Survey 2018 (June 2020}

Adult inpatient survey 2019

33% of patients responded to the 2019 survey which was the same percentage as
completed responses for 2018. The key improvements and issues to address are

summarnsed balow:

NHS Inpatient Survey 2019 Results
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Key improvements seen for patient discharge are as a result of successiul quality
improvement workstreams which reviewed and implemented changes to discharge
letters and enhanced discharge planning with the TICKED programme aimed at
ensuring everything has been considerad and in place prior to discharge.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has impacted on the Trust's ability to deliver
improvement programmes to address key issues, several changes have been made
following the survey such as, the hospital bringing patient catering back in-house and

further communication training sessions put in place for ward staff,
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National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 2019 (NCPES 2019)

The 2019 survey results showed that Whittington Health remained a very high
performer across London. The Whittington ranked second next to the Royal Marsden
tor London cancer sarvices once again and the overall rating of care at the trust has
improved for a second consecutive year from 8.9 to 9.0 (calculated as the average
score given to the question "Overall, how would you rate your care?” on a scale from
0 (very poor) to 10 (very gooad)). This excellent oulcome is now higher than the
national average of 8.8,

Whittington Health remains a very high performer across London and are the highest
performers within the NCL partnership. Narrative feedback from the survey details
high volumes of very positive feedback for the cancer services. Most commonly the
feedback is about the siaff support.

A key consideration to support the improvement work in 2020/21 and also
personalised care objectives will be the Whittington Health and Macmillan
partnership providing a Recovery Package Manager and support worker staff.

A particular area for improvement related to communication and how staff talk in
front of patients; patient invelvemeant in thair care; and patients receiving a copy of
their care plan. To address this and other areas identified for improvement, the
service implemented an action plan and have reviewed staff capacity to support
patient communication.

Mathanal Cancer Patisn Expaniance Survey 2015
Whittington Health NHS Trust
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Due to the impact of the pandemic, the Cancer service opted not to participate in the
NCPES 2020 as this was voluntary and health & well being events were badly affected
as ware the charities who support them.

Macmillan supported the funding of a Personalised Care Project Manager post and
two paople are now job sharing the role,

Family & Friends Test

With the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic NHS England and Improvement
suspended the national reporting requirements for the Friends and Family Test (FFT)
from March 2020, Natienal reporting requirements were reactivated in December
2020, although there was an acknowledgement that response rates would remain
affected as this coincided with the second pandemic surge over the winter.

Services were able, and many continued, to collect FFT feedback, while the statutory
obligation of reporting was removed. The guidance received encouraged NHS trusts
and sarvices to utilise methods of collection which reduced the risk of transmission.

Overall, the following results for 2020 were collated across the Trust

Percentages of Very
goodigood and poorivery

!;‘;"z;;aléu*}”’?ﬂiﬂ o 92.45% 4.35% |

% vary Qoon of pood S [0 OF WY pOOT
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The table below shows the total number of responses for 2020 and highlights the
reduction in FFT responses from April 2020 when the initial pandemic surge was at

its peak.
Fat] 27
22
k1 el [T
1583 E3 i W e - -
w9 .“..
A3

Mumiser of surveys completed
each momih
{FFT - A2 From 11172080 1o
by Pl 1 e
TE818 Sarveys
spas PO MET . A May ok M Mg B Od M Ded

Revised national FFT guidance, data system and text messaging

The revised national FFT guidance had been due for implementation - with all trusts
expeacted to be compliant by April 2020; however, the implementation period was
frozen until December 2020 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

During April and May 2020, the Meridian data systemn the Trust uses for collecting
and reporting on FFT along with other local patient experience surveys, was
upgraded and renamad IQVIA connections.

Text messaging for FFT in the Day Treatment Centre (DTC) was finally implemented
in January 2021 having been delayed by the pandemic.

Quarter 4 data 2020-21 following re-launch of FFT using revised questionnaire

Percentages of Very
goodigood and pooniveny

poor
(FFT - All, 1712021 1o
3173/2021)

Rl O B e i R R [

As expected, the number of survays completed has been increasing incrementally
since the re-launch of national FFT reporting which coincided with the second
pandemic surge.

Humbes ol surveys complelad ——
#acdy month

{FFT - All From 112021 ko
A0
4908 Surveys
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Mixed sex/gender accommodation declaration

Every patient has the right to receive high quality care that is safe, effective and
respects their privacy and dignity. The Trust are committed to providing every patient
with same gender accommaodation to help safeguard their privacy and dignity when
they are often at their most vulnerable.

Patients who are admitted to hospital or come in for a planned day case will only
share the room or ward bay where they sleep, with members of the same gender,
and same gender teilets and bathrooms will be close to their bed area.

There are some exceptions to this. Sharing with people of the opposite gender will
happen sometimes, This will only happen by exception and will be based on clinical
nead in areas such as intensive/critical care units, emergency care areas and soma
high observation bays. In these instances, every effort will be made to rectify the
situation as soon as is reasonably practicable and staff will take extra care 1o ensure
that the privacy and dignity of patients and sarvice users is maintained. This year
due to Covid-18 reporting of this measure was paused.
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS

Driven by its vision of 'Helping local people live longer, healthier lives’, Whittington
Health, s committed to continually improve the care it provides to its patients.
Whittington Health believes that ‘Better Never Stops' and this atfitude is embedded
within the Trust's two-way approach to Quality Improvement. A bottom-up approach
encourages grass roots development and top-down actlons use performance and
outcome data to drive improvement.

The establishment of a Clinical Effectiveness Group in 2020/21, chaired by the
Associate Medical Director for Clinical Effectiveness and Quality Improvement, has
helped to strengthen the clinical effectiveness agenda. Regular reports on clinical
effectiveness, including national and local audits, National Institute of Clinical
Excellence guidelines, progress with Getting It Right First Time (GIRFT), as well as
guality improvement are discussad by the Quality Governance Committee, and
included in the Quality report. Key achievements during 2020/21 included:

« the introduction of a Covid-19 clinical guideline page on the Covid intranet hub,
which provided staff with single point of access for the rapidly changing guidance

» the pulse oximeter loan scheme, an orginal Whittington Health idea, which has
now been replicated in other organisations

Mational audits

During 2020/2021, 50 national clinical audits including three national confidential
enquiries coveraed relevant health services that Whittington Health provides. Despite
the pressures on staff due to the Covid-19 pandemic, Whittington Health participated
in 100% of national clinical audits and 100% of national confidential enquiries. A total
of eight national audits were suspended or no longer applicable due fo the COVID-19
pandemic. The Trust also registered an additional 15 non-mandatory national audits
for completion.

Clinical audit reporting provides a vital mechanism to capture care quality across the
organisation. Leaming from clinical audits continued throughout the COVID-19
pandemic to include multidisciplinary audit and effectiveness afternoons and bespoke
training of staff.

Quality Improvement

In 2020, the new Quality Improvernent (QI) strategy was launched, with a vision o
empower and engage our staff to deliver confinuous Quality Improvement to enhance
the care of our patients, the experiences of our staff and use of our resources’. To
support this, the Whittington Improvement Faculty was launched in February 2021,
which brings together slaff from across the Trust, who share a common interest in Q.
The Faculty provides an opportunity to share experiences; understand what each is
working on; share the leaming that may be transferable and provide support and
challenge to one anocther.
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dina of tha aims of thlg sratagy was Lo sirive for a ‘Baltar Never Stops' approach and
o leam from Innovation and success. This has Boon evident throughout the Covid-13
pandemic, with axisting Q1 projects edapiing and growing, and new challenges
preseniing nppartunities to da things differently.

Tha first wava triggsatad a lot of changss in a shor fmeitame; same wen reacthne aind
intendad to be temporary, but oihers hed the potential for longerterm benetits to
patients and staff. QO fooussed on identityving how 1o harness the positive projents to
delver lasting changs, named ‘Phoesnk Projacls'.  Examplas of successful Phosnix
projects waie the reduciion in tims it took to mcrit to the staff bank; implemanting
straight-to-test  hystorozcopics  for some  =uspoctcd  gunacoological cancers;
irtroducing pessenal protective equipment graz bags; maving o elecivonic prescribing
oipratiend clinics and running remicte cleics vig the Aftend Ameehers Relily.

Whittingtcn Health held a Quality Improvement Celebration afterncon in Sepiember
ACE0, The event was well altended {both vittually and socially distanced] with good
representstion across disviplines ans degadmerts, community and aeute. The sveni
focuzsad an celahralng toth the Phoanis projacts, and the G grojects which bad
cohidnued daspite the challenging pressures of the Covids 1D pandomic. Examplos
included: work on enhanced carg; introducing group appointments in intermediate
diehetes programme and developing the role of the health care assistants in fhe rapid
responsa vitual ward leam. Thare was alse an agporturdty for siaff to hear what
athors had learnt from the pandomic, and what thoy now did difforently. Q1 projecs
have also heen celebratad By being submitted and presenfed &f & range of extemal
conferences,

Training has remained succeesful this year: with approximately 7ol stax complotng

the online ‘Introduction to QI module; others attending the mone advanced session
and teaching delivered at medical induslions and develapment courses,
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Associate Medical Directors appointed to leadership roles
in the Trust

During 2020/21, the Medical Director's office successfully recruited to its Assoclate
Medical Director (AMD) leadership roles.

Dr lhuoma Wamuo, consultant theumatologist, was recruited
ta the role of AMD for Patient Safety and Leaming from
Deaths. Her AMD role includes chairing the Trust's Palient
Safety Forum.

Dr Scla Makinde, consultant anaesthetist, was recruited to
the role of AMD for Workforce, a part of which is leading on
the medical appraisal and revalidation process for the Truslt.
Dr Makinde is already looking at how the appraisal process
can be more developmental and consider staff health and
wellbeing as a priority.

Dr Clarissa Murdoch, consultant in Acute Medicine,
Ambulatory Care and Care of Older People, was recruited to
the role of AMD for Quality Improvement and Clinical
Effectiveness. Her AMD role includes chairing the Trust's
Clinical Effectiveness committee, and the Getting It Right First
Time (GIRFT) program.

Professor Hugh Montgomery, a consultant intensivist, was
recruited 1o the role of Director of Research and Innovation in
the Trust.

- S BN
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RESEARCH

Research at Whittington Health had an unparalleled year in 2020/21. The Director of
Raesearch and Innovation along with the Research Portfolio Manager led the Trust's
Covid-19 research activities in response to the pandemic, Where it is usual for there
to be Trust recruitment targets, these were largely suspended as the majority of non-
Covid-19 research was 'stood down' by the National Institute for Health Research
(NIHR) during the first wave. Despite this, the Trust saw an increase in research
activity and, at the time of writing, recruitment for the year stood at 1,079, up from B48
in 2019/20 and 1,077 from 2018/19,

The Trust continued to deliver a cost-effective service, with a low cost per patient
recruited, compared with other Trusts in the North Thames Local Clinical Research
Network (LCRN). Our performance throughout the pandemic was acknowledged by
the allocation of additional in year funding of £73k. The usual NIHR benchmarks were
been suspended last year but aspirational targets for the percentage of overall COVID-
18 admissions recruited to specific Urgent Public Health (UPH) studies saw us reach
13% of all potential patienis recruited to the RECOVERY ftrial; the target was 10% and
the national average 8%,

Activity on commercial trials was largely stifled by the pandemic with the exception of
vaccine trials and early phase studies suited to sites with dedicated Clinical Trials Units
(CTUs); however, engagement with commercial sponsors was ongoing throughout
and there is a strong pipeline for commercial activity to increase next year. We
supported 11 NIHR portfolio adopted Covid-19 studies (and have two further studies
in set-up at the time of writing). Of the 11 studies, five are badged as UPH and
encouragement to support these studies came from the UK's Chief Medical Officer,
Professor Chris Whitty. Four non-portfolioc Covid-19 studies were completed and 178
participants werea recruited into 14 NIHR portfolio adopted, non-Covid-18 studies which
took place.

Of particular note, the top three recruiting Covid-19 studies were:

« ISARIC CCP UK: Clinical Characterisation Protocol for Severe Emerging
Infection: 489. This was an observational study collecting clinical data for
inpatients including disease saverty, treatment and outcomes

= SARS-COVZ immunity and reinfection evaluation (SIREN) 257 - an
observational stludy locking at the incidence of Covid-19 infections amang
healthcare staff

* Randomised Evaluation of Covid-19 Therapy (RECOVERY) 184 - an
interventional study offering treatments to inpatients.

The top three recruiting non-Covid-19 studies were:
+ Understanding the Attitudes and Opinions of Statf Working Across NHS Sites
in England to the Change in Law Regarding Organ Donation (#OPTIONS) 56
= Tuming the immune responsa in TB (HIRV-TB): 25

« National Evaluation of the Integrated Care and Support Pioneers Program: 15
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GUARDIAN OF SAFE WORKING HOURS

Despite the complexities and challenges that the COVID-18 pandemic has brought to
the training of junior doctors over the last year, there continued to be significam
emphasis on the safety of their working hours. This was reflected in the ongoing
engagement with the process of monitoring the safe working hours of junior doctors
through the exception reporting process. There have been a large number of additional
hours worked by doctors in training over and above their rostered hours and these
were recorded and reimbursed with time off in lieu or payment where it has been safe
to do so.

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to working patterns as have never been seen before.
Doctors in training were moved ovemight to new jobs with little waming or consultation.
This was, across the board, met with widespread acceptance and a willingness to do
anything that could be done to help. The flexibility and maturity of their engagement
with senior colleagues in working to meet the challenges the pandemic has presented
is to be commended. Trainees have worked together with consultant colleagues to
step up additional on-call services and have helped o ensure wherever possible thesa
have been compliant with the 2016 terms and conditions.

The Guardian of Safe Working Hours has worked closely with the junior doctors’ forum
to ensure there is a proactive approach to compliance with the 2016 terms and
conditions, In 2019, we were awarded £60,000 from the British Medical Association's
Fatigue and Facilities Charter, Through the last year the Guardian has supported the
junior doctors' forum to spend this money on rest facilities for junior doctors, This
culminated in the opening of the newly refurbished junior doctors’ mess in July 2020.
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INTEGRATED CARE ORGANISATION AND SYSTEM
WORKING

Integrated Care Organisation

As an integrated care crganisation we are demonstraling every day the value of
collaborative working in multi-disciplinary and multi-agency approaches to health and
cara. Our figures continue to show the lowest admission rates in Morth Central
London.

The Trust is currently meeting its plan of reducing long length of stay (patients over 21
days in hospital) through the management of delayed transfers of care, frailty
management and Multi Agency Discharge Events (MADE).

During Covid our integrated approach was widely praised and we were asked to run
the single discharge hub for ourselves and UCLH. Our CEO also chaired the non-
acute Gold system leadership group, coordinating the community response o Covid
across North Central London. The fact that we are an integrated care organisation
helped us be flexible in our response to covid. Many staff working in the community
and M3K were redeployed 1o support the wards and ITU.

Primary Care Networks and GP Federations

During 202021 we continued to work closely with GPs and commissioners in Haringey
and Islington. Examples of this included:

» Continuing to develop the integrated diabetes team that supports and trains GPs
to keep patients’ diabetes managed in the community

» Qur team working with Age UK and the GPs to use an e-frailty index to find and
support patienis before they deteriorated

Localities and Integrated Care Borough Partnerships

This year, Whittington Health continued to work even more closely with our colleagues
in the councils, mental health trusts, GPs, and the veluntary sector to implement the
vision for our joined up services based around localities (3 in Islington and 3 in
Haringey). The leadership team in North Islington in pariicular shone out in its ability
to respond quickly to covid needs in a coordinated way with the voluntary sector. A
locality leadership team In Haringey has also been set up. Whittington Heafth put
forward the two borough partnerships for the HSJ Awards and they were finalists in
the Integrated Care Partnership of the Year Award.

Morth London Partners’ Integrated Care System

Covid has been an impetus for much closer working together as a system. Whittington
Health played a strong role in the system and this is described throughout this
document. In particular at this peint in the report we would like to highlight the Non-
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acute Gold meeting that our CEQ Chaired coordinating the community response to
covid. We also worked well in the Operational Implementation Group which
coordinated elective activity and recovery and the use of the private sector. The
Clinical Advisory Group and the CEO group were crucial parts in the system along
with other operational and corporate groups. We have been represented on all the
critical committees. This has been crucial in the response o Covid-19 and created a
really positive route for mutual aid, collaberation and transformation.

Paediatrics

Whittington Health was chosen to lead the joint South Hub for acute paediatric
sarvices from September 2020 to April 2021, This collaborative project between the
Whittington, University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (UCLH) and
the Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust (RFH) co-located emergency paediatric
and inpatient services at the Whittington site. The South Hub was effectively set up to
offer temporary services that were safe and effective. This allowed UCLH and RFH to
release clinical staff to suppon the North Central London pandemic response. The
hub was set up and operationalised rapidly, requiring effective collaboration and
significant support from across all three sites. Although there were significant initial
challenges - including equipment, rotas, and information management and
technology, and interoperability, the hub successtully provided safe, effective and
quality care to children across North Central London.

Through work developed by the South Hub, leng-term benefits for children in North
Central London were produced. They included the establishment and agreement
across all providers for a robust urclogy pathway and a hub model for the paediatric
mental health team. The North Central London Clinical Commissioning Group has
contracted University College London Parners to provide a thorough evaluation of
the South Hub which is due later this year. While we look forward to sharing this
review, the initial qualitative and quantitative feedback has been positive.

University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Throughout the year, we continued to work well with UCLH in various areas of
collaboration including breast services, matemity, nuclear medicine, and general
surgery. In orthopaedic services, an Elective Orthopaedic Centre for the south of North
Central London was established. This exciting new development saw UCLH and
Whittington Health work together to provide day surgery at both sites and an enhanced
day-case service at Whittington Health. Inpatient surgery will take place from April
2021 at the University College Hospital Grafton Way building which has state-of-the
art robotic surgery facilities and dedicated theatres to cater for complex surgery. In the
meantime, we have been working closely logether sharing capacity in the private
sector.
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WORKFORCE
Our people

Last year, we employed around 4,500 staff, clinical and non-clinical, all of whom
contribute to providing high quality patient care in our hospital and across our
community sites, Our people work hard to improve efficiency and deliver the best
possible care o our patients.

As the Trust entered the Covid-18 activity peaks, it quickly redeployed staff, trainees
and students both within Whittington Health and from across the sector, expanding
our staff bank numbers to ensure that services to care for Covid-19 patients were
staffed appropriately. A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was put in place across
NHS Trusts in London to enable the free movement of staff between employers. This
provided assurance that the employment checks and statutory and mandatory training
for redeployed member of staff was up fo date and set out appropriate governance
arrangements.

The Workforce Directorate developed an on boarding process to minimise the time for
employment checks to be undertaken to expedite the availability of staff to work
through Bank Partners to support our services whilst retaining the integrity of the
checking process. We also put in place 24/7 hotlines for staff anxious about working
through the pandemic and to ensure they received the most accurate information.

The Trust also responded rapidly to national guidance reflecting the service pressures
and new modes of care, Including revised safe staffing ratios in critical care and
infection control reguirements. Support for staff health and wellbeing during this pericd
included free hotel accommaodation, the provision of food and temporary parking, while
investments made possible through donations were used to make improvements to
staff facilities, such as lockers and rest rooms.

The majority of the Trust's stalf are permanently employed clinical staff directly
involved in delivering patient care. We also employ a significant number of scientific,
technical and administrative staff who provide vital expertise and support. The table
below provides a breakdown of our workforce. Our people are fundamental to the
Trust's success in delivering high-guality patient care. We are proud of all our
colleagues and recognise the important role they play in maintaining the health and
wellbeing of the communities we serve. The people we employ reflect the diverse
backgrounds of the local community and we have good representation of women and
people from diverse athnic backgrounds.

Headcount during 2020:/21

Employee headcount headcount
SRath grovp 1 April 2020 March 2021
Professional Scientific &Technical 294 302
Additional Clinical Services 519 664
Administrative and Clerical 805 947
Allied Health Professionals 5386 542

Page 47 of 106



: Employee headcount headcount
Stafi group 1 April 2020 T Miarah 2021
Estates and Ancillary 212 202
Healthcare Scientists 96 104
Medical and Dental 547 565
Mursing and Midwilery registered 1244 1228
Students 20 28
Grand Total 44713 4582

Communicaling with our people

As part of our ongoing commitment to engaging with staff to understand their needs
and act on their feedback we communicate with staff regularly through a variety of
channels. Over the past 12 months, staff engagement and support have been
significantly enhanced and improved with an emphasis on keeping our staff fully
appraised throughout the pandemic. As a Trust we maintained our engagement score
(as calculated through the Staff Survey) and was above the average for Trusts in our
category. Like many we have had to adapt our methods of communication and new
technology over the last year. This has resulted in more frequent communications and
the ability to reach a far wider audience.

Examples of this included:

Weekly CEO briefings via Microsoft teams. These were critical throughout the
pandemic and enabled the CEO to speak directly to hundreds of staff at any one
time, and also take direct questions, feedback and suggestions

Cur Staff Networks became really important. In particular, our Black, Asian and
Minarity Ethnic (BAME) network, Covid and the Black Lives Matter movement
shone a light on the inegqualities experienced by our BAME colleagues. The
Network itself continued lo be active throughout the last year, but in addition the
executive leam held weekly listening events where they heard first-hand the
challenges facing our colleagues and were able to respond quickly, The
Whitability Network became the focal point for our colleagues who were clinically
extremely vulnerable and forced to shield. During the year the LGBTQ+ Network
grew, and we were delighted to formally launch our Women's Network on
International Women's Day. Each of the Networks now has its own govemance
infrastructure with a Steering Group, elected chairs and an executive sponsor.
Cur NED lead of equality and inclusion attends all the Networks hersalt
Technology allowed us to arrange many webinars throughout the last year
addressing lopical areas in real time. These included the Covid Vaccine;
Redeployment, Manager's Forum and many more

The Trust already had in place a robust mechanism for broadcast
communications/bulletins and throughout the pandemic this was expanded to
include dedicated daily (sometimes more than once a day) Covid-related
communication to ensure staff were kept abreast of the fast-moving development
of the pandemic and associated guidance
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MNHS staff survey 2020

The Trust commissions the Picker Institute to run its survey nationally, Whittington
Health was benchmarked against a total 128 similar Trusts. Of Whittington Health's
4,336 eligible staff, 2,188 staff took par in this survey, a response rate of 51% which
is significantly above the median response rate of 45% for acute and acute and
community trusts in England.

The reporting shows Whittington Health results against 10 themes and at question-
level is compared between results from 2016 to 2020. Resulls are presented in the
context of the ‘best’, 'average’ and "worst’ results for the total 128 Acute and Acute
and Community Trusts.

Whittington Health — 2020 overall results — Themes
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In 2020 Whittington Health is not ranked as ‘worst’ in any of the themes, compared to
one in 2019 (Safe Environment — Bullying & Harassment) and four in 2018. The Trust
is slightly above average for four of the themes, below or slightly below for another
four and rated as average for Iwo.

Again this year, the Trust has agreed to focus on four areas for development and
improvement across the entire organisation: equality, diversity and inclusion; staff
morale; health and well-being and safe environment — bullying and harassment. The
latter two, although improved significantly this year, are benchmarked as below
average.
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Nationally a new section was added to the staff survey to glean responses on staff
experience during the pandemic. This allowed us to review a breakdown of theme
scores for staff in the following subgroups:

Staff who worked on a Covid-19 specific ward or area at any time
Staff who have been redeployed at any time due to the Covid-19
pandemic

« Staff who have been required to work remotely/from home due to the
pandemic
Staff who have been shielding for themselves
Staff who have been shielding for a member of their household

We are using this detailed information to reflect on our response to the pandemic
and leam for similar events in the future.

Each of the ICSUs/Directorates develop their focus areas and, supporied by the
workforce directorate, and target Improvement work in line with their own staff

feedback. .
- s

Workforce Culture and “CaringForThoseWhoCare”

In the last year in paricular, it has been so important to support good working
relationships and promote compassion and inciusion throughout the Whittington
Health culture. Many initiatives have been detailed in the following section on health
and wellbeing. Below are some of the main programmes and campaigns to enhance
culture and workplace relationships and environments.

= 'Bystander-to-Upstander’ is a workshop programme, commissionad to enable
staff to develop an understanding of the impact made by witnesses and allies
in our efforts to tackle bullying, harassment, and racism, It encourages staff to
be ‘active bystanders' and not simply observers, and teaches them how to
Intervena appropriately, or escalate

* The well-received managers’ course ‘anti-bullying’ training was scheduled for
roliout. The pandemic thwarted the replication of the face-to-face training and
s0 a virtual version was piloted and evaluated before being rolled out to all staff
in 2020

« The ‘Caring for Those Who Care' has been branded and referred to as
“#CFTWC" to collate and communicate the expansive care and support offer to
staff particularly during the pandemic

Staff health and wellbeing

The various organisational groups overseeing staff health and wellbeing have merged
and work together in the working group and steering group. During the pandemic, the
Trust focused efforts on staff support, with a wide range of offers from the very practical
(travel, parking, identifying business partners, shopping, accommodation, risk
assessments etc.), and the psychological. The mental heailth support was provided
from a variety of sources:
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» [From intemnal staff, these included:
o Mental Health First Aiders offered a listening ear and signposted
professional support
A redirection of improving access to psychological therapies' (lAPT)
resources to staff took place
Reflective practice sessions led by the clinical health psycheology team
Mediation requests
A ‘Cheack-in and Check-out’ toclkit for managers to look after their staff
'How are you?' calls to staff isolating or shielding
A resilience workbook which highlighted the importance of rest as a
comerstone
« From the in-house Employee Assistance Programme, ‘People at Work', for
which direct access to counselling was offered
= Extemnal routes including North Central London, national NHS provision, and
specialist provision such as the Tavistock and Portman NHS Foundation Trust
* Woebsites and online resources from advice to chat rooms
Werkbooks and worksheels

)

20000

All staff were encouraged to notice when they are tired and to lake rest. Those on the
acute site have access to the "Project Wingman" services in the “First Class Lounge”.

The Trust monitors the completion of risk assessments which feeds into the
redeployment process for those low-risk staft who are able to move into Covid-areas
or redeploy those at risk who need to move to low-risk areas. Whittington Health has
collaborated across the region fo manage vaccination hubs for staff and partners. Tha
rate of vaccine take-up is also monitored and both risk assessments and the vaccine
rate is reported regularly to NHS England and Improvement.

Embracing equality, diversity and inclusion

Whittington Health serves diverse local communities across the population. This
diversity is reflected in the profile of our patients and workforce and brings many
benefits. The Trust remains committed to providing services and employment
opportunities that are inclusive across all nine strands of equality: age, disability,
gender re-assignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation in accordance with the Equality Act 2010
and our public sector equality duties. Our equality objectives set oul our priorities to
drive improvements in staff experience which aim to reduce inequalities for our diverse
workforce. Our ambition remains to improve the health outcomes, access and
experience of all of our patients, carers, visitors, volunteers and employses

Measuring equality performance

Performance is measured through staff experence narmative and scoring (for
example, in the staff survey) as well as through factual metrics including the
demographics of staff in different roles and levels of seniority. There are currently
two suites of key performance measures: (i) the Workforce Race Equality Standard
(WRES); and the Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES). The resuls
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relating to both of these are published annually. The WRES has been repored since
2016 and the WDES since 2018,

The table below summanses the Trust's WRES results since the start of reporting.

Summary of WRES Indicators for 2020 and previous years

2016 2047 2010 2018 2020
TR WM White BME White BME [White BME White BME |White BME
1. Elhnic profie FLE A0 B BT B S0.2%

2. Likalihood of White candidates being

appointed from shorlisting in | a0 tee e
3, Likelinood of BAM.E. staft entering

process for disciplinary 267 241 1.18 1.44 085
4. Relative White-B.A.M.E. stalf take-up of -

non-mandatory training

(01 OFGT8E C 3. OF

. . i
5. Experience of bullying from pubdic F.m&@m.m.m.mmp_ 8% |Gap=
&. Exparience of bullying from collsagues !ﬂmu .e.umm'gp,m.m,g:g':ﬂﬂ._ gm;ﬂm:azm
7. Career development b7 M.:ﬁias.mmmehﬁ.m1 mﬁgﬁfﬁgﬁ“ s
8. Experience of discriménation T4% msmlm 18, 6% 8.0% 17,0 gﬁ’: ey gg’: 1iﬂ-
8. Board to Trust profile comparative
represantation J ‘ 0% | -21E% 23.0%

The Trust continued to develop and implament its comprehensive plan to ensure batler
and fairer outcomes in recruitment and progression, as well as ambitious targets to
improve diversity in senior management, ensuring all staff have the opportunity to
achieve their full potential. The Trust continues to develop fair recruitment practices to
ensure equal access to employment opportunities for all. To supponrt all activity around
this improvement plan, the Trust joined the WRES pilot led by the National WRES
team, with three other trusts.

Workforce Race Equality Standard pilot

Whittington Health paricipated in the national WRES Team Cultural Change
Programmae pilot during 2020. The Trust received the deep-dive report in May 2021
which relates to data collated mid-2020 along with a series of conversations and
waorkshops throughout that time.

The report has subsequenily been discussed by the Trust Management Group, the
Trust Board and with the black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) network Steering
Group. Since November 2020, the Trust has secured expertise in helping address the
race agenda and priorities through Yvonne Coghill who is helping with support for our
action plan. This work will continue throughout 2021/22.
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Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES)

The table below summanses the Trust's WDES results since the start of reporting.

Summary of WDES Indicators for 2020 and previous years

WDES indicator 2019 results 2020 results
1 | Prafile - With only 2% of staff disclosing | S5 5“““"“2%“;‘;'“&"”
disability at a disability on ESR, and 12% of just \inder 605 having nG 2
different bands | respondents to the annual NHS | & ; ng
7 isability; and 48% did not
stafi survey declaring a i
sisability, the following data has disclose, whilst responses o
fimited meaning the annual staff survey show
2 c.5% of stafi have a disability.
e Mon-disabled staff are 1.24
. tg‘;ﬁhmud of timas more likely to be 0,86
& :?intad appointed than staff with a
A disability
3 | Likelihood of Staft with a disability are 1.74 _
antering formal | imes more likely to enter into a E;.:bmmwwllh drg?“uzl-ad
capability formal disciplinary process than ccrahil e don a
| process non-disabled staff ity | i
4 | Percentage of
staff )
expenencing _E'taff .'ml'h f .Staﬁ Staff with / Staff
harassment Disabitity / without Disability /without
and bullying Patients & public 40.3% / 32% Patients & public 33.4% / 31.3%
from: Managers 27.3% / 19.3% | Managers 24.1%/ 16.3%
» Palients & | colleagues 27.5% /24.5% | Colleagues  32.9%/23.5%
public Gap B.3/8/3 Gap 2.1/7.8/94
« Managers
» Colleagues
5 F'arﬂ:ant._age of
t":&ﬁ balieving . | Staft with disability 63.3% Staff with disability 72.1%
“fﬂ;u':;;l:“ Staff without disability 74.1% Staff without disability78.3%
ﬁﬂmr Gap 10.8% Gap 6.2%
development
g | Experience of
fesling = Staff with disability 32% Staff with disability 33.5%
Prassura irom | suaff without disability 23.7% Staff without disability 22.0%
to
'“E"l “ﬂﬂl f ot | GaPB3% Gap 11.5%
whall
7 FHT'EEI'IIHEE
saying they are
satisfiad with Staff with disability 36.8% Staft with disability 39.3%
how the extent | Stafl without disability 48.4% Staff without disability 51.6%
o which the Gap 11.6% Gap 12.3%
Trust values
thair work
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WDES indicator 2018 results 2020 resulls
g | Percentage
gaying
employer made B2.5% BR.1%
reasonable
adjustments
g | (9a) Relative Staff with disability 6.6 Stalt with disability B.7
engagement Staff without disability 7.1 Staff without disability 7.2
BOOrES Gap 0.5 Gap 0.5
. There is now a "WhitAbility’
(9b) Thers was previously no network vork In place
10 11% over-representation of non- | There is.an En_rpampl 11“!7'-‘:&. -clnar_ler-
. disabled; -2% under- - FeqNRsoTialion di peopie W
Relative level rresantation of cisablsd. disclosed disabilites and an over-
of board . . representation of 38% for non-
represantation Given the level of disclosure disabiad mambers. rasilting lrom the
across the Trust, this data has | aimost complets disclosure in Board
limited meaning.) and only 2% Trust disclosure |

The last 12 months saw a significant rise in parficipation and involvement in staff
inclusion networks, of which there are currently four at Whittington Health:

« Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic staff and allies network

WhitAbility (for staff with a disability and allies)

LGETQ+ (for lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer and other questioning
or non-heterosexual staff and allies)

» Women's network for all staff supporting gender equity

Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic (BAME) network

The BAME network enjoys continuous engaging monthly network meetings and is
supported by an active steering group. Some of the main activities and oulcomes are
summarised below:

Three key members of the network successfully launched the 'See ME First' badge,
securing commitments from individuals about their own personal actions in support of
racial equity. The scheme was so successtul that other NHS organisations have been
kean to replicate something similar in their own trusts, and the network leads created
‘packs’ or toolkits for other trusts to follow suit.

Communication channels have been improved with weekly network bulletins being
sent to the BAME network members, describing activities and providing key messages
from the Trust and the network. Currently, a monthly newsletter is being designed for
BAME network members.

An engaging interactive Covid-19 vaccination webinar was hosted to answer questions
and to discuss concerns from BAME staff. Qualified and informed speakers were able
to provide specific information to different types of concems. This was well received,
feedback demonstrated that BAME staff experience of the event was positive,
reporting that where they had been indecisive, they were now more informed to make

Page 55 of 106



a decision. Early signs suggest that this has contributed to an increased number of
staft having their first vaccinations.

Deeper scrutiny of staff survey and WRES results has shown a need for specific
groups of staff to have allies, and the BAME network is actively seeking to engage
with Filipino and Muslim staff to explore how the network can support these groups of
staff.

WhitAbility network

The WhitAbility network, to support staff with disabilities, holds regular and engaging
manthly network meetings. Discussions have centred on vulnerable staff and the
importance of health and wellbeing in particulady during the second wave of the
pandemic. Meetings specifically to support staff who were shielding or were ‘clinically
extremely vulnerable’ were hosted by the network. The Trust's Clinical Health
Psychology Team also facilitated a group reflective session in January 2021,

Leshian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Questioning (LGBTQ+) network

As with other staff networks, the LGBTQ+ network also held regular and engaging
monthly network meetings. Key network members — the chair; administration officer,
communication; and social media lead -~ managed a programme of aclivities in
celebration of LGBTQ+ month in February 2021. Due to the pandemic, and the need
to distance, celebrations were restricted, and therefore activities focused on promaoting
the network, and the benefits of joining.

To fully understand the experiences of LGBTCO+ staff within the Trust, the network
launched a confidential survey to gather baseline data of the experiences of staff. The
results were used lo inform us on ways to improve the experiences of LGBTQ+ staff.

Women's network

The Women's network was launched on International Women's Day on 8 March 2021
and a programme of evenis and speakers was planned to follow the launch. A core
group of interested parties from across the Trust, led by the Organisational
Development Team, are providing the platform and planning for future events and the
growth of the membership.

Statutory and mandatory training

The majority of core and mandatory skills are delivered through the Trust's online
training site, The training modules and programmes are all tailored to meet the
reguirements of the organisalion using software, voiceovers and videos to enable the
e-leaming to be interactive. While the courses themselves are visually engaging, they
are delivered through a system not favoured by most users. Consequently, the Trust
has bought a new systemn commended by numerous NHS Trusts, whose
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endorsements included user-friendliness, as well as an increase in overall training
compliance.

The Trust's compliance target is 90%, and for five years it has hovered at the 80%-
85% level. The compliance rate has suffered recently from two key factors. Firstly,
the pandemic prevented much of the face-to-face training with a time lag until e-
leaming was seen as an acceplable altemative. Secondly, the need to align the
frequency tor refresher training (specifically in the subjects of fire awareness and
prevention; infection prevention and control; and resuscitation) to the national cora
skills training framework.

In spite of the pandemic, and after a pause al the starl, regular vilual corporate
induction sessions took place throughout the year to welcome and orientate new
colleagues to the Trust. Induction includes key information such as the Trust's values
and objectives and specific Information to prepare new starters to be an effective
member of the Whittington Health team. Each induction starts with a personal
welcome at the start from the chief executive and other executive directors.

Staff development

Whittington Health places great value on developing staff through courses run across
our various sites. A suite of development programmes have been designed to support
Whittington staff through each stage of their career and continued to be delivered
during the pandemic in virtual sessions. In the last year, the following was delivered
by in-house staff and partners:

“I.CARE Leadership Development” (NHS Elect)

"|.CARE Compassionate and Inclusive Leadership” (NHS Elect)

“Debriet facilitation for managers” including ‘checking in and out’

“The Right Amount of Conflict” (NHS Elect)

“Team Culture” (NHS Elect)

Affina Team Jourmey

Coaching for individuals to support career development and working relationships
Myers Briggs Type Indicator reports and feedback sessions to support team
dynamics

» 380 degree feedback for individuals to understand how they impact on others and
to support careaer davelopment

To support the inclusion and career development agendas, new training was
commissioned in quarter four for BAME mediators, team mediators, and Kings Fund
leadership development. Because of the impact of the pandemic on staff health and
wellbeing, the Trust invited participants from across the organisation to become
accredited ‘critical incident stress debrief’ facilitators.

Modem Slavery Act

Whittington Health's aim is to provide care and services that are appropriate and
sensitive to all. We always ensure that our services advance equality of opportunity,
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gquality of acoess. and are non-disciminatony, We are praud of our plans in s logsl
commlnity and ara kean 1o amirage the many aollores and tradticns that make it 5o
dnmarsa. The divarsily of this community i2 reflectad in the cthnic and cuoltursl mix of
our staif, By mirranng the divorsity that susrounds us, our steil are better placed to
undergtand and provide for the cultural and spiritual needs af patienis. In ascordance
with e Madem Slavery Ad 2015, the Trust has made & slatameant an iis wabshe
regarding tha stsps takan to ansure that lavary and human trafficking are not saking
placa in any parn of itz own businass or any of s supply chains.
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Excellence in Medical Education

Undergraduate education

Whittington Health is committed to delivering the very best education and training to
University College London medical students on their clinical placement. This has
been particularly hard for the past year because of the pandemic.

The following were notable achievements during the year;

« The pandemic saw the rapid introduction of innovative schemes to maximise the
medical workforce and utilise untapped capacity. In March 2020, after their final
examinations, 47 final year medical students were recruited as medical support
workers, four months before they would usually have starled. A programme was
developed with a focus on welfare and pastoral support with overwhelmingly
positive feedback from both the participants and their supervisors. This was
published in a peer reviewed journal®

« In September 2020, the team arranged the safe retum of University College
London medical students o clinical placemeant. The curriculum was revamped,
paying attention to footfall and safety bubbles. Students had an induction that was
the envy of students not placed at the Whittington, They remain at one site for the
year using an apprenticeship model. This has been so successful it will continue
next year. Students have felt sate, appreciated and grateful

» During the height of the second wave in early 2021, with the full support of
University College London and Whittington Health, we were able to place medical
students in work shifts. There have been many positive feedback messages
received about these students and how hard they have worked, They worked
many unsociable and long shifts as health care assistants

# This has all been positive because of active engagement of the Whittington
Faculty working tightly with administrators. Feedback from students is good
overall, despite their placements being often altered depending on service
delivery.

Postgraduate medical education

Over the last greatly challenging year of the coronavirus pandemic, we have been
hugely grateful to cur amazing doctors-in-training, who have worked tirglessly to care
for patients with Covid-19. The high quality of junior doctors choosing to work and
train at Whittington Health has become even more apparent. They have all shown
tremendous flexibility and a strong desire o contribule to hard working clinical teams,
transferring from many different specialist areas into medical inpatient and intensive
care, Even those whose risk assessment meant they could not work in face-to-face
clinical areas have fully contributed, for example providing a key communication link
between patients admitted with Covid-12 and their families and loved ones, The high
esteem with which postgraduate medical education (PGME) at the Whittington is held

 Jane Simpson, Irene Gafson, Mumtaz Mooncey, Johnny Swart and Caroline Fertleman. Experiences of o new
training prograrmme for fingl-year medicol students during the COMIDIS pandemic. (Fut Healthcare J Mov
2020
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also meant that we were able to recruit back to the Trust, previous doctors-in-training
who had moved on. These doctors put research work and teaching fellowships on
hold to contribule to acule on-calls, emergency shifts and inpatient care.

Our doctars-in-training have also been instrumental in undertaking Covid-19 related
guality improvement work. For example, they designed the patient admission
documents, set-up and maintained an online document sharing hub for updated
patient treatment protocels and contributed to patient management guidelines. They
have also been key in undertaking audit and research work, including in Covid-19,
and have published in high impact international medical journals such as the Journal
of Clinical Endocrinclogy and Metabelism (JCEM).

In the midst of this pandemic, we have continued to provide PGME and teaching, in
a blend of online, recorded webinars and face-lo-face training. The Foundation
School particularly recognised the high performance of the Whittington in restarting
Foundation Doctor teaching at a time earlier than other local Trusts. We have
continued our Whittington Health Star Awards in PGME, for work above and beyond
usual practice. We awarded a Star to all our doctors-in-training after the first COVID-
19 surge, in recognition of their huge contribution to patient care. We are also aware
that this intense level of working can bring with it significant stresses and we set up
reflective practice and well-being sessions for our doctors-in-training, provided by
colleagues from clinical psychology.

Outside Covid-19, Whittington PGME has had a notably successful year. We were
awarded £125,000 from Health Education England (HEE) in response to applications
for funding, particularly around Simulation-based medical education (Sim) and
leadership development, This funding will be used to support cngoing projects such
as pilot-observed multi-professional, multidisciplinary Sim training and also will
support future development of Sim training at the Whittington.

We received funding from HEE to support the continuing professional development
(CPD) of specialty and locally employed doctors in the Trust. We sat up a Whittington
CPD award scheme, Inviting applications, and have been able to contribute towards
these doctors undertaking Masters’ degrees, practical clinical skills training,
professional exams and Cedificate of Eligibility for Specialist Registration
applications.

We appointed a digitising medical education co-ordinator, who Is working to make
Whittingten PGME available online to all. This work will be co-ordinated with Trust-
wide developments in education across all professions. Members of our PGME
faculty, both administrative and clinical, have been promoted to more senior posts
outside the Whittington. We are delighted to have been able to attract and recruit

! ploutarchos Troulis, lullan & Waung, Emmanoull Bagkeris, Ziad Hussein, Alvappa Blddanda, lohn Cousins,
Alice Dewsnlp, Kanoyin Falayl, Will McCaughean, Chiae Mullins, Ammara Maeem, Muna Nwokola, Helen
Ciaah, Syed Bitat, Eithar Deyab, Swarupini Ponnampalam, Pierre-Marc Bouloux, Hugh Montgomery,
Stephanie Baldeweg, Dysnatremia is @ predictor for morbidity and moriality in hospitolized potients with
COWD-12,. (The lournal of Clinical Endocrinology and Metaboksm, 2021; dgab107,
https:/fdol.org/10. 1310/ clinem/dgab107)
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skilled and azle new mambers of the team to replace them, including naw aollede
{utors far saediatrles and for anassihetlos.

e of ihe most significant challengas ovey tho last year invalving PGWE was sstting
up the Paediatdic South Hule for Borth Sertral London, bringing tegeihsr consultants
and dogicrs-in-training from asmss the lacal thres Trusts (Whillnglan Heakth, Royal
Frea Hospital, Unlversity Cellega Londan Hospitals 1o work togather in the Paediatrics
Emaorgency Depatmant at tha Whettington, This had & vory signincant impact on
training. Howewer, the Tmist suppotted us in appeinting & pasdiatics medical
education so-ardinafar wha has been insirumental in supgorting and srganlsing bes
practice rmultidizciplinary training evenls sz well 25 jusior deatar focuzed training. W
ara now leoking 1¢ a fulure whare tha Whittington will continda to wark in parnerehip
with other local Trusts and where our PGME toam will co-crdinate and prowvide
educational oppottundties tor decters-in-training and consultants across the sector,
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COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT

Change and uncerainty demand clarity and direction and our communications team
worked hard to bring that to Whittington Health's staff, patients, and local community
over the past year. It also presented us with the opporiunity to demonstrate the
value and importance of high quality communications to the organisation's success.

Over the course of the year, we worked hard 1o ensure we communicaled the latest,
trustworthy advice, information and guidance as quickly as possible. From the
beginning of the pandemic, we created a dedicated Covid-19 bulletin which
contained action focussed information and updates to provide the information our
teams working across the organisation needed to ensure that we could continue to
provide safe, effective care through the pandemic. We also ensured that these
updates contained information and advice to suppon our colleagues’ wellbeing and
provided datails of the emotional and practical support available to staff throughout.
This was distributed to all staff up to six times a week at the height of the pandemic
period.

These emails were supplemented by a Covid-19 hub on our siaff infranet which
contained all of the information staff may need and which is available 24/7. It
contains sections including care and support for staff and practical support such as
access to car parking, clinical guidelines, personal protective equipment guidelines
for staff depending on where they are working, details of Covid-19 research frials we
wera taking part in, access to Covid-19 safety posters and signage staff could print
out and use locally and much more.

We also supported the Trust to keep everyone safe through the rapid provision of
physical signage throughout the estate which was kept up-to-date as we leamed
more about Covid-19 and as the guidance from national bodies such as Public
Health England was updated. This included over 2,000 floor stickers and stickers for
chairs in waiting rooms to ensure safe social distancing.

For our patients and the public, we supported national information campaigns
supplemented with more detailed local information. This included very regular
updates on our social media channels and at key moments we provided updates
from the chief executive via the letters page and paid for adverts in our local
newspapers. We established a dedicated page on our website with key information
about changes to services and key policies such as pafient visiting so that it was
easy for people to find the information they needed quickly.

We are especially proud that we created several products in direct responsa to
feadback from our community around what they needed, These included:;

= A real ime "service status® page, similar to a tube status board, on our website,
Principally aimed at local GPs, il shows all of our services on a single page
giving information about whether the service was operating and details of any
changes especially to referral methods. This has received very positive feedback
from our local GP community
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= A parent of A child with specific needs related to a loag-temn I=arning disability
teld us fhat they and oiher pavents with children with conditicns such as autiam
wara concarned aboul bringing den childran e cur smeiganey desartmeant
during the pandamin. In respanse, within 24 hours, we created a dedicatad sasy-
read guide which explained what (o expact when caming to the departmen:
during the pandemic. what we werns daing ta xeep people 2afe and how we can
support palienis with spacific neads. e supplemerted Lhis on cur websho with
further resources developed by other organisations and charities o support
people with autism

v [edicated advice for pregnant women to support thern wizh the spesific issues
they facad curing the pandamic, Including answaring thae mast fiequenthy askad
questiona ayr maternity colleaguas ware asked

Dezpite the prossures of the pandamic, we alza continued ta suppor the Trust in
cther arsas. For exampta, we developed and dalivared a naw stakoholdar updatc
which cantains information on the most imporant news Tom across Whittington
Health as well as regular perfarmance updates. Shis s sent by email to stakeholders
mracnlhly, or mare cllan whara kera is a lol ol ngws 1o share. Wa hope that this
pravides 5 Felpful insight info whet s happening af Whikingtan Health.

We maintained a key focus an supporting aur Caring for 3 hase Whe Care
Fragrarmitme whish aitr:s Lo dallvar a cultare acimzs tha Trust wiako evanfane feele
wilyad and included and everyore's woice is haard This undoubtedly contibuted &a
the pasitive improvements in Whittington Health’s scores in the anrual MHS staff
surecy, dospite aur colcaguas living threogh the teeghest pedad of their profesgicnal
lives.

Through the challenges prezented by the pandenmic, we also condinued 0 support
the Trusl to engaga with patistls ard servlea uzars whern long-tenn changes to
seniceEs were planned ta ensure that their vaices are at the heart of nur decisian
making. Thig included launching & major consulation on changes i wheare sore
senices are urovided in the Londen Gareugh of Haringay towasds the end of the
YEET,

Owerdeaf, ts an infegraphic on what the cammunications and engagement teatn
completad last year.
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What we did last year:
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INFORMATION GOVERNANCE AND CYBER
SECURITY

Information Govermnance (IG) is to do with the way organisations process or handle
information, Cyber Security relates to the precautions the Trust takes to secure and
protect the information it holds. The Trust takes ils responsibilities to protect
confidential data serously and over the last five years has made significant
improvements in many areas of information governance and cyber security, including
technical security, data guality, subject access requests, freedom of information and
records management.

The Data Security and Protection (DSP) Toolkit is a policy delivery vehicle produced
by the Department of Health and Social Care, hosted and maintained by NHS Digital.
It combines the legal framework including the EU General Data Protection Regulation
{2018} and the Data Protection Act (2018), the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and
central government guidance including the NHS Code of Practice on Confidentiality
and the NHS Code of Practice on Records Management. The framework ensures the
Trust manages the confidential data it holds safaly and within statutory requirements.

During the year the Trust implemented an improvemeant plan to achieve DSP Toolkit
compliance and to improve compliance against other standards. Due to Covid-18, the
deadline for submission of the 2020/21 Toolkit was extended to 30 September 2020,

All staff are required o underake |G training which includes a Cyber Security
component. In 2020/21, the Trust reached an annual peak of 82% of staff being IG
training compliant. As of 31 March 2021, the Trust's compliance figure was 81%.

Compliance rates and methods to increase them are regularly monitored by the 1G
committea. The |G department continues to promaote requirements to train and largets
staff with individual emails, includes news features in the weekly electronic staff
Moticeboard and manages classroom-based sessions at induction.

Further details relating to information governance incidents in the last year are
referenced in the annual governance statement.
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INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND TECHNOLOGY
DEVELOPMENTS

Whittington Health continued its work through the Global Digital Exemplar programme.
Major developments include the implementation of digital clinical noting in inpatient
areas, a patient flow system that enables improved monitoring of the inpatient
pathways to optimise care for patients who need admission and a clinical workspace.
The workspace draws together access to in-context patient data from across clinical
syslems such as digital noting, observations, pathology, imaging and shared care
records.

Through the pandemic, Whittington Health has alse moved to an enhanced modeal of
remote working through a range of technologies with regulary five times the number
of staff working remotely than prior to the pandemic. In line with the national offer, the
Trust also implementad Microsoft Teams which enabled the staff to meet, collaborate
and communicate effectively even when social distancing requirements meant they
could not meet in person, Video and telephone consultation become a more prominent
feature in the model of outpatient care across both acute and community settings.

Last year, the Trust continued to invest and develop its infrastructure and systems with
work ongoing to build new agile working models, implement the national Office 365
agreement, and fo complete the annual operating system refresh. Data and Security
Toolkit work has been at the heart of the design and the Trust continues lo make
strong progress in developing secure and effective interoperable systems which
support high quality patient care.

The pandemic brought many challenges including the need for robust, real-time data
across a wide number of domains. As progress was made with digitising the acute part
of Whittington Health to bring it in line with community-based services, the opportunity
to leverage near real-time data has started to emerge in some applications. The Trust
built dashboards to monitor the management of Covid-19 patients, oxygen utilisation,
vaccine roll out, and to support the wider North Central London data needs around
discharge planning and system capacity.

Finally, the Trust enhanced its integrated model of care on a number of fronts. In
particular, our district nursing teams enhanced their work planning system and
implemented virlual smartcards to enable real-time access to patient records from any
location. This augmented the iPad-based agile working solution the team had already
implemented further leveraging this investment.
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ESTATE

Following publication of cur estate sirateqy in early 2020 sstting out three phesss of
devetopment to transiorm gur estate far the uiure, wa progressed with approval of &
strateqic oubine cass for remodelling of the metermity and naonatal block. This is now
rncwing fandard with furtner sumvay and design work taking place with the view to a
funther business cases in summcr 2021 and the stant of building taking elace Isterin the
202122 financial year,

In ke communily, we beacgan cur joumey o threes adult haks and one children's
speciafist cantris per borough. At tha time of weiting tis nepon, we are cuamently
consLlting on an cxaiting op partunity to move ihe Chilet Development Cenire irom St
Ann's to Tynemouth Aead.

During 2020021, wa delivered significant capital invastiment within the cstate to
SUppaorn our current activitics. This inaludod:

o Sgaing the new Whitting o Edpsation Gantra being built in the place of tha
cld Waterlaw Building, with comglation dus 0 Jurc 2021

+ The demoliticn ot the old Whittingten Education Genire in preperation for 1he
riew Cramcden g Blington Mertel Healb in-pallent unit

s  Complotion of the eefurbishrment of our postal natel ward
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SUSTAINABILITY

The United Nations describes climate change as "the defining Issue of our time”.
Climate change is a long-term shift in global and regional climate patterns, specifically
relating to the increased level of atmospheric carbon dioxide produced from the use
of fossil fuels. It is a risk to health at both the national and global level. As a provider
of healthcare and as a publicly funded organisation, our Trust is committed to ensuring
the long-term sustainability of the natural environment to deliver sustainable
healthcare and 1o safeguard human health. By ensuring we ulilise environmental,
financial and social assefs in a sustainable manner, we will continue to help local
people live longer, healthier lives even in the context of nsing utility costs.

In 2019, the UK Government amended the carbon emissions reduction target defined

in the Climate Change Act 2008 from 80% (vs. the 1990 baseline year) 1o 100% by

2050, To ensure that the NHS is aligned to legal UK targets, in October 2020 NHS

England released its Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National Health Service report which

outlines clear carbon reduction targets for the arganisation:

+ Directly controllable emissions (the 'NHS Carbon Footprint”) should be net zero by
2040

# Trusts should aim for an 80% reduction of directly controllable emissions by 2028
to 2032

« Other influenceable emissions (the 'NHS Carbon Footprint Plus’) should be net
zero by 2045

=« MNHS trusts should aim for an 80% reduction of influenceable emissions by 2036
to 2039

N D DD

SCOPE 1 o
DIRECT e emypE 2 S e

Er WA T

G TPRIEE NHS CARBON
S FOOTPRINT PLUS

Figure I: MHS Caorben Foodprint scope defivition (Defivering o ‘Wet Zem’ Mationo! Heaith Serace, 2020]
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Whittington Health recognised thal it is crucial to take steps now to assure thal the
Trust not only meets these targets but is at the forefront of sustainability within the
healthcare sector.

Qur plan

Our Green Plan outlines the national and local context of sustainability within the
healthcare sector, discusses how sustainability aligns with our organisational vision
and details how we intend to embed sustainability across our organisation. Key points
include:
« An improved approach to monitoring and reporting sustainability Key
Performance Indicators (KPls)
« A qualitative assessment of our performance in a number of key Areas of
Focus (as defined by the Sustainable Development Unit (SDU))
= A defined set of actions to progress the Trust's sustainable development
+ An appraisal of the potential risk and opportunities associated with our wider
sustainability strategy

Carbon impact

The Trust's energy consumption and therefore a significant proportion ol our carbon
impact is affected by multiple factors including floor area, staff and patient numbers,
type of care being delivered, local climate and efficacy of estate management. Data is
not easily available fo assess the impact of each of these, so we track carbon impact
through an emissions/floorspace KPI. This normalises for changes to the Trust estate
and allows benchmarking against similar acute NHS trusts.

Figure 2 below shows the Trust's direct carbon emissions (i.e. those associated with
energy consumption of the built environment) normalised for floor area. We have
selected a baseline year of 2013/14 and overlaid the NHS's interim target of an 80%
reduction by 2032 — this is indicated by the orange line. The graph shows that, to date,
the Trust has reduced its direct carbon impact by 39%, ahead of the average yearly
reduction required to meet the 2032 interim target.

Direct Emizzions S m?

Lovbon [hplD.a | o
-1

FFEN 1A DIFLAS LS TSN E PO IS TF FOT PSS JUTRALY I0UFI SOUST L FIIELAIT U220 FY AT AR s
S Arthesl Carbon impect == TH‘I“ Cmriom Irmgpaci
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The positive trend shown in Figure 2 was influenced by the Trust's ongoing investment
in energy efficiency and carbon reduction projects. In 2020, the second phase of an
LED lighting project, for which the Trust successlully bid for funding from NHS
Improvement, was implemented in multiple areas of the acute hospital. Inefficient
fiucrescent and halogen fittings in the Kenwood Wing, H block and the Jenner building
were replaced with low energy LED altematives. This project reduced our annual
carbon impact by 200+ tCOze p.a. Following the success of this work, the estates team
are invesligating the potential for further rollout of LED lighting in other areas including
A & L blocks and in community health clinics.

The Trust also invested in replacing secondary heating plant equipment in K block and
improving the controls to this equipment to enable optimisation. Additionally, wa
replaced aged, inefficient boller plant in several of our community sites with high
efficiency alternatives. This reduced our gas consumption, saving 24 1COze p.a.
Looking forward, the Trust is planning a review of the hospital's long-term energy
strategy to identify how to best supply utilities to the acute site in line with the estate
transformation plans. We also have plans to improve our data collection and analysis
process to incorporate a broader range of emissions sources as outlined in the NHS
Carbon Footprint shown in Figure 1,

Waste management

Despite the challenging circumstances of the pandemic, the facilities’ waste team
continued to drive improvement through Whittington hospital's in-house recycling
centre. Having built upon the success of previous years in which the main hospital
became a zero waste to landfill site, the proportion of total waste recycled has been
maintained at approximately 31%. This is a significant achievement given that there
was an enormous increase in clinical waste from the use of necessary personal
protective equipment which needs disposal through incineration. The facilities’ team
also maintained the practice of baling and storing cardboard waste on-site until thera
is enough 1o fill a whole waste consignment. This minimises transport and extemal
labour costs, as well as reducing the associated road miles. Figure 3 below shows the
breakdown of the main hospital's waste streams last year,

ACUTE HOSPITAL WASTE BREAKDOWN - 2020/21
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Looking forward into 2021/22, we will focus on continuing to drive down total waste
production whilst increasing the proportion sent for recycling. The Trust will also focus
on improving the tracking of waste generation and recycling rates across our
community sites.

Water use

Whittington Health is aware that although it may not appear to be critical at present,
water scarcity is a growing concem in the UK. In 2019, the chiel executive of the
Environment Agency predicted that with the impact of climate change and a nsing
population, the UK may not have sufficient water to meet ils needs in as litle as 20-25
years. We are also aware that the supply and distribution of water has an intrinsic
carbon cost which adds to the Trust's supply chain emissions. As a significant
consumer of water, we recognise that we need to take action now to mitigate these
risks.

Figure 4 shows the Trust's annual water consumption per m® of floorspace going back
te 2013/14, with our reduction target of 30% by 2025 overlaid. During 2017-2019, the
Trust had an irregularly high water consumption level caused by a significant behind-
the-meter water pipe leak at the acute hospital. This leak was located and repaired in
2019 leading to more typical annual consumption in 2019720, In 2020/21 the Trust's
water use reduced to below our target lavel for the first time since 2014/15. While this
is indicative of the progress we have made in encouraging reduced waler use, we also
recognise that atypical clinical activity linked to the pandemic will have been a
significant driver of the total reduction. To embed these benefits, we are considering
how to more closely monitor consumption to identify and mitigate consumption peaks
in & timely manner,
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Procurement

We continue our commitment to reduce the wider environmental and social impact
associated with the procurement of goods and services, in addition to our focus on
carbon. Following completion of the SDU’'s Sustainable Development Assessment
Tool, we have identified a number of areas where we can look to improve the
sustainability of our procurement practices. Examples include investigating the
financial impact of purchasing green energy, the inclusion of sustainability specific
criteria within tenders for goods & services and improved data capture to enable
tracking of the carbon impact of our supply chain. Furthermore, we have recently
conducted an in-depth review of our current utilities procurement contracts and are
now considering options for the future to ensure that, going forward, we receive a cost-
effective, high quality service that will not be at odds with our sustainability goals.

Travel & logistics

The Trust is engaged in a collaborative relationship with Islington Council to improve
sustainable transport within the borough. We have a clear focus on greener travel with
the intendad aim both of reducing the carbon footprint of our business operations and
supply chain and to improve the air quality of the local area.

Whittington operated a total of 13 electric fleet vehicles primarily for the purpose of
business travel between community sites. This represents more than 50% of the
Trust's vehicle fleel. Some larger petrol/diesel powered vehicles are retained for
functions such as security and pharmaceutical deliveries. Business travel by car is
conducted with the electric pool cars wherever possible. This has been facilitated
through the Trust’s investment of 6 electric vehicle (EV) charging points on the acute
site, as well as several others across the community sites, In addition to our EVs, the
Trust issued approximately 370 oyster cards to community staff to encourage the use
of public transport instead of journeying by petrol/diesel cars.

In line with our clinical strategy, the estate strategy will reduce the number of locations
we deliver clinical services from, ensuring they are demographically positioned to
sarve our community meore efficiently. This will reduce the travel times of our patients
and staff, therefore reducing the carbon impact of all associated journeys made.

Covid-19 impact

Throughout the previous financial year, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic had a
profound impact on the Trust’s ways of working and the breadth and nature of care we
deliver. Although the extent and duration of the effects will not be fully understood for
some time, it is clear there will be a knock-on effect on our sustainability agenda. The
pandemic and our response to it, will inevitably present challenges, particularly relating
to our capacity to deliver energy efficiency and environmental improvement projects
whilst maintaining pricrities such as stafi wellbeing and allocation of finances.
However, the situation may also present some opportunities in the longer-term such
as highlighting how different working practices can reduce energy, water use and the
need to travel. As a Trust, we recognise the importance of ensuring our sustainable
development commitment is not discarded as a result of the pandemic and that we
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EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

Whittington Health participated in the annual Emergency Preparedness, Resilience
and Response (EPRR) assurance process led by NHS England. The core standards
for EPRR are set out for NHS organisations to meel. The Trust's annual assessment
was completed on 30 October 2020 by the North Central NHS England Assurance
Team. NHS England communicated to providers on 20 August 2020 that the
arrangements for 2020 would not require a granular assessment, if fully compliant.
The EPRRA assurance requirements stipulated that providers self-assess compliance,

demonstrate leaming from the first Covid-19 wave and provide assurance in relation
to winter planning.

SELF ASSESSMENT- FULLY COMPLIANT: EPRR and CBRN (chemical,
biclogical, radiclogical and nuclear) 2020 assurance oulcome in accordance with
standards achieved in 2018.

NHS England Core
Core Standards
Standards total
EPRR 55 {1-55) (] 0 55
CBRN 14 (56-69) 0 0 14

The Trust sustained the level of resilience at "Fully Compliant”. An after action review
for wave 1 of the Covid-19 response was conducted on 23 June 2020, The learning
informed planning and additional preparation required for the second wave. The
Winter Plan was approved by the Trust's Management Group on 29 September 2020.

EU exit preparations
Whittington Health established an EU Exit Planning Group, chaired by the Chief
Operating Officer. The group's membership included Directors and service leaders. It

met bi-monthly to discuss issues, actions and update the Trust's EU exit plan in line
with updates received nationally.
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CONCLUSION TO THE PERFORMANCE REPORT
AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The above document represents the performance report and statement of financial
position of Whittington Health for the financial year 2018/20. As the CEOQ | believe this
represents an accurate and full picture of the Trust for the year,

Signe

Da’te:ﬁ.}una 2021
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT

Members of Whittington Health's Trust Board

Mon-Executive Directors
Julia Neuberger, Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon®, Tony Rice, Anu Singh, Glenys
Thomton®, Rob Vincent®, Junaid Bajwa"", Wanda Goldwag™™", Deborah Harris-

Ugbomah™"
foined 1 May 2020, ""jolnad 1 July 2020, "1 July 2020 to 31 Decamber 2020, "**laft 30 April 2020

Executive Directors
Siobhan Harrington, Kevin Cumow, Clare Dollery, Morma French, Jonathan Gardner,
Carol Gillen, Sarah Humphery, Michelle Johnson

Membership of board committees
The following committees reporied to the Board:

Audit and Risk Committee
Non-Executive Directors: Rob Vincent, Amanda Gibbon, Maomi Fulop, (Tony Rice 1o
1 July 2020), Deborah-Harris Ugbomah (to 30 April 2020)

Charitable Funds' Committee

Mon-Executive Directors: Tony Rice, Julia Neuberger, Amanda Gibbon
Executive Directors: Kevin Cumow, Clare Dollery, Jonathan Gardner, Siobhan
Harrington, Michelle Johnson

Finance & Business Development

Mon-Executive Directors: Tony Rice, Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Wanda
Goldwag, Junaid Bajwa, Rob Vincent (estate issues)

Executive Directors: Kevin Cumow, Carol Gillen, Siobhan Harrington, Jonathan
Gardner

Quality Assurance Committee

Non-Executive Directors: Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Glenys Thomton
Executive Directors: Michelle Johnson, Clare Dollery, Carol Gillen

Remuneration Committee
MNon-Executive Directors: Julia Neuberger, Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Tony
Rice, Anu Singh, Glenys Thomton, Rob Vincent

Workforce Assurance Committee

Non-Executive Directors; Anu Singh, Glenys Thomton, Rob Vincent
Executive Directors: Kevin Cumow, Norma French, Michelle Johnson, Carol Gillen
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Mon-executive director appraisal process

The chairman and non-execufive directors annually evaluate their performance
through appraisal and identify any areas for development. The appraisal of the non-

executive directors is carried out by the chairman.

Trust Board of Directors' declarations of interest

In line with the Nolan principles of public life, Whittington Health NHS Trust is
committed to openness and transparency in its work and decision making. As part of
that commitment, we maintain and publish a register of interests which draws logether
declarations of interests made by members of the Board of Directors. In addition, at
the commencement of each Board meeting, members of the Board are required to
declare any interests in respect of specific items on the agenda. The declarations for

2020/21 are shown balow:

Non-Executive Directors — voting Board members

Baroness Julia
Meuberger DBE

- - - & L - - - - -

Independent, Cross Bench Pear, House of Lords
Chair, University College London Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust

Chair, Independent Age

Qccasional broadeasting for the BBC

Rabbi Emarita, West London Synagogue
Trustee, Walter and Liesel Schwab Charitable Trust
Trustee, Van Leer Group Foundation

Chairman, Van Leer Jerusalem Institute

Trustes, Rayne Foundation

Vice President, Jewish Leadership Council
Consultant, Clore Duffield Foundation

Trustee, Whittington Health Charity

fls fin hat may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

il

Maomi Fulop

Co

Honorary contract, University College London
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Professor of Health Care Organisation &
Management, Depanment of Applied Research,
University College London

Trustea, Health Services Research UK (Charitable
Incorporated Organisation)

Trustee, Whittington Health Charity

Lay member, NHS Blood and Transplant's National

Crgan Donation Committee

h ri ut of any known
i family involvement
Mil
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CAmanda Fibbon

v Fersonal sharsholdings in Mearck and Asirazensca

v Mambar, Humhan Tissue Authonty

v Chait, RareCan Limited (start-up company Izzking to
recrilit patients with rave cancers in armer to promote
researsh into heir disesss arsas. This posl s
currEntly unramunsraiad and tha company has not
vzt egun trading)

v LAy membet, MHS Blood and Transplant's Mational
Crdgan Danation Cormmitiaes

v Fovernor, Univarsity Golfege Landon Hospiials MNHS
Foundaticn Trast (ta 31%* Decamber 20:20)

v Trestee, Whittington Headth Charity

v Aszociate Mon-Executive Director, Hoyal Free London

MNHS Foundabion Trasl

v Exiamal marmosr of the Audit and Rizk Aszurance
Committes of the MNational Inatituie of Clinical
Excellence

Conflicts af intamests that may atisa aut of any khawt

immediate fatly involvement

v My four [mdult) children each have pessonal
sharahiolidings in GlaxeSmiltKing

Tuny Rice v Chair, Dechra Phasmacsidicals Ltd
v Hanior Indepanden| Girectar (Mon-Exacutive Dirsctar],
Halma Flc
v Chair, Witra Electronics {part of the Fenlen cross-
industrizl syndicate supplying ventilators fa the MHS)
v Chair of Maidan Wiage Pl
v Trustae, Whittington Health Chatisy
Conflicte of inkerests ihat may arise out of any known
Immedlale farmily Involvernend
v il
And Hingh v Member of HMG's Advlzony Commillag on Foal

Fowvsriy

v MNon-Excoutive Dircctor, Padiamentary & Health
Service Ombudsman Boatd

v Trustse, Whittington Health Charity

v MNan-Ewacutive Diractor and Sanlar Ind=pendant
Bimzctor, Camden & Iskrgton MHS Foundaton Trost

v Chair, Pafnership Southuwask

v Chair, Lamieth Safeguarding Adults Board

Conflicts af intarests that may arise cut of any kknown

immediate family involvament

v Husband iz a valunieer in the Hanngsy Improving
foeess ta Feychalogreal Therazies senvice
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Baroness Glenys
Thormton

v Member of the House of Lords, Opposition
Spokesperson for Health

»  Member, Advisory Group, Good Govermnance Institute

+ Chair and Trustee, Phone Co-op Foundation for Co-
operative Innovation

» Chair, Advisory Board of Assistive Healthcare
Technology Association

» Senior Associate, Social Business Intemalional

»  Senior Fellow, The Young Foundation

«  Council Member, University of Bradford

» Emeritus Governor, London School of Economics

+ Trustee, Roots of Empathy UK

+ Patron, Social Enterprise UK

v Trustee, Whittington Health Charity

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

im i ily involvameant
v Nil

Rob Vincent CBE

» Director of New Ing Consulting, currently providing
assistance to the Track and Trace programme in
Yorkshire and Humber

+ Chair, Kirklees Cultural Education Parinership

»  Trustee, Whittington Health Charity

» Associate Non-Executive Director, Universily College
London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involverment
+ Nil

Executive Directors — voting Board members

Siobhan Harrington,
Chief Executive

»  Nil

f interests that may ari ny known
immeadiate family involvemean

»  Daughter-in-law is employed by Whittington Health's
Pharmacy department
+  Son is employed by the Islington re-ablement service

Kevin Curnow,
Acting Chief
Financa Officer

v Chair, Whittington Pharmacy, Community Interest
Company

Confiicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immedi mily involvement
+  Nil

Page 79 of 106




Clare Dollery,
Medical Director

Mil

nfii i is2 ou SN

immediate family involvement

Mil

Carol Gillan, Chief

Non-Executive Director, Whittington Pharmacy

Operating Officer Community Interest Company
Conflicts of interasts that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
v il
Michelle Johnson »  Trustee on Board of Roald Dahl Marvellous Children’s
MBE, Chief Nurse & Charity
Director of Allied +  Independent member of NHS Professionals’ Quality
Health Committee
Professionals »  Chief Nurse, Camden & Islington NHS Foundation

Trust

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediata family invohrement

Son and daughter are volunteers at Whittington
Health

MNon-voting Board members

Junaid Bajwa

Chief Medical Scientist, Microsoft

Essential Guides UK Limited (Shareholder, GP locum
services and educational work)

Chief Medical Scientist, Microsoft Ressarch

Merck Sharp and Dohme (shareholder and employee
in the Global Digital Centre of Excellence)

NH3S England (GF appraiser)

Non-Executive Director, University College London
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Conflicts of inte t may ari kni
immediate iy involvement

Nil

Wanda Goldwag

Chair, Office for Legal Complaints

Chair, Financial Services Consumer Panel, Financial
Conduct Authority

Chair, Leasehold Advisory Service

Lay member, Queen's Counsels appointmeants panal
MNon-Executive Director, Royal Free London NHS
Foundation Trust
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v [iractar, Lovalty Services Limited
v Direatar, Goldwag Consultanay Limited

Conflicts of interosts that may arige out of sy known

immediate farmily involvernsnt .
N i

i Surah Humghery » P Pertner Goodings Group Praciice, Goodinge
| Healih Centre, 20 MWorth Boad, Londan N7 GEW.
i Ganeral Madizal Servines

v The Goodinga Practics iz part of WISH, the GF
sennce in the Whittingtor Health ermengency
department and alsa the Isfingtor Marth Primary Care
Pl st

Conflicts of inforosts that may arisc o of any known

immediate family inwahement
v Ml

Jonathan Gardner + Chaiv of G-I-_'-I';‘Em-DI‘S, St Jzmas Charch of Englns-uncl
Frimary School, YWaodsida Avenue, Musweall Hill,
Harrmgey, London, W10 304

Caonflicts of inforosts that may arisc out of anw kngwn

immediate family iTvakemernt
P Ml

Moamna French C L[]

Conflicts of intsrasts that may anse aut of any known

immodeatc family inyobicsncnt

» Hushand is consulfant physician at Centrel & Morth
West London MHES Foundation st

v 3on s amplayad a5 a Busingss Analyst in ths
Frocurement departnentt at Whittingian Health

v Sone is employed as an administrator in the
lzboratany service &k Whittington Heslth
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT

The salanes and allowances of senior managers who held office during the year ended
31 March 2020 are shown in Table 1 below.

The definition of ‘Senior Managers' given in paragraph 3.49 of the Depariment of
Health Group Accounting Manual (GAM) 2020/21 is: ... persons in senior positions
having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling major activities within the
group body”". For the purposes of this report, senior managers are defined as the chief
axecutive, non-executive directors and executive directors, all Board members with

voting nghts.

Salaries and allowances 2020/21
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Salaries and allowances 2019/20
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Statement of the policy on senior managers' remuneration

The remuneration committee follows national guidance on the salary of senior
managers. All elements of remuneration, including ‘annual cost of living increases’,
when applicable, continued to be subject to performance conditions. Cther decisions
made by the Committee are reflected in the tables above. This is subject to the
achievement of geals being objectively assessed. The governance arrangements for
the committee form part of the Whittington Health's standing orders, reservations and
delegation of powers and standing financial instructions, last updated in March 2021,

In line with the requirements of the NHS Codes of Conduct and Accountability, the
purpose of the committee is to advise the Trust Board about appropriate remuneration
and terms of service for the chief executive and other executive directors including;

= all aspects of salary (including any performance-related elements/bonuses)

= provisions for other benefits, including pensions and cars
« arrangements for termination of employment and other contractual terms
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Board members' pension entitlements for those in the pension scheme
2020/21
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The Trust's accounting policy in respect of pensions is described in Note 8 of the
complete annual accounts document that will be uploaded to www. whittington,nhs. uk
in September 2021. As non-executive directors do not receive pensionable
remuneration, there are no entries in respect of pensions.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a point in time.

The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses fo transfer the
benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the
benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their tolal membership
of the pension scheme. not just their service in a senior capacity to which the
disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value
of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement, which the individual has
transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension
benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing of additional years of
service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines
and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

The real increase in CETV reflects the increase in the CETV effectively funded by the
employer. It takes account of the increase in the accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred
from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.

Pay multiples

Non-Executive Directors

The Trust follows NHS Improvement guidance for appointing non-executive directors.
The terms of the contract apply equally to all non-executive directors with the
exception of the Chair, who has additional responsibilities and accountabilities. The
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remuneration of a non-executive director is £11,500. The Chair received remunearation
of £28,053 for 2020-21.

Salary range
The Trust is required to disclose the ratio between the remuneration of the highest-
paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the workforce.

The mid-point remuneration of the highest paid director at Whittington Health in
2020/21 was E£184,380 (2019/20: £182,500). This was 6.0 tmes the median
remuneration of the workforce, which was £31,365 (2019/20: £30,401).

In 2020/21, we had no employees (unchanged from 2018/20) who received
remuneration more than the highest-paid director.

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consclidated performance-related pay,
benefits-in-kind and severance payments. it does nol include employer contributions
and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Staff numbers and composition
* To comply with the requirements of NHSI's Group Accounting Manual, the Trust
is also required to provide information on the following:
staff numbers and costs
staff composition by gender
sickness absence dala
expenditure on consultancy
off-payrell arrangements; and
exit packages.

" &% & ® & @

This information is shown overleaf.
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Breakdown of temporary and permanent staff members

Average WTE
2020-21 2019-20
Permanent staff Total
Medical and dental 477 4383
Admiristration and estates 1,030 873
Healthcare assistants and other support stalf 630 587
Mursing, midwitery and health visiting stal 1,080 1,063
Scientific, therapeullc and technical siall 753 733
Permanent statf Total 3,969 3,839
Tamporary stalf
Medical and dental 74 46
Ambulance staff
Administration and estates 163 183
Healthcare assistants and other suppaort staff 110 132
Mursing, midwifery and health visiting stafl 181 210
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 57 il
Tempaorary staff total 585 642
All Staf total 4,565 4,481

Costs of temporary and permanent staff members

Permanent Staff
Administration and Estates 30,133 42, 782
Medical and Dental 49,056 47,185
Mursing and Midwives 62,168 61,340
Scientific, Therapeutic and Technical 44 0924 43,028
Healthcare assistants and Other Support Staff 21,810 20,505
Apprenticeship Levy 967 1050
Permanent Total 235,058 215,890|
Temporary Staff
Administration and Estates 7,145 0,880
Medical and Dental 9,315 6,651
Mursing and Midwives 10,968 11,752
scientific, Therapeutic and Technical 2. 736 3179
Healthcare assistants and Other Support Staff 4,134 4,500
Temporary Staff Total 34,298 33,061

Page 86 of 106



Consultancy spend
The Trust spent £0.5m on consultancy in 2020/21. The majority of this expenditure
was incurred to support our efficiency scheme.

Off-payroll engagements
The Trust is required to disclose all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2021 for
more than £245 per day and that last longer than six months. The Trust does not have
any of these engagements.

Exit packages 2020/21
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Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the
provisions of the NHS Scheme. Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the
year of departure. Where Whittington Health has agreed eardy retirements, the
additional costs are met by the Trust.

Signe

Dale:]guna 2021

cenreeneensenohief Executive
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the NHS Trust's policies, aims and objectives,
whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which | am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. | am also
responsible for ensuring that the NHS Trust is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. | also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer
Memoarandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; il can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
systemn of intemal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of
Whittington Health NHS Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of intemal control has been in place in Whittington Heaith
NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Trust has a robust approach to risk management. This can be demonstrated by
the following:

» Leadership of the risk management process through:
o the Board annually reviewing its risk management strategy and risk appatite
o executive risk leads for each Board assurance Framework entry
o Board members reviewing the Board Assurance Framework and key entries
on the Trust Risk Register on a quanerly basis

« The Audit & Risk Commitiee has delegated authority from the Board for oversight
and assurance on the control framework in place to manage strategic risks to the
delivery of the Trust's objectives and reviews the effectiveness of the Trust's
systems of risk management and intemal controd

= |t is supported in this by other Board Committees providing assurance to the
Board on the effective mitigation of strategic Board Assurance Framework
entries and other key nsks, as follows:

o The Quality Assurance Committee reviews and provides assurance to the
Board on the management of risks relating to quality and safety, including all
risk entries scored above 15 on individual Integrated Clinical Service Units'
{ICSUs) and corporate areas’ risk registers
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o The Finance & Business Development Committee provides assurance to the
Board on the delivery of the Trust's financial sustainability and integration
stralegic objectives and reviews risks scored higher than 15 which relate to
finance, information governance, estates and information technology

o The Workforce Assurance Committee reviews all risks to the delivery of the
organisation's People strategic objective, and their effective mitigation. It is
supported in this by the Quality Assurance Committee which also monitors
those workforce nisks related to patient quality and safety

o The Trust Managerment Group reviews the Board Assurance Framawork in
its entirety and also leads on reviewing risks to the delivery of the
organisation’s Integration strategic objective

= An organisational govemance structure, with clear lines of accountability and
roles responsible for sk management is in place for all staff

= The Chief Executive has overall accountability for the development of risk
management systems and delegates responsibility for the management of
specific areas of risk to named Directors

= Al relevant staff are provided with risk management training as part of their
induction to the Trust and face-to-face training from Risk Managers for those staff
regularly involved in risk management

«  An open culture to empower staff to report and resclve incidents and risks
through the Datix recording system and to share leaming with teams

The Care Quality Commission has positively identified a clear culture of risk
identification and reporting throughout the organisation.

The risk and control framework

The aim of the Trust's risk management sirategy is to support the delivery of
organisational aims and objectives through the effective management of risks across
all of the Trust's functions and activities through effective risk managemenl processes,
analysis and organisational learning.

The Trust's approach to risk management aims to:
= embed the effective management of risk as part of everyday practice
« support a culture which encourages continuous improvement and development

= focus on proactive, forward looking, innovative and comprehensive rather than
reactive risk management

=« support well thought out decision-making
Risk management process
Whittington Health adopts a structured approach to risk management by identifying,
analysing, evaluating and managing risks. Where appropriate, stalf will escalate or
de-escalate risks through the governance structures in place at the Trust.

A snapshot of the Trust's risk management process is highlighted overleaf
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Establishing the context
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Risk identification

A hazard or threat is a source or issue of potential harm to the Trust achieving its
objectives, Risk identification is the process of determining what, where, when and
why something could occur, Risks to the Trust can be identified from a number of
sources, both reactive and proactively, examples of a few of these are displayed in
the diagram below:

Reactiva Proactive
noicits F Sis Rigk assesaments

Compairas and cialirs

) { Armusd plans | obiechves
Compiatng ang cliims 1 I_. . .L.-"' =

{ A IO ST
Imlemal sudiE and feviews | e o

Patient / staff | volunsper
| surveyn

internal - intermal

Extarnal \ ol External
Matons pnouiras & repomg
Safety glerts
- ]

Cansidraten wiih seieral siskensdars |

I§sums rectnd by Commillies |

Exiernsl sudts |
' Metonal Barchmarking

Exisrmal sudis
J  Pasr naview by tademial orpanisalinng
Aoagulator mapeciions I.-.F. ofer NHS Tli.:!:'J. l-_w-:li_l_n '."\'E!_F"..!'!|
in.g. COC, HEE] — -

Mandmory | BTy tFpEls

Reactive Proactive

Page 90 of 106



Trends between incidents, complaints and claims are regularly scrutinised via the
Trust's quarterly aggregated leaming report which is reviewed by the Patient Safety
and Quality Assurance Commitiees to identify any risks to the Trust.

Managers must ensure that their risk registers are reviewed monthly, and where
new sources of risk are identified that these are documented and responded to

appropriately.

Risk assessment

When a new risk is identified a Risk Assessment Consideration form is completed
and presented to the relevant committee/Board for approval. The assessment
should clearly state the likelihood for the risk to cause harm and what prevenlative
or control measures are required to respond effectively to the risk. Once approved
by the appropriate group this should then be added to Datix with an identified
raview date established.

Risk analysis and evaluation

An analysis of each nsk is required o be undertaken to establish the initial
grading of the risk by assessing the likelihood and consequences of the hazard if it
did occur. The Trust utilises a risk grading matrix which incorporates a risk tolerance
measure. This process aims to ensure that risks are assessed consistently across
the Trust. Once the grading is known and recorded in the Risk Register, the risk
can be compared with other risks facing the Trust and prioritised according to
significance. The list of all risks facing the Trust, in order of significance, makes up
the Trust-wide Risk Register.

Risk assessment is an inlegral parl of the business planning process. Therefore,
significant strategic risks will be identified by the Trust Board and managed through
the Board Assurance Framework (BAF).

Risk control = monitoring, review and resolution

Controls are the actions utilised in order to lessen or reduce the likelihood or
consequence of a risk being actualised, the severity of that risk if it does occur. The
controls in place for each risk should be detalled on Datix and describe the steps
that nead to be taken in order 1o manage and/or control the risk. These should be
updated as progress is made.

There are four main ways to manage risks ufiised by the Trust, these are
outiined in the table below;

Acceptance | The risk is identified and logged and no action is taken. It is
accepted that it may happen and will be responded to if it
QCCUrs.,

Avoid Where the level of risk is unacceptably high and the Trust cannot,
for whatever reason, put adequate control measures in place the
Trust Board will consider whether the service/activity should
continue in tha Trust.

Page 91 of 106



Transfer A shift in the responsibility or impact for loss to another party
e.g. insurance for the risk cccurrence or subcontracting. Fora
clinical risk transfer — a decision for a patient requiring a high risk
surgical procedure (where the experise or equipment is
unavailable in the Trust) 1o be transferred to a specialist centre
for treatment. The risk of transferring the patient must be less
than the risk of operating in the Trust environmant.

Mitigation The impact of the risk is limited, so if it does occur (and cannot be
avoided) the outcome is reduced and easier to handle.

Making and carrying out risk reduction action plans is the
responsibility of a line manager and /or risk lead.

The diagram below shows an overview of the governance structures in place for risk
management at the Trust:

Risks that could potentially affect
strategic objectives will be added
to the BAF
In Year Operational Operational risks are added to the In
Risk Register Year Oparational Risk Aagister (also

known as the corporate risk register)

S All risks identified at

ICSU / Directorate ICSU/Directorate level will
Risk Registers populate the 1CSU/Directorate

Risk Registers

Risk ldentification

Local risk registers at ICSU and corporate level along with the in-year operational risk
register and board assurance framework (BAF), seek to present an overview of the
main risks facing the organisation. The local risk registers are reviewed, updated and
maonitored regularly by the relevant ICSU Board and corporate services' leads and, if
nacassary, a risk can be escalated onto the corporate risk register, which is monitored
by the Trust Management Group and Quality Assurance Committee. Respective BAF
entries are monitored by executive director risk leads who assess the status of their
risk entry and its effective mitigation. The BAF is also monitored by the Audit and Risk
Committee and Trust Board.

Board Assurance Framework

The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) provides a structure for reporting of the
principal strategic risks to the delivery of the Trust's business and was reviewed
regularly last year. It identified the risk appetite and the controls and assurances in
place to mitigate these risks, the gaps or weaknesses in controls and assurances, and
actions required to further strengthen these mechanisms. The Audit and Risk
Committee leads on oversight of the mitigation of risks to delivery of the Trust's
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strategic objectives and was supported by other relevant board committees and the
Trust's Management Group.

In July 2020, the Audit & Risk Committee received the outcome of Grant Thomton's
internal auditor review of the Trust's board assurance arrangements. The review
concluded that, there was significant assurance with some improvements requiired.
One of the key improvements made to the BAF this year has been to strengthen the
ability of Board and executive Commiltes to betler track the assurances and key
performance indicators linked to the delivery of corporate and strategic objectives.

Structure and presentation:
BAF entries to the delivery of the Trust's 2020/21 four strategic objectives were:

Strategic Board Assurance Framework entry
objective
Quality 1 Fallure to provide care which is ‘outstanding’ in being consistently safe,

caring. responsive, effective or well-led and which provides a positive
experiance lor our patients and families, due to errors, or lack of cara or
lack of resources, results in poorer patient experience, harm, a loss of
income, an adverse impact upon staff retention and damage to
organisational reputation

Guality 2 Lack of capacity, due to second wave of Covid-13, or winter pressures
results in long delays in the Emergency Department, inability to place
patients who require high dependency and intensive care, and patients
not receiving the care they need across hospital and community health
Services

Quality 3 Patients on a diagnostic and/or treatment pathway (elective and
community) at risk of deterioration due to insufficient capacity to restant
enough elective surgery and other services (as a result of Covid-19
Infection Prevention & Control (IPC) guidance), resulting in further illness,
death or the need for greater intervantion at a later stage

Quality 4 Lack of attention to other key clinical performance targets, due to othear
Covid-10 priorities, or reduced capability, leads to deterioration of sarvice
quality and patient care

People 1 Lack of sufficient staff, due to second Covid-19 results in Increased
infection rates and increased stall absence, or the impacts of Brexit lead
1o increased pressura on staff, a raduction in quality of care and
insufficient capacity to deal with demand

People 2 Psychological and physical pressures of work due to Covid-18 impact
and lower resilience in staff, resulting in a deterioration in bahaviours,
culture, morale and the psychological welibeing of staff and impacts
adversaly on staff absence and the recruitment and retention of staff

People 3 Being unable o empower, support and develop stalf, due 1o poor
management practicas, lack of dealing with bullying and harassmeant,
poor communication and engagement, poor delivery on equality, diversity
and inclusion, or insufficient resources leads to disengaged staff and
highar umover
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Strategic
objective

Integration 1

The reconfiguration of pathways or services, due to Covid-19 restart
pressures, poliical pressures, or provider competiion, results in some
Whittington Health services becoming fragile or unsustainable, or
decommissioned and therefore threatens the strategic viability of the
Trust. (8.9. paediatrics inpatients, trauma, maternity)

| Integration 2

Failure to effactively maximise the opportunity through systam working,
due to focus on near term issues, results in not solving the challenges of
fragile services and sub-optimal clinical pathways

Integration 3

Tha progress made on integration with partners is put back, dus Covid-19
pressures, and a system focus on acute pathways, resulting in benefits
previously gainad being lost

Integration 4

Tha health and wellbeing of the population is made worse, due to the lack
of available investiment or focus on ongoing care and prevention work,
rasulting In demand after the Covid-19 cutbreak being considerably
higher than pre-Covid-19

Sustainable 1

Covid-19 cost pressures are not collected properly and or not funded
properly, due to poor internal systems, lack of funding or prioritisation of
other trusts’ nead, and as a resull our underlying deficit worsans

Sustainable 2

Failure of key infrastructure, due to insufficiant modernisation of the
eslate or insufficient mitigation, results in patient harm or reduced
capacity in the hospital

Sustainable 3

Linequal investment in services, due to lack of clarity over the NHS
funding regime and other trusts taking opportunities, or rushed dacisions,
ieads to a mismatch of quality of provision for our population and delay,
reduction, or cancelling of key investment projects for the Trust

Sustainable 4

Fallure to transtorm services to deliver savings plan, due to poor control
or insufficient flaxibility under a block contract, results in adverse
underlying financial position, and failure to hit control total, that puts
prassure on fulure years investment proagrammes and reputational risk

Sustainable 5

The stopping or delay of existing transformation projects (e.g.
orthopasdics / pathology / localiies / maternity / estates), due to the focus

on immediate issues around the Covid-19 restart, results in savings and
improvements to patient care, not baing realisad

Assurances and gaps

The BAF included assurances rated as relevant to the controlfrisk reported against.
The assurances are timely and are also updated over time. Furthermore, there is
allocated responsibility for submission and assessment. The BAF also highlights gaps
within assurances which trigger development of actions to improve assurances.
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BAF review and update

The review and updating of BAF entries is led by Executive risk leads and key Board
Committees review risks relevant to their terms of reference as set out previously).
The Care Quality Commission cited the BAF as fit for purpose in its inspection
feedback to the Trust.

It is important to note that this year the BAF was reviewed more regularly than usual
and indeed the risks were adapted through the year to incorporate the new objectives
and risks that became relevant through covid.

Risk appetite

In line with good practice, the Trust completed an annual review of its risk appetite
statement. This was discussed and endorsed by members of the Audit and Risk
Committee. The risk appetite range is included within Board Assurance Framewaork
(BAF) reports presented to board and executive committees. Individual risks on the
BAF are allocated a target score against which progress is reported in the BAF.

Embedding risk management
Risk management is embedded throughout the organisation in a varety of ways
including:
s [Face-to-face training for key risk managers
+ Review of the risk register entries by the Quality Assurance Committee and the
Trust Management Group
= Oversight of BAF entries by Board Committees and the Trust Management
Group
= A review of the BAF every three months by the Trust Board {and more
frequently this year, when required)

In addition, the Trust can highlight the following in its risk and control framework:

« The clinical governance agenda is led by the Trust's Direclor of Nursing and the
Medical Director. Menitoring arrangements are delivered through a structure of
committeas, supporting clear responsibilities and accountabilities from board fo
front line delivery

» The Quality Assurance Commitlee is a committee of the Board, which affords
scrutiny and monitoring of our risk management process and has oversight of the
quality agenda. Serous incidents and the monitoring of the Corporate Risk
Register is a standing item

* The Trust's clinical governance structure ensures there are robust systems in
place for key governance and performance issues to be escalated from frontline
saervices 1o Board and gives assurance of clinical quality. It gives a strong focus
on service improvement and ensures high standards of delivery are maintained.

+ The Beoard and the relevant committees use a performance scorecard which has
been developed to include a suite of quality Indicators at Trust and service level
aligned to each of the Care Quality Commission’s five domains of Quality

* The Trust's quality improvement strategy is encapsulated in cur Better Never
Stops (our joumey to oulstanding) programme. Tha programme is a structured
quality improvement plan and we have quality improvement plans in all services
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to monitor and demonstrate compliance with the CQC's fundamental standards
and against each of the CQC's domains and Key Lines of Enquiry

s During the year, the Trust's private finance initiative (PFI) with Whittington
Facilities Limited (WFL) ended. On 1 July 2020, the directors of WFL issued a
notice of its intention to appeint administrators to the court and formally appointed
Administrators on 28 July 2020. Two elements of the Trust's estate at its Archway
acute site were part of the PF| confract. After the ending of the contract, the
ownership and responsibility for maintaining this estate transferred back to the
Trust which is closely working with regulators and surveying the estate to fully
understand the condition of the buildings that have transferred. The progress of
these works and any ongoing legal disputes are monitored at varnous governance
forums including a PFIl steering group attended by trust representatives, those
from the Deparment of Health & Social Care as well as NHS
England/improvement. In addition, the Trust Board and Trust Management Group
received regular updates throughout the year

Risk management during Covid-19

During 2020, actions taken by the Trust to respond to the Covid-19 crisis included
reviewing and updating its BAF with particular reference to the impact of the pandemic,
and also establishing a specific Covid-19 local risk register. As parn of its emergency
planning arrangements, the govemance structure allowed for the Gold Command
forum and the wider Trust Management Group and Board to discuss and review the
Covid-19 risk register along with handling and mitigating actions being taken. These
forums were key to the Trust maintaining control over decision-making and also
displaying financial govermnance during the response to Covid-19.

At various times throughout the year, we flexed our governance structure to suit the
immediacies of the emergent situation. This Included moving to daily Trust
Management Group Gold meetings.

The Board of Directors

Membership of the Board of Directors is currently made up of the Trust chairman, five
independent, non-executive directors, and eight executive directors of which five are
voting members of the Board. The key roles and responsibilities of the Board are as
follows to:

« set and oversee the strategic direction of the Trust

» review and appraisal of financial and operational performance

« review areas of assurance and concems as detailed in the chair's assurance
reports from its board commitiees

« discharge their duties of regulation and control and meet our statutory obligations

« ensure the Trust continues to deliver high guality patient care and safety as its
primary focus, receiving and reviewing quality and patient safety reports and the
minutes and areas of concern highlighted in board committees’ minutes,
particularly the Quality Assurance Committee, which deals with patient quality
and safety

= receive reports from the committee, the annual internal auditor's report and
external auditor's report and to take decisions, as appropriate
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« agree the Trust's annual budget and plan and submissions to NHS Improvement
« approve the annual report and annual accounts
» cerify against the requirements of NHS provider licence conditions

The Board of Directors held meetings in public seven times throughout the financial
year on 29 April 2020, 24 June, 29 July, 30 September, 26 November. 25 February
2021 and 25 March. A breakdown of attendance for the Board's meetings held in
2020/21 is shown overleaf:

Job title and namea Meetings attended (out
of 7 unless stated)
Chair, Julia Neuberger 7
Mon-Executive Director, Naomi Fulop 7
Non-Executive Director, Amanda Gibbon® & out of B
Mon-Executive Director, Tony Rice 7
Non-Executive Director, Anu Singh 7
Non-Executive Director, Glenys Thomton® 6 out of 6
Non-Executive Director, Rob Vincent® 6 out of 6
Associate Non-Executive Director, Junaid Bajwa™" Soutofs
Associate Non-Executive Director, Wanda Goldwag™* 3outof3
Chief Executive, Siobhan Harrington 7
Medical Director, Clare Dollery 7
Chief Finance Officer, Kevin Cumow [
Chief Operating Officer, Carol Gillen 7
Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health Professionals, 7
Michelle Johnson
Director of Workforce, Norma French ]
Director of Strategy, Development & Corporale Affairs, 7
Jonathan Gardner
Medical Director, Integrated Care, Sarah Humphery 6

*  appointed 1 May 2020
** appointed 1 July 2020

Board and Committee oversight and assurance

The Board of Directors leads on integrated govemance and delegates key duties and
functions to its sub-committees. In addition, the Board reserves cerain decision-
making powers, including decisions on strategy and budgets.

Last year, there were four key committees within the structure that provided assurance
to the Board of Directors. They were: audit and risk, quality assurance, finance and
business development, and workforce assurance. There are two additional board
committees: charitable funds and remuneration, There are a range of mechanisms
available to these committees to gain assurance thal our systems are robust and
effective. These include utilising imemal and extemal audit, peer review, management
reporting and clinical audit.
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Audit and risk committee

The audit and nsk committee is a formal committee of the Board and Is accountable
to the Board for reviewing the eslablishment and maintenance of an effective system
of intemal control. The Committee holds five meetings per annum at appropriale times
in the reporting and audit cycle. This committee is supported on its assurance role by
the finance & business development, quality and workforce assurance commitiees in
reviewing and updating key risks pertinent to their terms of reference.

This committee also approves the annual audit plans for internal and external audit
activities and ensures that recommendations to improve weaknesses in control arising
from audits are actioned by executive management, The committee ensures the
robustness of the underlying process used in developing the BAF. The board monitors
the BAF and progress against the delivery of annual objectives each quarler, ensuring
actions to address gaps in control and gaps in assurance arg progressed.

Quality Assurance Committee

The qualty assurance committee is a formal committee of the Board and is
accountable to the Board for reviewing the effectiveness of quality systems, including
the management of risks to the Trust's quality and patient engagement strategic
priorities as well as operational risks to the quality of services. The commitiee meets
six times per year. It also monitors performance against quarterly quality indicators,
the guality accounts and all aspects of the three domains of quality namely - patient
safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience.

Finance & Business Development Committee

The finance & business development committee reviews financial and non-financial
performance across the Trust, reporting to the Board. It also has lead oversight for
risks to the delivery of Trust's strategic priorities relating to sustainability, along with
delivery of the Trust's strategy for information management and technology. The
committea holds six full meetings each year,

Charitable Funds Committee
This forum is a formal committee of the Board, to provide assurance to the Board on
the management of chartable funds and fundraising activities.

Workforce and Education Committee

The workforce and education committee meets five times each year and leads on
oversight of BAF risks which relate to the Trust's staff engagement and recruitment
and retention strategic priorities. It reviews performance against the delivery of key
workforce recrultment and retention plans and the annual outcome for the Workforce
Race Equality Standard submission to NHS England. In addition, the committee will
also review those staff engagement actions taken following the cutcome of the annual
NHS staft survey and delivery of the Trust's workforce culture improvemeant plan.

Workforce planning

As in previous years, the workforce planning process was aligned and integrated with
the Trust's business planning process, led by individual ICSUs. Throughout the
process ICSUs' Clinical and Operational Directors were supporied by HR Business
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Parners who wolvised and chiallereped |[GELE on The wotkforee impact of thair plans
and snedrad aligimant with workfercs and clinical stratagias. This involved:

Working with [C5lUs lo dizouss warkforze issues such as recruilment and
ratentian, aallvlly planning, adication regueisemmants and tha delivery of Kay
perfarmancs indicators

Analysing snd menitering warkforce changes at & lozal level {and al an aggragated
Truzt-wida paslllon]

Ensuring current and futlre weorkforoe needs wers represeniad in business plans,
gonsidsring growth, as welt as opticns to develop new rfes, new ways of worksng,
ard associated training irmplications,

Morthlhy ‘'run rato' moeetings, to analyse temporaey staffing fo ensure tong tem
recruiiment straegies are in place

A cdedlealad nursg rechdilrman | leam (oeasing an intasmatonal and lacal rscruitmant
Cpportunitias

Middle grade doctor recruitmert warking group focussed an ke amerganey
deparmanl

Final ICSU plans woroe erosonicd indovidually to the Trust's Board, executive directors
gnd alk o‘her clinical, operastional and corpozate directas in & pesr review and
challenge session, Follming this, amended plans are ueed 1 inform the Trusts
Chperatianal Flan.

In 202027, WWhittington Health cormplied wiih the *Develsping Workfonee Safeauamiz”
through thie Fallowing sssuances;

The Medical Director snd Chief Murse and Dirscter of Allied Heatth Professionals
confirmed there ere established proczsses ta ensuns inat staffing 1s safe, effectlve
ar:t auslalnatle

Tho nursing and migwiteny staffing catablishment and skill mix (based on scuity
ard dependency data ang using an evidence-pasad toalkit whers guailable) wazs
repor=d to the Bogad by warnd or servics ared beloe g year

Al workforco risks were reviowed quartedy at the Pedormance Review Groups.
Arction plans for reduring armbisr and red rated dsks were monitorsd o a gueartetly
basis oy the Trust Manademant Group

High lewval risks wete repoted to Workforce Assurance Committes quarerly

Safa nuree slaffing levelz wera monilarad continuously, susported by angoing
assezsmant of patient acuity. Az part of "Showing we cane about speaking up’ we
gcncouraged and supported all staff to nurzing scorecards triangulate workforce
iméomnation with other quality metrics

Workforce inlalllgenca and key parfermance indicalers ware repated alongside
gqualiy metrics at the Trust Goard sach tmenth and wene standing items on
Forformance Qoview Groep moctings (FRGS). The Workforce Assurance
Committee rscewed comprehensive comorate warkforoe  informaetion s
analysis, Metrics incluged vaganoy and sichness ratss, {umovar and appraisal
aompliance and tamporary stalfing

Any changes and significent (over £50K) cosi improvement plans had 8 guality
impas: assessment
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The Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality
Commission,

The Trust published on its website an up-fo-date regisler of interests, including gifts
and hospitality, for decision-making staff (as defined by the trust with reference to the
guidance) within the past twelve months, as required by the ‘Managing Confiicts of
Interest in the NHS' guidance.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place 1o ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
requlations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer's contribufions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the
Scheme rules, and that member Pansion Scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’'s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.

The Trust undertook risk assessments and has a sustainable development
management plan in place which takes account of UK Climate Projections 2018
(UKCP18). The Trust also ensures that its obligations under the Climate Change Act
and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The Trust was rated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) as good in its use of
resources as it had demonstrated a good understanding of areas of improvements
with credible plans to achieve target performance. In particular, the CQC identified
that the Trust has an excellent track record of managing its expenditure within
available resources,

During 2020621, Whittington Health had in place a range of processes which helped
to ensure that it used resources economically, efficiently and effectively. These
Included:

« monthly reporting of financial and non-financial performance to the Trust Board of
directors and the finance and business development committee of the Board

« adherence to guidance issued by NHS England and Improvement by establishing
robust systems for the identification of additional costs incurred due to Covid-19
pandemic

+ a monthly review of perfformance by the Trust Management Group and additional
review meetings where ICSUs and corporate directorates are held to account for
financial and non-financial perfformance

« the production of annual reference costs, including comparisons with national
reference costs

» benchmarking of costs and key performance indicators against other combined
acute and community Trust providers

« standing financial instructions, standing orders and a treasury management policy
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* a budget holder's manual which sets out managers' responsibilities in refation to
managing budgets

= guidance on the declaration of conflicts of interest and standards of business
conduct

« reports by Grant Thomton parnt of the annual internal audit work plan on control
mechanisms which may need reviewing

» the Head of Intemal Audit's draft and final opinions being presented to the
committea

« an external audit of our accounts by KPMG LLP who also provided an independent
view of the Trust's effective and efficient use of resources, particularly against
value for money considerations

» good performance undar NHS Improvement’s Single Oversight Framework for
NHS providers

Information governance
The following are the incidents and outcomes of investigations in relation to
information governance breaches this year:

Nature of incident Incident Ico 1co
Date

A handover sheet was left at bedside | 22/09/2020 [ 13/10v2020 | No further

of patient. A person took a photograph action

of it. They were asked to delete the

photograph.

Data quality and governance

Data govemnance is essential for the effective delivery of patient care and for
improvements to patient care we must have robust and accurate data available.

Whittington Health completed the following actions in the last year towards improved
data guality:

A review of the Trust's Data Quality stralegy
Monthly monitoring of national data quality (DQ) measures
Reviews of specific data sets (e.g. Referral to Treatment Patient Treatment List)
with specific regard lo data quality. Regular spot checks were carried out by the
Trust's Validation Team

= \Weekly Raferral to Treatment review meetings for cancer, community and acute
SErvices

s Qur Data Quality Review Group ensured all aspects of data quality standards were
maintained and reviewed

» Continuing to review the awareness of key staff of their responsibilities around
data quality and proposing approaches to achieve improvement if necessary
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+« Reviewing the scope of material internal data sets with specific regard to data
quality and summarise those known with their main characteristics, any known
data quality issues and owners in overview

Whittington Health NHS Trust will continue to monitor and work to improve data
quality by using the above mentioned Data Quality Review Group, with the aim to
work with ICSUs to improve awareness of responsibilities and to share leaming to
help improve dala quality.

Annual Quality Account

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the Mational Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for
each financial year. The Board's Quality Assurance Committee, provides assurance
on the Quality Account and the quality priorities and ensures the maintenance of
effective nsk management and quality govemance systems. Following national
guidance from NHS England and Improvement, as part of the response fo the Covid-
189 pandemic, the 201%/20 Quality Account was published in December 2020.

Provider licence conditions

In terms of the NHS prowvider license condition four, the Board confirmed that the Trust
applies principles, systems and standards of good corporate govemance which
reasonably would be regarded as appropriate for a supplier of healthcare services. In
particular, the Board is satisfied that the Trust has established and implements:

= an effective Board and Committee structure

« clear responsibilities for the Board and Committees reporting to the Board and for
staff, reporting to either the Board or its Committees

« clear reporting lines and accountabilities throughout the organisation

Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
systemn of intermal contral. My review of the effectiveness of the system of intemal
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive
managers and clinical leads within tha NHS Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework. | have drawn on the
infarmation provided in this annual report and other performance information available
to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their
management lefter and other reporis. | have been advised on the implications of the
result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of intemal control by the Board,
the committee and quality assurance committee, if appropriate and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. The board
ensures the effectiveness of the system of internal control through clear accountability
arrangements.

An annual "Head of Intemal Audit Opinicn” based on the work and audit assessments
undertaken during the year for 2020/21 was issued and stated:

Our overall opinion for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 is that, based on the
scope of reviews underfaken and the sample lesis completed during the period,
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significant assurance with some improvement required can be given on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of govemnance, nisk
managemeant and control with some improvements recommended.

While there were some delays in the finalisalion of internal audit reviews scheduled
this year, this rating reflects continued year-on-year improvements in the effectiveness
of the Trust's system of internal control,

Conclusion
| confirm that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

signed  SYEANCUA HOMNDION—
Chief Executive

Date:
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Statermnent of the chief executive's responsibilities as the accountable officer of the
Trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the
NHS Trust Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should be
the Accountable Officer of the Trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable
Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include
ensuring that:

* there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate govemance
value for monay is achieved from the resources available to the Trust

« the expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them

« effective and sound financial management systems are in place

« annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of
State to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial
year and the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and
cash flows for the year

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust's auditors
are unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | cught to have taken to make myself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity's auditors are
aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities
set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

SN ML

iaf EXecutive

Date: ES’M/\E ‘2{:)?]
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Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for
each financial year, The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the income and
expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year. In preparing
those accounts, the directors are required to:

= apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the
approval of the Treasury

« make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

« slate whether applicable accounling standards have been followed, subject 1o any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts

« prepare the financial stalements on a going concem basis and disclose any material
uncertainties over going concem

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclosa with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure
that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction of the
Secretary of State. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irmegulantias.

The directors confirm fo the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the
above requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and
stakeholders to assess the NHS trust's performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

IIE UM TAUUOKOA _

P & 7.8 BN, 7 ociiing Chist Executive

sung 221 KS

........ Date...............Finance Director
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Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as the accountable officer of
the trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust Development
Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant
responsibilities of Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These
include ensuring that:

o there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in
the implementation of corporate governance

e value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust

o the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and
conform to the authorities which govern them

o effective and sound financial management systems are in place and

e annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure,
other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust’s auditors are unaware, and |
have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of
appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Siobhan Harrington
Chief Executive
14" June 2021



Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial
year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive
income and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:

e apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the approval
of the Treasury

e make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

e state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts and

e prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material uncertainties
over going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the
NHS trust’s performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Sl SO~

Siobhan Harrington
Chief Executive
14" June 2021

Kevin Curnow
Chief Finance Officer
14t June 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
WHITTINGTON HEALTH NHS TRUST

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Whittington Health NHS Trust (“the Trust”) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows, and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e giveatrue and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then ended: and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by the
Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as being relevant to NHS Trusts in
England and included in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manual 2020/21.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Trust in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they have
not been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without
the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. They have also concluded that there
are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue
as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (‘the
going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Trust’s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Trust’s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

e we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate;

e we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there is not, a
material uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significantdoubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going
concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they
were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is nota
guarantee that the Trust will continue in operation.



Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or
conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an
opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

e Enquiring of management and the Audit & Risk Committee as to the Trust’s high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal audit function,
and the Trust’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of
any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

o Assessing the incentives for management to manipulate reported financial performance as
a result of the need to achieve control totals delegated to the Trust by NHS Improvement.

e Reading Board and Audit & Risk Committee minutes.
e Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

¢ Reviewing the Trust’s accounting policies.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet
delegated targets, we performed procedures to address the risk of management override of
controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular the risk that additional
funding was claimed inappropriately through the extra resources made available as a result of
Covid-19; revenueis recorded in the wrong period or has been inappropriately deferred and
the risk that Trust management may bein a position to make inappropriate accounting
entries.

In line with the guidance set out in Practice Note 10 Audit of Financial Statements of Public
Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom we also recognised a fraud risk related to expenditure
recognition, particularly in relation to year-end accruals.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:

¢ Identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation. These included material post close journals which reduce
reported expenditure and journals with other unusual characteristics.

e Assessing significant estimates for bias.

e Assessing the completeness of disclosed related party transactions and verifying they had
been accurately recorded within the financial statements.

¢ Identified income and expenditure invoices recognised in the period 1 March 2021 to 31
May 2021, to determine whether the income and expenditure is recognised in the correct
accounting period, in accordance with the amounts billed to the corresponding parties.

¢ Assessed the outcome of the NHS agreement of balances exercise with CCGs and other
NHS providers and investigated the cause of the variances identified.



Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with
laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a
material effect on the financial statements from our general sector experience and through
discussion with the directors (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the
Trust’s legal correspondence and discussed with the directors the policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

As the Trust is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the
control environment including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory
requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to
any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies
considerably.

The Trustis subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statementsincluding
financial reporting legislation. Under paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 5 to the National Health
Service Act 2006 the Trust must ensure that its revenue is not less than sufficient, taking one
financial year with another, to meet outgoings properly chargeable to revenue account (the
breakeven duty). In reporting on compliance with the breakeven duty the Trust is required to
comply with the Department of Health and Social Care’s ‘Guidance on Breakeven Duty and
Provisions’. We assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Whilst the Trust is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did notidentify any others
where the consequences of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or
disclosures in the financial statements.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have
detected some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-
compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information in the Annual Report

The Accountable Officeris responsible forthe otherinformation presented in the Annual Report
together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the other information; and

e in ouropinion the other information included in the Annual Report for the financial year is
consistent with the financial statements.



Annual Governance Statement

We are required to report to you if the Annual Governance Statement has notbeen prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual 2020/21. We have nothing to reportin this respect.

Remuneration and Staff Report

In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual 2020/21.

Directors’ and Accountable Officer’s responsibilities

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 2, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are also responsible for;
such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without the transfer
of its services to another public sector entity. As explained more fully in the statement of the
Chief Executive's responsibilities, as the Accountable Officer of the Trust, on Page 1 the
Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring that annual statutory accounts are prepared in
aformat directed by the Secretary of State.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibiliies is provided on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS

Report on the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report if we identify any significant
weaknesses in the arrangements that have been made by the Trust to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We have nothing to report in this respect.

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

As explained in the statement set out on page [A], the Chief Executive, as the Accountable
Officer, is responsible for ensuring that value for money is achieved from the resources
available to the Trust. We are required under section 21(3)(c), as amended by schedule 13
paragraph 10(a), of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are
operating effectively.


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and related
statutory guidance having regard to whether the Trust had proper arrangements in place to
ensure financial sustainability, proper governance and to use information about costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary.

Statutory reporting matters

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General (‘the Code of Audit Practice’) to reportto you if:

o we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that the Trust, or an officer of
the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the
body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of
action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or
deficiency; or

e weissueareportinthe publicinterest undersection 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014; or

e we make a written recommendation to the Trust under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR
RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of Whittington Health NHS Trust, as a body,
in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Board of the Trust, as a body, those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor’'s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Board of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have
formed.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Whittington Health NHS Trust
forthe year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

it Nitlemud

Fleur Nieboer

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

16 June 2021



Statement of Comprehensive Income

2020/21 2019/20
Note £000 £000
Operating income from patient care activities 3 350,040 314,606
Other operating income 4 45,300 35,577
Operating expenses 5,7 (391,213) (341,943)
Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations 4,127 8,240
Finance income 10 6 228
Finance expenses 11 (1,859) (3,340)
PDC dividends payable (6,059) (5,007)
Net finance costs (7,912) (8,119)
Other gains / (losses) - - -
Surplus / (deficit) for the year from continuing operations (3,785) 121
Surplus / (deficit) on discontinued operations and the gain / (loss) on
disposal of discontinued operations 12 - -
Surplus / (deficit) for the year (3,785) 121
Other comprehensive income
Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments 6 (8,189) (1,137)
Revaluations 16 592 4,394
Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period (11,382) 3,378




Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed

Financed by
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total taxpayers' equity

The notes on pages 14 to 63 form part of these accounts.

Name Siobhan Harrington
Position Chief Executive Officer
Date 14/06/2021

Note

13
14
18

17
18
19

20
22
24
21

22
24

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

9,789 9,102
223,962 224,209
401 491
234,152 233,802
2,195 2,405
18,251 44,565
61,527 27,384
81,973 74,354
(52,365) (51,503)
(300) (28,963)
(769) (479)
(1,685) (2,706)
(55,119) (83,651)
261,006 224,505
(6,610) (27,663)
(36,235) (1,132)
(42,845) (28,795)
218,161 195,710
106,191 72,358
91,395 98,992
20,575 24,360
218,161 195,710




Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought forward
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other transfers between reserves
Impairments
Revaluations
Public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021

Public Financial Income and
dividend Revaluation assets Other Merger expenditure
capital reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
72,358 98,992 - - - 24,360 195,710
- - - - - (3,785) (3,785)
- (8,189) - - - - (8,189)
- 592 - - - - 592
33,833 - - - - - 33,833
106,191 91,395 - - - 20,575 218,161

10



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2019 - brought forward
Prior period adjustment
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2019 - restated
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations
Public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid
Other reserve movements
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2020

Public Financial Income and
dividend Revaluation assets Other Merger expenditure
capital reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
66,691 95,735 - - - 24,239 186,665
66,691 95,735 - - - 24,239 186,665
- - - - - 121 121
- (1,137) - - - - (1,137)
- 4,394 - - - - 4,394
5,667 - - - - - 5,667
72,358 98,992 - - - 24,360 195,710

11



Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the
Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the
Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic
benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Financial assets reserve

This reserve comprises changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. When these instruments are derecognised, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised as other
comprehensive income or expenditure are recycled to income or expenditure, unless the assets are equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as a result of irrevocable election at recognition.

Merger reserve
This reserve reflects balances formed on merger of NHS bodies.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.

12



Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus / (deficit)
Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Net impairments
Income recognised in respect of capital donations
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Other movements in operating cash flows
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of PPE and investment property
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Movement on loans from DHSC
Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Capital element of PFI, LIFT and other service concession payments

Interest on loans
Other interest
Interest paid on finance lease liabilities

Interest paid on PFI, LIFT and other service concession obligations

PDC dividend (paid) / refunded
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward

Prior period adjustments
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - restated

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

13

Note

»

19

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
4,127 8,240
9,324 7,143
3,961 276
(91) -
26,589 (4,014)
210 (957)
723 13,837
10,191 (264)
- 1,151
55,034 25,412
6 228
(2,517) (3,914)
(15,234) (14,858)
(17,745) (18,544)
33,833 5,667
(27,382) (164)
(1,845) (872)
(201) (1,192)
(112) (472)
- (2)
(670) (202)
(451) (2,664)
(6,318) (4,748)
(3,146) (4,649)
34,143 2,219
27,384 25,165
27,384 25,165
61,527 27,384




Notes to the Accounts
Note 1 Accounting policies and other information
Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Department of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the
accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
GAM 2020/21 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a
choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances
of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are
described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the
accounts.

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.2 Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial reporting framework applicable to NHS
bodies, derived from the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, defines that the anticipated continued provision of
the entity’s services in the public sector is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The directors have a
reasonable expectation that this will continue to be the case.

On 2 April 2020, the Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) and NHS England & NHS Improvement announced
reforms to the NHS cash regime for the 2020/21 financial year. During 2020/21 existing DHSC interim revenue and
capital loans as at 31 March 2020 were extinguished and replaced with the issue of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) to
allow the repayment. The affected loans totalled £27.2m were classified as current liabilities within the 2019/20
financial statements. As the repayment transactions were funded through the issue of PDC, this did and does not
present a going concern risk for the Trust.

Note 1.3 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the
definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial
asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated
to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance obligations
satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’'s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a
contract receivable will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than
the passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a
performance obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract
liability.

Revenue from NHS contracts

The accounting policies for revenue recognition and the application of IFRS 15 are consistently applied. The contracting
arrangements in the NHS changed between 2019/20 and 2020/21 affecting the application of the accounting policy
under IFRS 15. This difference in application is explained below.

14



2020/21

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. In 2020/21, the
majority of the trust’'s income from NHS commissioners was in the form of block contract arrangements. During the first
half of the year the trust received block funding from its commissioners. For the second half of the year, block contract
arrangements were agreed at a [Integrated Care System/Sustainability and Transformation Partnership] level. The
related performance obligation is the delivery of healthcare and related services during the period, with the trust’s
entitlement to consideration not varying based on the levels of activity performed.

The Trust has received additional income outside of the block and system envelopes to reimburse specific costs
incurred and other income top-ups to support the delivery of services. Reimbursement and top-up income is accounted
for as variable consideration.

Comparative period (2019/20)

In the comparative period (2019/20), the trust’'s contracts with NHS commissioners included those where the trust’s
entitlement to income varied according to services delivered. A performance obligation relating to delivery of a spell of
health care was generally satisfied over time as healthcare was received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer as the Trust performed it. The customer in such a contract was the commissioner, but the customer benefited
as services were provided to their patient. Even where a contract could be broken down into separate performance
obligations, healthcare generally aligned with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard entailing a delivery of a series of goods
or services that were substantially the same and had a similar pattern of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrued
income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell was incomplete. This accrual was disclosed
as a contract receivable as entitlement to payment for work completed was usually only dependent on the passage of
time.

In 2019/20, the Provider Sustainability Fund and Financial Recovery Fund enabled providers to earn income linked to
the achievement of financial controls and performance targets. Income earned from the funds is accounted for as
variable consideration.

Revenue from research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are
satisfied. For some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance obligation over the
course of the multi-year contract. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust’s interim performance does not create an
asset with alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment for the performance
completed to date. It is therefore considered that the performance obligation is satisfied over time, and the Trust
recognises revenue each year over the course of the contract. Some research income alternatively falls within the
provisions of IAS 20 for government grants.

NHS injury cost recovery scheme

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust
recognises the income when performance obligations are satisfied. In practical terms this means that treatment has
been given, it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has
completed the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured at the
agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation
claims and doubtful debts in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the
asset.

Grants and donations

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the
provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income to match that expenditure. Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income once conditions attached to the grant have been met. Donations are
treated in the same way as government grants.

Apprenticeship service income

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as
income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training
provider from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the
corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.
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Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned
but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

Pension costs

NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are
unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way
that would enable employers to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
scheme is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the trust is taken as equal to the
employer's pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is
due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time
the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

Where staff are not eligible for, or choose to opt out of, the NHS Pension Scheme, they are entitled to join the National
Employment Savings Trust (NEST) scheme. NEST is a government-backed, defined contribution pension scheme.

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where
it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

Note 1.7 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations occur where activities either cease without transfer to another entity, or transfer to an entity
outside of the boundary of Whole of Government Accounts, such as private or voluntary sectors. Such activities are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. Activities that are transferred to other bodies within the boundary of Whole of
Government Accounts are ‘machinery of government changes’ and treated as continuing operations.

Note 1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:

« it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes

« it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust

* it is expected to be used for more than one financial year

« the cost of the item can be measured reliably

« the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

« collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the
assets are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar
disposal dates and are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives,

e.g., plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own
useful lives.
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving
from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be
determined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets
the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that
does not generate additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.
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Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (i.e.
operational assets used to deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value
in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring them
back into use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do
not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale.
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are
not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing
use are determined as follows:

» Land and non-specialised buildings — market value for existing use

» Specialised buildings — depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis.

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is interpreted as the present value of the asset's remaining service
potential, which is assumed to be at least equal to the cost of replacing that service potential. Specialised assets are
therefore valued at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis. An MEA
basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location
requirements of the services being provided.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with 1AS 23, borrowings costs. Assets are
revalued and depreciation commences when the assets are brought into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are
valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not
considered to be materially different from current value in existing use.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated upon the
reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively.

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating expenditure.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an
item of ‘other comprehensive income’.
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Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve
to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating
expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to
the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating
expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never
been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original
impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once the criteria in IFRS 5 are met. The sale must be
highly probable and the asset available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value
less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the 'fair value less
costs to sell' falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have
been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’
and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when
scrapping or demolition occurs.

Donated and grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future
economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the
donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition
has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property,
plant and equipment.

In 2020/21 this includes assets donated to the trust by the Department of Health and Social Care as part of the
response to the coronavirus pandemic. As defined in the GAM, the trust applies the principle of donated asset
accounting to assets that the trust controls and is obtaining economic benefits from at the year end.
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Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions

PFl and LIFT transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s
FReM, are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the trust. In accordance with HM Treasury’s FReM,
the underlying assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent liability.
Subsequently, the assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets as appropriate.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cost, the charges for
services and lifecycle replacement of components of the asset.

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Trust entered into a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) arrangement in 2003 to build and maintain the main hospital
through construction firm Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL). On the 28th July 2020 WFL filed for administration.

The collapse of WFL means that the main building elements transferred back into the ownership of the Trust during
2020/21, and the Trust is now responsible for the maintenance of the building. Further details of the financial
arrangements and implications are discussed in further detail as part of the Provisions notes and policies.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in
the table below:

Min life Max life

Years Years

Land - -
Buildings, excluding dwellings 23 45
Dwellings 35 35
Plant & machinery 5 15
Transport equipment - -
Information technology 3 10
Furniture & fittings 5 5

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the
trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in the same
manner as owned assets above.

Note 1.9 Intangible assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from
the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably; and where the cost is at least £5,000.

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised
as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised when it meets the requirements
set out in IAS 38.

Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant

item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. application
software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
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Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible
assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income
generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, plant and
equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value where there
are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definitions of investment properties or
assets held for sale.

Intanaible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrvina amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of
economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown
in the table below:

Min life Max life
Years Years

Information technology - -
Development expenditure - -
Websites - -
Software licences 5 5
Licences & trademarks - -
Patents - -
Other (purchased) - -
Goodwill - -
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Note 1.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation
of fair value due to the high turnover of stock.

In 2020/21, the Trust received inventories including personal protective equipment from the Department of Health and
Social Care at nil cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principles of the IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust
has accounted for the receipt of these inventories at a deemed cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an
imputed market value for the transaction based on the cost of acquisition by the Department.

Note 1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and that form an integral part of the Trust's cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are
recorded at current values.

Note 1.12 Carbon Reduction Commitment scheme (CRC)

The CRC scheme is a mandatory cap and trade scheme for non-transport CO2 emission. The Trust is registered with
the CRC scheme, and is therefore required to surrender to the Government an allowance for every tonne of CO2 it
emits during the financial year. A liability and related expense is recognised in respect of this obligation as CO2
emissions are made.

The carrying amount of the liability at the financial year end will therefore reflect the CO2 emissions that have been
made during that financial year, less the allowances (if any) surrendered voluntarily during the financial year in respect
of that financial year.

The liability will be measured at the amount expected to be incurred in settling the obligation. This will be the cost of the
number of allowances required to settle the obligation.

Note 1.13 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument.
The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements that
in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in
accordance with the Trust's normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs, i.e., when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction
costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is
taken as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through income and expenditure
or fair value through other comprehensive income as appropriate.
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Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through income and expenditure
as appropriate.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual cash
flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract and
other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arrangements and loans receivable and
payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a
financing income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effective
interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where business model objectives are
met by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest. Movements in the fair value of financial assets in this category are recognised as gains or
losses in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses. On derecognition, cumulative gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to income and expenditure, except
where the Trust elected to measure an equity instrument in this category on initial recognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through income and expenditure

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are those that are not otherwise measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. This category also includes financial assets and liabilities
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term (held for trading) and derivatives. Derivatives which are
embedded in other contracts, but which are separable from the host contract are measured within this category.
Movements in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities in this category are recognised as gains or losses in the
Statement of Comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract
assets or assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Trust recognises an allowance for
expected credit losses.

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables, measuring expected losses as at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets,
the loss allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1) and
subsequently at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed for the financial asset
significantly increases (stage 2).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the
reporting date are measured as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and reduce the
net carrying value of the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

Derecognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Note 1.14 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The trust as a lessee

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the trust, the asset is recorded as
property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the
lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the
outstanding liability.

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item
of property plant and equipment.

The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant
rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to finance costs in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
are recognised initially in other liabilities on the statement of financial position and subsequently as a reduction of
rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separately.

The trust as a lessor

Finance leases

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the trust's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Note 1.15 Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount;
for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the
resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-
adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury's discount rates effective for 31 March 2021:

Nominal rate

Short-term Up to 5 years Minus 0.02%
Medium-term After 5 years up to 10 years 0.18%
Long-term Exceeding 10 years 1.99%

HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows are
therefore adjusted for the impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rates are set
by HM Treasury, effective 31 March 2020:

Inflation rate

Year 1 1.20%
Year 2 1.60%
Into perpetuity 2.00%

Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of minus
0.95% in real terms.

25



Clinical negligence costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution,
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. These contributions are charged to expenditure during the year.
Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with
the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of the trust is disclosed
at note 25 but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts.

Non-clinical risk pooling

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk
pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance
with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of
particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.

Note 1.16 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future
events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 34 where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 34, unless the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

* possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

* present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Note 1.17 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at
the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial
instrument within the meaning of 1AS 32.

The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the
value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the trust during the
financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, with certain
additions and deductions as defined by the Department of Health and Social Care.

This policy is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhs-trusts-
and-foundation-trusts.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit
of the annual accounts.

Note 1.18 Value added tax

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax
on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are
stated net of VAT.
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Note 1.19 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties in which the Trust has no beneficial interest (such as money held on behalf of patients)
are not recognised in the accounts. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with
the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM.

Note 1.20 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the
health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore
subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the
relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis.

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on
an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.

27



Note 1.21 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2020/21.

Note 1.22 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and other
interpretations and is applicable in the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2022. The standard provides a single
accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of financial position for
most leases: some leases are exempt through application of practical expedients explained below. For those
recognised in the statement of financial position the standard also requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in
specific circumstances after the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction between operating and
finance leases will remain and the accounting will be largely unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The trust will apply this definition to new
leases only and will grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a
lease.

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the trust will apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating
leases with a remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease
liability will be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease payments discounted on transition at the trust’s
incremental borrowing rate. The trust's incremental borrowing rate will be defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate is
0.91% but this may change between now and adoption of the standard. The related right of use asset will be measured
equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. For existing peppercorn leases not
classified as finance leases, a right of use asset will be measured at current value in existing use or fair value. The
difference between the asset value and the calculated lease liability will be recognised in the income and expenditure
reserve on transition. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2022 for existing finance leases.

For leases commencing in 2022/23, the trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term
leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000). Right of use assets will
be subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease term.

Note 1.23 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in
the process of applying the trust accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment

The Trust's land and building assets are valued on the basis explained in note 16 to the accounts. Cushman &
Wakefield (C&W), our independent valuer, provided the Trust with a valuation of land and building assets (estimated
fair value and remaining useful life). The valuation, based on estimates provided by a suitably qualified professional in
accordance with HM Treasury guidance, leads to revaluation adjustments. Future revaluations of the Trust's property
may result in further changes to the carrying values of non-current assets.

Provisions

Provisions have been made for legal and constructive obligations of uncertain timing or amount as at the reporting date.
These are based on estimates using relevant and reliable information as is available at the time the accounts are
prepared. These provisions are estimates of the actual costs of future cash flows and are dependent on future events.
Any difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period when such
determination is made. The carrying amounts and basis of the Trust's provisions are detailed in note 32 to the
accounts.
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Note 1.24 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year:

In the application of the Trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates, and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually
reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods. We also refer to the following financial statement disclosure notes where further detail is provided on
individual balances containing areas of judgement:

Notes 3: Revenue.

- Note 14 Property, plant & equipment.

Note 18: Provisions for credit notes and impairment of receivables.
- Note 24: Provisions not already covered in Note 18.

Note 20: Accruals.

A material addition to the provision balance in 2020/21 concerns the implications arising from the collapse of
Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL).

The collapse of WFL means that the main building has transferred back into the ownership of the Trust, whereby the
Trust is now responsible for the maintenance of the building, including the cost of major fire safety refurbishments for
which WFL are being pursued under the terms of a 30 year contract.

As a result of this dispute with WFL, legal proceedings are expected to take place. There will be a significant cost of
rectifying building deficiency not appropriately addressed by WFL, but also an outstanding balance owed to the bank
for the remaining balance of the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) agreement.

In the judgement of the Trust, a provision was deemed appropriate as at 31 March 2021 to cover relevant potential
liabilities. The basis of this provision relied on professional legal advice (on the instruction of the Trust); while the
administrators of WFL provided similar advice from their own legal advisors, the Trust relied on the aforementioned
advice in prudently providing for potential future costs.

The legal position is not concluded and the full costs of remediation are not yet known. The provision is based on the
Trust's best estimate of the remediation costs, but the final settlement of the PFI claim could be higher if the
remediation costs are lower than estimated. Conversely the final cost of the claim could be lower if the remediation
costs are higher than estimated.

Any accounting provision thus made is intended to reflect the material uncertainty around the situation which existed as
at 31 March 2021, and should not be taken as admission of any liability on the part of the Trust.
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Note 2 Operating Segments

The Trust's chief decision maker has been defined as the Trust Board, and is responsible for allocating resources
across the Trust. The Trust's operational management structure is delivered though five clinical integrated care service
units (ICSU's) covering acute and community services across London.

In line with IFRS 8, the trust has determined that these ICSU's are classed as a single segment with the agreed purpose
of providing healthcare services.
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Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities

All income from patient care activities relates to contract income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.3.

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Acute services
Block contract / system envelope income* 222,627 119,064
High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs) 10,281 8,477
Other NHS clinical income - 64,492
Community services
Block contract / system envelope income* 75,268 73,898
Income from other sources (e.g. local authorities) - -
All services
Private patient income 56 69
Additional pension contribution central funding** 9,918 9,568
Other clinical income 31,890 39,038
Total income from activities 350,040 314,606

*As part of the coronavirus pandemic response, transaction flows were simplified in the NHS and providers and their
commissioners moved onto block contract payments at the start of 2020/21. In the second half of the year, a revised
financial framework built on these arrangements but with a greater focus on system partnership and providers derived
most of their income from these system envelopes. Comparatives in this note are presented to be comparable with the
current year activity. This does not reflect the contracting and payment mechanisms in place during the prior year.

**The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge)
from 1 April 2019. Since 2019/20, NHS providers have continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the
additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and related funding have been

recognised in these accounts.

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2020/21 2019/20
Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000
NHS England 44,684 41,494
Clinical commissioning groups 287,770 256,967
Department of Health and Social Care - -
Other NHS providers 4,477 2,443
NHS other - -
Local authorities 11,198 11,299
Non-NHS: private patients 56 69
Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 623 388
Injury cost recovery scheme 296 471
Non NHS: other 936 1,475
Total income from activities 350,040 314,606
Of which:
Related to continuing operations 350,040 314,606

Related to discontinued operations -
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Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

Income recognised this year

Cash payments received in-year

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables
Amounts written off in-year

Note 4 Other operating income

Research and development

Education and training

Non-patient care services to other bodies
Provider sustainability fund (2019/20 only)

Financial recovery fund (2019/20 only)
Marginal rate emergency tariff funding (2019/20 only)

Reimbursement and top up funding
Income in respect of employee benefits accounted on a gross basis

Receipt of capital grants and donations
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Rental revenue from operating leases
Other income

Total other operating income

Of which:
Related to continuing operations

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
623 388
109 173
554 222
2020/21 2019/20
Contract Non-contract Contract Non-contract
income income Total income income Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
703 - 703 623 - 623
15,173 - 15,173 16,739 - 16,739
6,537 6,537 6,354 6,354
- 4,910 4,910
- 1,257 1,257
- 365 365
14,252 14,252 -
32 32 249 249
91 91 - -
5,180 5,180 - -
884 884 995 995
2,449 - 2,449 4,085 - 4,085
39,145 6,155 45,300 34,582 995 35,577
45,300 35,577
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Note 5.1 Operating expenses

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies
Purchase of social care

Staff and executive directors costs
Remuneration of non-executive directors

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs)

Supplies and services - general

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs)
Inventories written down

Consultancy costs

Establishment

Premises

Transport (including patient travel)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation on intangible assets

Net impairments

Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets

Movement in credit loss allowance: all other receivables and investments
audit services- statutory audit
other auditor remuneration (external auditor only)

Internal audit costs

Clinical negligence

Legal fees

Insurance

Research and development

Education and training

Rentals under operating leases

Redundancy

Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP IFRIC 12 schemes (e.g. PFI/LIFT)

Car parking & security
Hospitality
Other
Total
Of which:
Related to continuing operations
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2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
1,960 702
269,356 248,951
118 66
28,453 23,789
4,094 3,846
13,314 13,321
23 -

492 482
3,802 2,424
22,585 14,196
278 1,143
7,494 5,595
1,830 1,548
3,961 276
1,872 (301)
10 (33)

84 51

- 1

- 190
10,164 9,750
1,279 710
199 160
575 774
1,392 908
4,721 5,781
160 -
437 1,133

19 -

- 7
12,541 6,473
391,213 341,943
391,213 341,943



Note 5.2 Other auditor remuneration

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000
Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:
1. Audit of accounts of any associate of the trust - -

. Audit-related assurance services - 1
. Taxation compliance services - -
. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above - -
. Internal audit services - -
. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5 - -
. Corporate finance transaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above - -
8. Other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above - -

~NOoO b~ WOWDN

Total - 1

The net figure paid to the auditor for the 2020/21 financial statement audit is £70k excluding VAT.

Note 5.3 Limitation on auditor's liability

The contract, signed on 24th October 2018, states that the liability of KPMG, its members, partners and staff (whether in
contract, negligence or otherwise) shall in no circumstances exceed £1m (2019/20: £1m), aside from where the liability
cannot be limited by law. This is in aggregate in respect of all services.

Note 6 Impairment of assets

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:
Loss or damage from normal operations - -
Unforeseen obsolescence - -
Changes in market price 3,961 276
Other - -
Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 3,961 276
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 8,189 1,137
Total net impairments 12,150 1,413

As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, at the valuation date, the Trust's valuers considered that it was appropriate to
attach less weight to previous market evidence and published build cost information for comparison purposes, to inform
opinions of value. Indeed, the current response to COVID 19 meant that they were faced with an unprecedented set of
circumstances on which to base a judgement.

Their valuation was therefore reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the
RICS Red Book Global. This does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon. It is used in order to be clear and
transparent with all parties, in a professional manner that — in the current extraordinary circumstances — less certainty
can be attached to the valuation than would otherwise be the case.

Impairments thus incurred by the Trust should be viewed in this light, and will be kept under review on as frequent a
basis as is practical.
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Note 7.1 Employee benefits

Salaries and wages

Social security costs

Apprenticeship levy

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions

Pension cost - other

Other employment benefits

Termination benefits

Temporary staff (including agency)
Total gross staff costs

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff
Total staff costs
Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets

Note 7.2 Retirements due to ill-health

2020/21 2019/20
Total Total
£000 £000

210,034 189,696
18,694 19,137
967 925
31,954 31,519
117 81

218 -

- 279

8,297 9,181
270,281 250,818
270,281 250,818
925 1,867

During 2020/21 there were 4 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (1 in the year ended 31
March 2020). The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £139k (£4k in 2019/20).

These estimated costs are calculated on an average basis and will be borne by the NHS Pension Scheme.
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Note 8 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March
2021, is based on valuation data as at 31 March 2020, updated to 31 March 2021 with summary global member and
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and
employers.

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results
of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 at 20.6%, and the Scheme Regulations were
amended accordingly.

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set
following the 2012 valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced
a pause to that part of the valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process.

Where staff are not eligible for, or choose to opt out of, the NHS Pension Scheme, they are entitled to join the National
Employment Savings Trust (NEST) scheme. NEST is a government-backed, defined contribution pension scheme set
up to make sure that every employer can easily access a workplace pension scheme. The employer's contribution rate
in 2020/21 was 3% (2019/20: 3%).
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Note 9 Operating leases

Note 9.1 The Whittington Health NHS Trust as a lessor

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where The Whittington Health NHS Trust is the

lessor.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts 884 995
Total 884 995
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Future minimum lease receipts due:
- not later than one year; 894 984
- later than one year and not later than five years; 3,466 3,891
- later than five years. 4,322 2,431
Total 8,682 7,306

Note 9.2 The Whittington Health NHS Trust as a lessee

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where The Whittington Health

NHS Trust is the lessee.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Operating lease expense
Minimum lease payments 4,721 5,781
Total 4,721 5,781
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year; 4,721 5,781
- later than one year and not later than five years; 18,026 17,738
- later than five years. 25,457 29,899
Total 48,204 53,418

Future minimum sublease payments to be received -
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Note 10 Finance income

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

Interest on bank accounts
Total finance income

Note 11.1 Finance expenditure

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

6 228

6 228

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or asset financing.

Interest expense:
Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Finance leases
Interest on late payment of commercial debt
Main finance costs on PFl and LIFT schemes obligations
Contingent finance costs on PFl and LIFT scheme obligations
Total interest expense
Other finance costs
Total finance costs

Note 11.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015

Amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made under this
legislation

Note 12 Discontinued operations

Operating income of discontinued operations

Operating expenses of discontinued operations

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

(Loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Corporation tax expense attributable to discontinued operations
Total
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2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

59 472

670 202

- 2

702 1,654

428 1,010

1,859 3,340

1,859 3,340
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

- 2
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000




Note 13.1 Intangible assets - 2020/21

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - brought forward
Additions
Impairments
Revaluations
Reclassifications
Disposals / derecognition
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2021

Amortisation at 1 April 2020 - brought forward
Provided during the year
Impairments
Revaluations
Reclassifications
Disposals / derecognition
Amortisation at 31 March 2021

Net book value at 31 March 2021
Net book value at 1 April 2020

Intangible

Software assets under
licences construction Total
£000 £000 £000
20,738 333 21,071
2,509 8 2,517
333 (333) -
(8,655) - (8,655)
14,925 8 14,933
11,969 - 11,969
1,830 - 1,830
(8,655) - (8,655)
5,144 - 5,144
9,781 8 9,789
8,769 333 9,102
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Note 13.2 Intangible assets - 2019/20

Intangible
Software assets under

licences construction Total
£000 £000 £000
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - as previously

stated 16,971 249 17,220
Prior period adjustments - - -
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - restated 16,971 249 17,220
Additions - 3,914 3,914
Impairments - - -
Revaluations - - -
Reclassifications 3,767 (3,830) (63)
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2020 20,738 333 21,071
Amortisation at 1 April 2019 - as previously stated 10,421 - 10,421
Prior period adjustments - - -
Amortisation at 1 April 2019 - restated 10,421 - 10,421
Provided during the year 1,548 - 1,548
Impairments - - -
Revaluations - - -
Reclassifications - - -
Amortisation at 31 March 2020 11,969 - 11,969
Net book value at 31 March 2020 8,769 333 9,102
Net book value at 1 April 2019 6,550 249 6,799
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Note 14.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2020/21

Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings Dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2020 - brought forward 45,638 161,791 50 16,579 35,741 14,621 228 274,648
Additions - 342 - 14,103 4,360 - - 18,805
Impairments (21) (12,129) - - - - - (12,150)
Revaluations - 592 - - - - - 592
Reclassifications (143) 13,876 - (23,100) 4,034 5,302 31 -
Disposals / derecognition - (4,935) (50) - (23,149) (10,388) - (38,522)
Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2021 45,474 159,537 - 7,582 20,986 9,535 259 243,373
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020 - brought
forward - 10,427 50 - 27,509 12,349 104 50,439
Provided during the year - 4,302 - - 2,318 828 46 7,494
Impairments - - - - - - - -
Revaluations - - - - - - - -
Reclassifications - - - - - - - -
Disposals / derecogpnition - (4,935) (50) - (23,149) (10,388) - (38,522)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 - 9,794 - - 6,678 2,789 150 19,411
Net book value at 31 March 2021 45,474 149,743 - 7,582 14,308 6,746 109 223,962

Net book value at 1 April 2020 45,638 151,364 - 16,579 8,232 2,272 124 224,209
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Note 14.2 Property, plant and equipment - 2019/20

Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings Dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - as previously
stated 45,639 154,532 50 7,691 34,469 14,621 140 257,142
Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - -
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - restated 45,639 154,532 50 7,691 34,469 14,621 140 257,142
Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - -
Additions - 764 - 13,313 385 - - 14,462
Impairments (107) (1,306) - - - - - (1,413)
Revaluations 106 4,288 - - - - - 4,394
Reclassifications - 3,513 - (4,425) 887 - 88 63
Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2020 45,638 161,791 50 16,579 35,741 14,621 228 274,648
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2019 - as
previously stated - 7,792 50 - 25,834 11,106 62 44,844
Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2019 - restated - 7,792 50 - 25,834 11,106 62 44,844
Provided during the year - 2,635 - - 1,675 1,243 42 5,595
Impairments - - - - - - - -
Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - -
Revaluations - - - - - - - -
Reclassifications - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2020 - 10,427 50 - 27,509 12,349 104 50,439
Net book value at 31 March 2020 45,638 151,364 - 16,579 8,232 2,272 124 224,209
Net book value at 1 April 2019 45,639 146,740 - 7,691 8,635 3,515 78 212,298
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Note 14.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2020/21

Net book value at 31 March 2021
Owned - purchased
Finance leased
Owned - donated/granted

NBYV total at 31 March 2021

Note 14.4 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2019/20

Net book value at 31 March 2020
Owned - purchased
Finance leased

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service
concession arrangements
Owned - donated/granted

NBYV total at 31 March 2020

Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
45,474 148,891 7,582 9,717 6,746 106 218,516
- - - 4,269 - - 4,269
- 852 - 322 - 3 1,177
45,474 149,743 7,582 14,308 6,746 109 223,962
Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
45,638 74,679 16,579 6,141 2,272 117 145,426
- 4,910 - 1,887 - - 6,797
- 70,897 - - - - 70,897
- 878 - 204 - 7 1,089
45,638 151,364 16,579 8,232 2,272 124 224,209
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Note 15 Donations of property, plant and equipment

The Trust received donations of capital assets (plant and equipment) from DHSC and/or NHS England as part of the
coronavirus pandemic response in 2020/21. These donations were not material to the Trust and are reflected in the
Donated Assets section of relevant notes to these Accounts.

Note 16 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

Land, buildings and dwellings were valued in March 2021 by qualified independent valuers Cushman & Wakefield.
The assets were valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis due to the specialised nature of the asset. The RICS
Red Book defines specialised property as:

“a property that is rarely, if ever, sold in the market except by way of a sale of the business or entity of which it is part,

due to the uniqueness arising from its specialised nature and design, its configuration, size, location or otherwise”.

In line with the current valuation methodology, buildings have been re-categorised as 'blocks' and the various
components within each block grouped as one. Each block is considered as an individual item and depreciated over
its estimated useful economic life.

A summary of the Impairments and revaluations with comparatives as shown in the table below -

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

Impairments
Taken to Reserves 8,189 1,137
Taken to SOCI 3,961 276
12,150 1,413

Revaluations
Taken to Reserves 592 4,394
592 4,394
Net (Impairment) / Revaluation (11,558) 2,981
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Note 17 Inventories

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Drugs 1,105 1,210
Consumables 670 706
Energy 45 59
Other 375 430
Total inventories 2,195 2,405

of which:
Held at fair value less costs to sell - -

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £18,576k (2019/20: £13,321k). Write-down of inventories as
expenses for the year were £23k (2019/20: £nil).

In response to the COVID 19 pandemic, the Department of Health and Social Care centrally procured personal
protective equipment and passed these to NHS providers free of charge. During 2020/21 the Trust received £5,180k
of items purchased by DHSC.

These inventories were recognised as additions to inventory at deemed cost with the corresponding benefit
recognised in income. The utilisation of these items is included in the expenses disclosed above.
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Note 18.1 Receivables

Current
Contract receivables
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets
Allowance for other impaired receivables
Prepayments (non-PFl)
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables
Total current receivables

Non-current
Other receivables
Total non-current receivables

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Current
Non-current
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31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

16,482 38,726
(2,799) (927)
(1,332) (1,322)
3,191 3,884
114 (71)
620 2,314
1,975 1,961
18,251 44,565
401 491
401 491
10,651 32,102



Note 18.2 Allowances for credit losses

Allowances as at 1 April - brought forward
Prior period adjustments
Allowances as at 1 April - restated
New allowances arising
Changes in existing allowances
Reversals of allowances
Utilisation of allowances (write offs)
Allowances as at 31 Mar 2021

2020/21 2019/20
Contract Contract
receivables receivables
and contract All other and contract All other
assets receivables assets receivables
£000 £000 £000 £000
927 1,322 1,228 1,364
927 1,322 1,228 1,364
2,799 1,332 - 841
(927) (1,322) - -
- - (301) (874)
- - . ©)
2,799 1,332 927 1,322
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Note 19.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily
convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
At 1 April 27,384 25,165
Prior period adjustments -
At 1 April (restated) 27,384 25,165
Net change in year 34,143 2,219
At 31 March 61,527 27,384
Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 52 64
Cash with the Government Banking Service 61,475 27,320
Deposits with the National Loan Fund - -
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 61,527 27,384
Bank overdrafts (GBS and commercial banks) - -
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 61,527 27,384

Note 19.2 Third party assets held by the trust
Whittington Health NHS Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the Trust on behalf of
patients or other parties and in which the trust has no beneficial interest. This has been excluded from the cash and
cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Bank balances 7 7
Total third party assets 7 7
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Note 20 Trade and other payables

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Current

Trade payables 9,420 27,606
Capital payables 4,031 4,839
Accruals 29,098 9,489
Social security costs 3,058 3,014
Other taxes payable 2,825 2,620
PDC dividend payable - 74
Other payables 3,933 3,861
Total current trade and other payables 52,365 51,503

Non-current
Trade payables - -

Total non-current trade and other payables - -

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Current 11,114 13,296
Non-current - -
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Note 21 Other liabilities

Current
Deferred income: contract liabilities
Other deferred income

Total other current liabilities

Non-current
Deferred income: contract liabilities
Other deferred income

Total other non-current liabilities

Note 22 Financing

Note 22.1 Borrowings

Current

Bank overdrafts

Loans from DHSC

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts
Total current borrowings

Non-current

Loans from DHSC

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts
Total non-current borrowings

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

1,686 2,706
1,686 2,706

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
118 27,437
182 331

- 1,195

300 28,963
1,856 1,972
4,754 1,703
- 23,988
6,610 27,663

On 2 April 2020, the Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) and NHS England & NHS Improvement announced
reforms to the NHS cash regime for the 2020/21 financial year. During 2020/21 existing DHSC interim revenue and
capital loans as at 31 March 2020 were extinguished and replaced with the issue of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) to
allow the repayment. The affected loans totalled £27.2m were classified as current liabilities within the 2019/20 financial
statements. As the repayment transactions were funded through the issue of PDC, this did and does not present a

going concern risk for the Trust.

One capital loan remains and its terms are accounted for in the above note.
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Note 22.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2020/21

Loans PFl and
from Other Finance LIFT
DHSC loans leases schemes Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carrying value at 1 April 2020 29,409 - 2,034 25,183 56,626
Cash movements:
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of
principal (27,382) - (1,845) (201) (29,428)
Financing cash flows - payments of interest (112) - (670) (451) (1,233)
Non-cash movements:
Additions - - 462 - 462
Application of effective interest rate 59 - 670 702 1,431
Other changes - - 4,285 (25,233) (20,948)
Carrying value at 31 March 2021 1,974 - 4,936 - 6,910
Note 22.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2019/20
Loans PFl and
from Other Finance LIFT
DHSC loans leases schemes Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carrying value at 1 April 2019 29,573 - 1,371 26,374 57,318
Prior period adjustment - - - - -
Carrying value at 1 April 2018 - restated 29,573 - 1,371 26,374 57,318
Cash movements:
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of
principal (164) - (872) (1,192) (2,228)
Financing cash flows - payments of interest 472) - (202) (1,653) (2,327)
Non-cash movements:
Additions - - 1,535 - 1,535
Application of effective interest rate 472 - 202 1,654 2,328
Carrying value at 31 March 2020 29,409 - 2,034 25,183 56,626
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Note 23 Finance leases

Note 23.1 The Whittington Health NHS Trust as a lessee
Obligations under finance leases where the trust is the lessee.

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Gross lease liabilities 7,722 3,579
of which liabilities are due:
- not later than one year; 707 591
- later than one year and not later than five years; 5,082 1,839
- later than five years. 1,933 1,149
Finance charges allocated to future periods (2,786) (1,545)
Net lease liabilities 4,936 2,034
of which payable:
- not later than one year; 182 331
- later than one year and not later than five years; 3,412 1,024
- later than five years. 1,342 679

Total of future minimum sublease payments to be received at the reporting date - -
Contingent rent recognised as expense in the period - -
The Trust leases the Stroud Green Health Centre. The least started in 1993 and is scheduled to last for 125 years.
The Trust also leases Crouch End Health Centre, which is scheduled to end in January 2084.

The Trust's main finance lease is for imaging equipment through the Managed Equipment Service (MES) contractor,
Althea. This arrangement started in 2007 and is currently scheduled to run until 2027.
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Note 24 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis

Pensions:
early Pensions:
departure injury
costs benefits Legal claims Redundancy Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2020 739 68 75 - 729 1,611
Arising during the year - - 286 - 35,345 35,631
Utilised during the year (199) (28) - - - (228)
Reversed unused - - - - (10) (10)
At 31 March 2021 540 40 361 - 36,064 37,004
Expected timing of cash flows:
- not later than one year; 199 28 361 - 181 769
- later than one year and not later than five years; 341 12 - - 35,050 35,402
- later than five years. - - - - 833 833
Total 540 40 361 - 36,064 37,004

Two notable changes or additions were made to the Trust's provisions balance during the year:

- A long-running case, known as "Flowers" relates to certain claims relating to entitlement to annual leave in certain circumstances. A national
legal process has reached a stage whereby it is possible to attach an estimated amount to the people affected, and hence the Trust's potential
liability. £218k in respect of this provision has been included within the Other category in the above note.

- The Trust entered into a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) arrangement in 2003 to build and maintain the main hospital through construction firm
Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL). On the 28th July 2020 WFL filed for administration.

The collapse of WFL means that the main building has transferred back into the ownership of the Trust, whereby the Trust is now responsible for
the maintenance of the building, including the cost of major fire safety refurbishments for which WFL are being pursued under the terms of a 30

year contract.

As a result of this dispute with WFL, legal proceedings are expected to take place. There will be a significant cost of rectifying building deficiency
not appropriately addressed by WFL, but also an outstanding balance owed to the bank for the remaining balance of the Private Finance Initiative
(PFI1) agreement.
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Note 25 Clinical negligence liabilities

At 31 March 2021, £122,579 was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities
of The Whittington Health NHS Trust (31 March 2020: £120,134k).

Note 26 Contingent assets and liabilities
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

Value of contingent liabilities

NHS Resolution legal claims - -
Employment tribunal and other employee related litigation - -
Redundancy - -
Other - -
Gross value of contingent liabilities - -
Amounts recoverable against liabilities - -
Net value of contingent liabilities - -
Net value of contingent assets 2,001 1,962

Contingent Liabilities
A material addition to the provision balance in 2020/21 concerns the implications arising from the collapse of
Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL).

The collapse of WFL means that the main building has transferred back into the ownership of the Trust, whereby the
Trust is now responsible for the maintenance of the building, including the cost of major fire safety refurbishments for
which WFL are being pursued under the terms of a 30 year contract.

As a result of this dispute with WFL, legal proceedings are expected to take place. There will be a significant cost of
rectifying building deficiency not appropriately addressed by WFL, but also an outstanding balance owed to the bank
for the remaining balance of the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) agreement.

In the judgement of the Trust, a provision was deemed appropriate as at 31 March 2021 to cover relevant potential
liabilities. The basis of this provision relied on professional legal advice (on the instruction of the Trust); while the
administrators of WFL provided similar advice from their own legal advisors, the Trust relied on the aforementioned
advice in prudently providing for potential future costs.

The legal position is not concluded and the full costs of remediation are not yet known. The provision is based on the
Trust's best estimate of the remediation costs, but the final settlement of the PFI claim could be higher if the
remediation costs are lower than estimated. Conversely the final cost of the claim could be lower if the remediation
costs are higher than estimated.

Any accounting provision thus made is intended to reflect the material uncertainty around the situation which existed as
at 31 March 2021, and should not be taken as admission of any liability on the part of the Trust.

Contingent Assets

The Trust has disclosed a £2m contingent asset in recognition of its available apprenticeship levy fund(19/20 £1.96m).
This a externally held training fund of monies, which the Trust contributes to on a monthly basis; the Trust applies to
access this funding when appropriate to provide specific training for its employees.

Note 27 Contractual capital commitments

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 2,560 2,993
Intangible assets 0 128
Total 2,560 3,121
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Note 28 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements

The Trust is involved in a contractual dispute with the Joint Administrators (JA) of Whittington Facilities Limited (WFL).
Whittington Facilities Limited was responsible for the ownership, maintenance and delivery of hard facilities
management services within the Trusts former Private Finance Initiative estate. WFL entered administration in the
summer of 2020. Following the termination of the contract the JA's have issued a 'letter before claim' detailing what it
believes the Trust owes WFL following the conclusion to the contract.

As the full extent of the claim has yet to be validated and discussed with the JA's, the Trust is unable to comment on its
validity.

The Trust believes it has provided in its financial position sufficient resources to cover any required settlement.

Note 28.1 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligations
The following obligations in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements are recognised in the
statement of financial position:

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

Gross PFl, LIFT or other service concession liabilities - 36,266

Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year; - 2,440

- later than one year and not later than five years; - 10,425

- later than five years. - 23,401
Finance charges allocated to future periods - (11,083)
Net PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligation - 25,183
- not later than one year; - 1,195

- later than one year and not later than five years; - 5,854

- later than five years. - 18,134

Note 27.2 Total on-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concession arrangement commitments
Total future commitments under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Total future payments committed in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service
concession arrangements - 99,017
Of which payments are due:
- not later than one year; - 5,778
- later than one year and not later than five years; - 24,593
- later than five years. - 68,646
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Note 27.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession operator
This note provides an analysis of the unitary payments made to the service concession operator:

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000

Unitary payment payable to service concession operator 2,093 5,754
Consisting of:

- Interest charge 702 1,654

- Repayment of balance sheet obligation 201 1,192

- Service element and other charges to operating expenditure 437 1,133

- Capital lifecycle maintenance 325 765

- Contingent rent 428 1,010

Total amount paid to service concession operator 2,093 5,754
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Note 29 Financial instruments”

Note 29.1 Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period
in creating or charging the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. As a result of the continuing service provider
relationship that the Trust has with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and the way those CCGs are financed, the
Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much
more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting
standards mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds, and financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in
undertaking its activities.

The Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the Finance Department, within the parameters defined
formally within the Trust's Standing Financial Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. The Trust's
treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal auditors as part of a scheduled programme, and also by
executive / non-executive / external audit colleagues as the need arises.

Currency risk

The Trust is principally a domestic UK-based organisation with the majority of transactions, assets and liabilities
originating from the UK and denominated in Sterling. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has
low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

Borrowings are for 1 - 25 year in line with the associated assets, and interest is charged either at the rate set per the
loan agreement, or at the National Loans Fund rate in the absence of such an agreement. The Trust therefore has low
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

The Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing, subject to approval by NHS Improvement & related
bodies. Interest rates are confirmed by DHSC (the lender) at the point borrowing is undertaken.

The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Credit risk

The majority of the Trust's revenue arises from contracts with other public sector bodies, therefore the Trust has low
exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2021 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed
in the Trade & Other Receivables note.

Liquidity risk

The Trust's operating costs are incurred under contracts with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), which are
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained
within its Prudential Borrowing Limit. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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Note 29.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2021

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2021

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2020

Note 29.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care

Obligations under finance leases

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2021

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2020
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Held at Held at Held at
amortised fair value fair value Total
cost through I&E through OCl book value
£000 £000 £000 £000
9,802 - - 9,802
61,527 - - 61,527
71,329 - - 71,329
Held at Held at Held at
amortised fair value fair value Total
cost through I&E through OCI book value
£000 £000 £000 £000
37,877 - - 37,877
27,384 - - 27,384
65,261 - - 65,261
Held at Held at
amortised fair value Total
cost through I&E book value
£000 £000 £000
1,974 - 1,974
4,936 - 4,936
36,562 - 36,562
43,472 - 43,472
Held at Held at
amortised fair value Total
cost through I&E book value
£000 £000 £000
29,409 - 29,409
2,034 - 2,034
25,183 - 25,183
40,792 - 40,792
680 - 680
98,098 - 98,098




Note 29.4 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

In one year or less 37,387 71,940
In more than one year but not more than five years 5,546 12,728
In more than five years 3,325 26,058
Total 46,258 110,726

The prior year comparator figures in this note were previously prepared on a discounted cash flow basis. In line with the
recommendations of the Group Accounting Manual this has been updated to be shown on an undiscounted basis. This

has no impact on the value of the liabilities within the Statement of Financial Position.
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Note 30 Losses and special payments

Losses
Cash losses
Total losses

Total losses and special payments
Compensation payments received

2020/21 2019/20
Total Total

number of Total value number of Total value
cases of cases cases of cases
Number £000 Number £000
4 3 4 9
4 3 4 9
4 3 4 9
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Note 31 Related parties

During the year no Trust Board members or members of key management staff, or parties related to them, have
undertaken any material transactions with the Trust.

Dr Sarah Humphery is both Executive Medical Director for Integrated Care for the Trust and a GP with Goodinge Group
Practice. As at the end of 2020-2021 a credit note of £40k was outstanding, i.e. due from the Trust to Goodinge Group
Practice.

The Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) is considered a related party. During the year the Trust has had a
significant number of material transactions with the Department and with other entities for which the Department is the
parent Department. The table below shows the net result of the material transactions within the DHSC group.

The Trust has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Whittington Pharmacy CIC and Whittington Charity. Neither organisation
is consolidated within these accounts. A number of Whittington Health board members have a related party within these
subsidiaries.

Income  Expenditure Receivables Payables

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
NHS North Central London CCG 278,172 16 657 824
NHS England 48,892 12 3,035 412
Health Education England 14,884 0 241 242
NHS City and Hackney CCG 5,350 0 5 0
Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust 4,339 1,895 3,108 1,943
University College London Hospitals NHS FT 2,349 806 1,218 1,562
NHS Brent CCG 1,189 0 (50) 0
Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust 1,188 1,354 848 503
East London NHS FT 1,163 33 581 22
North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust 1,125 23 158 42
Barnet, Enfield And Haringey Mental Health NHS Trust 132 1,033 22 1,294
NHS Resolution 0 10,164 0 22
Community Health Partnerships 0 3,875 5 1,623
NHS Property Services Ltd 0 837 0 1,192

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central
and local government bodies. Most of the material transactions have been with:

Income  Expenditure Receivables Payables
(£000s) (£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Islington Borough Council 7,457 3,067 502 898
London Borough of Hackney 1,384 2 114 14
NHS Blood & Transplant 0 1,988 0 70

Note 32 Prior period adjustments
No adjustments have been made to prior period audited figures.

Note 33 Events after the reporting date

An adjusting event was recorded in relation to the 2019/20 accounts concerning interim revenue & capital loans. This
has since been transacted, recorded and disclosed in the 2020/21 accounts.

No events after the reporting date of 31 March 2021 have been recorded.
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Note 34 Better Payment Practice code

2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2019/20

Non-NHS Payables Number £000 Number £000

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 55,647 173,465 61,498 161,569

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 50,535 151,752 55,836 143,924

Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within

target 90.8% 87.5% 90.8% 89.1%
NHS Payables

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 4,931 25,279 3,856 12,400

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 2,770 7,689 3,043 6,741

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 56.2% 30.4% 78.9% 54.4%

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30

days of receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later.

Note 35 External financing limit

The trust is given an external financing limit against which it is permitted to underspend

Cash flow financing
External financing requirement
External financing limit (EFL)
Under / (over) spend against EFL

Note 36 Capital Resource Limit

Gross capital expenditure
Less: Donated and granted capital additions
Charge against Capital Resource Limit

Capital Resource Limit
Under / (over) spend against CRL

Note 37.1 Breakeven duty financial performance

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) (control total basis)
IFRIC 12 breakeven adjustment
Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / (deficit)
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2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
2,317 1,220
2,317 1,220
2,317 1,220
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
21,322 18,376
(91) -
21,231 18,376
21,249 18,683
18 307
2020/21
£000
50
2,320
2,370



Note 37.2 Breakeven duty rolling assessment

Breakeven duty in-year financial performance

Breakeven duty cumulative position

Operating income

Cumulative breakeven position as a percentage of operating income

Breakeven duty in-year financial performance

Breakeven duty cumulative position

Operating income

Cumulative breakeven position as a percentage of operating income

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
139 508 1,120 3,614 1,165 (7,342)

3,971 4,110 4,618 5,738 9,352 10,517 3,175
176,853 186,300 278,212 281,343 297,397 295,007

2.3% 2.5% 2.1% 3.3% 3.5% 11%

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(14,788) (3,670) 6,158 29,362 1,568 2,370

(11,613) (15,283) (9,126) 20,237 21,805 24,175

294,211 309,255 323,394 348,646 350,183 395,340

(3.9%) @.9%) (2.8%) 5.8% 6.2% 6.1%
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